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Chairman’s Statement

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am pleased
to present you the annual report for the year ended at 31 December
2021 of Ganglong China Property Group Limited (“Ganglong China
Property” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
the “Group”). Meanwhile, on behalf of the Company, | hereby express
sincere gratitude to people from all walks of life for their support for our
business development for years.

As of 31 December 2021, the total cash to short term debt ratio of the
Group is 2.5 times, the net gearing ratio is 24%, and the liabilities to
assets ratio after excluding contract liabilities is about 64%.

In 2021, China’s real estate policy still adhered to the tone of “houses
are for living in and not for speculative investment”, and policies
including three red lines, housing loan concentration management
and centralized land supply were introduced to further control the
overheating of the real estate market. After August 2021, with the
cooling of the real estate market, the central government made a
strategic deployment for the stable and healthy development of the
real estate market and relaxed the supply of housing loans. After more
than 20 years of extensive development of real estate, land dividend,
demographic dividend, financial policy dividend and other factors
that can bring rapid development of the industry are weakening. The
industry began to pursue internal fine control and explore connotative
high-quality growth. We firmly believe that the quality of the real estate
market will be looking up. As “a city builder for a better life”, Ganglong
China actively complies with national policies and the development
trend of the industry, adheres to the business philosophy of “honesty,
stability and humility”, carefully polishes products, improves residential
quality, improves brand reputation, continuously consolidates its own
development advantages, optimizes strategy and management, and
follows a stable and far-reaching path with like-minded partners and
hardworking employees for a promising future.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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The Company adheres to the strategic positioning of “deeply cultivating
the Yangtze River Delta”, expands the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area, and realizes the reasonable growth of the land
reserve through diversified land acquisition means with the help of its
strong economic and demographic support.

Financial security is the safety baseline of an enterprise's operation and
also determines the development trend of the enterprise. Ganglong
China has always attached great importance to safe operation. For a
long time, it has focused on residential development and adhered to a
clear operation mode. It does not participate in real estate projects with
long operation cycle and idling funds. In terms of investment, it has very
strict standards for the calculation of the profit rate, annualized rate of
return and return on capital of the project. Ganglong China continues
to strengthen capital management, optimize costs, consolidate the
underlying strength, seek long-term and steady development and
continuously improve its financial structure and control ability.

During the reporting period, the Company achieved a cumulative
contractual sales amount of RMB30,041 million, and a recognized sales
revenue of RMB10,369 million, with a year-on-year increase of 149%.

Organizational efficiency is an important ability for enterprises when the
industry enters a new stage of “high-quality operation and development”.
Adhering to the enterprise management concept of high quality and
sustainable development, we continue to strengthen our organizational
capacity-building, improve the level of fine management, optimize and
upgrade the talent structure and improve the corporate governance
system. In 2022, the principle for our organizational development is
“making a fresh start with humbleness”. We will take “manufacturing
thinking” as the direction of transformation, and we will also take
improving internal skills as the starting point. All these measures aim at
streamlining the organization and realizing fine management.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Excellent products and services are the key to win customers and
market. We focus on creating value for customers, adhere to customer
orientation, forge product power and service power, and implement
it in all links of the product value chain, strengthen the enterprise
brand with customer reputation, and provide customers with a more
comfortable, greener and healthier living experience by building MorePro
product system, customer service platform “Ganglong China Club” and
“Lighthearted Living” system.

Looking forward to 2022, under the key tone of “houses are for living
in and not for speculative investment”,
will become the key words of the industry. With the adjustment and
correction of policies, the market is expected to go through the repair
stage, return to a stable state, and then move towards a virtuous circle.
The real estate industry will remain a ten trillion level interactive industry
for a long time, and the improvement of the long-term mechanism
is a new starting point for the healthy and stable development of the
industry. In the future, we will continue to carry forward the corporate
culture of “integrity, vigorousness, responsibility, pragmatism, simplicity
and efficiency”, focus on the stock, carefully understand customers,
consolidate internal strength, continue to cultivate the Yangtze River
Delta, expand the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area,
continuously optimize products and services from the perspective of
customers, win customers with satisfactory products and services, and
offer hardworking employees a promising career path, and maximize
value for shareholders and other investors.

stability and virtuous cycle

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would
like to express my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, employees,
bondholders, partners and customers who extended supports to the
Company in 2021!

Lui Ming
Chairman
25 March 2022
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BERENmED T

General Overview

Ganglong China Property is an established property developer in the
Yangtze River Delta Region. The Company was successfully listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 6968.HK) by way of the Global
Offering on 15 July 2020 (the “Listing”). This marked an important
milestone in the development of the Company.

Headquartered in Shanghai, the Group is an active real estate developer
in the Yangtze River Delta region, one of the most prosperous and
dynamic regions in China. The Group primarily focused in the cities of
Shanghai, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Suzhou, Nantong, Huzhou, Taizhou,
Yancheng and Greater Bay Area, etc., and has achieved strategic
geographic coverage in those regions. Adhering to our core value of
“striving for innovation, building with integrity”, the Group believes that
we have developed splendid reputation in our market for constant
innovation, excellent quality of our various products and credibility.

At the beginning of 2021, the real estate market was severely affected
by the impact of COVID-19. With the gradual effectiveness of the Central
and Local government policies, such as multiple decrease in interest
rate, supportive policies on both the supply and demand sides as well as
the implementation of major plans, and renewed confidence from home
buyers, resulting in active investment in the market arising from the pre-
accumulated market demand, and thus the market gradually recovered.
At the same time, the Group seized the opportunities of the sales
window period and stepped up the promotion efforts with innovative
marketing model. Thanks to the efforts by all of our employees,
the amount of contracted sales of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB30,041 million.

In terms of the macro-economy in the coming year, the real estate
market will benefit from the stable financial environment. The reduction
of financing costs of property developers and the reduction of costs
of home ownership are conducive to the recovery and development
of the market. In terms of policy, the regulation and control of the
real estate market will adhere to the position of “housing without
speculation”. Although there is adjustment pressure to national real
estate market size, there is still room for the suppressed demand
during the short-term epidemic, the demand for investment value

Annual Report 2021
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

preservation driven by the home improvement of credit environment,
and the demand for improvement driven by the epidemic. The Group
will seize the opportunities of the sales window, implement a strategy of
“high turnover”, and maintain enthusiasm for construction. Facing the
uncertainty of the epidemic and economic development, the current
situation of real estate products and services, and the trend of demand
for home in the post-epidemic era, we will focus on sales proceeds
and reach our sales targets, and, at the same time, increase our effort
on exploration of gaining footholds in cities with potential and product
innovation, so as to better enhance the quality of our products, as well as
to achieve sustainable and stable quality growth.

In the coming year, with the backing of the Yangtze River Delta cities
that we have deeply rooted for years, the Group will continue to find
opportunities in Anhui, South China, Midwest China and other regional
hot spots, to achieve national layout. We will make full use of the listing
on the Stock Exchange as a platform to achieve diversified financing
channels and promote the business development of the Group to
reward our Shareholders.

Business Review

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately RMB10,369 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 149%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, including those of joint ventures
and associates, the Group recorded unaudited contracted sales of
approximately RMB30,041 million. Contracted gross floor area (“GFA”)
sold was approximately 2,504,000 sg.m.. The average selling price
(“ASP”) of our contracted sales for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB11,997 per sq.m..

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had contract liabilities of
approximately RMB27,240 million, as compared to approximately
RMB20,980 million as of 31 December 2020, representing an increase
of approximately 30%.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had unfulfilled contracts related to
sales of properties of approximately RMB31,263 million, as compared
to approximately RMB24,757 million as of 31 December 2020,
representing an increase of approximately 26%.

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from sales
of properties increased by approximately 149% year-on-year to
approximately RMB10,369 million. The Group recognised total GFA of
approximately 953,264 sqg.m., representing an increase of approximately
118% as compared to 2020. The ASP of the properties recognised as
property sales was approximately RMB10,877 per sq.m., representing
an increase of approximately 14% year-on-year.

The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold by type
of properties and city for the year ended 31 December 2021:

R2021F12 4318 + AEERBEITHYEHEEL
ABARE31,2638 &0 MKN2020F12 8318 -
D BARE24T5TAETT - BRL26% °

MEHE

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE - WEEEWERLL
HANAI149% E X ARBE10,369H B T ° ANEE
AR R #953,264F 77 K » E:20204F & A1
#1118% - HHERAMEHENMETHEBNA
FEHKARE10,8777T  FILLILANLI14% °

TREFEE2021F12 831 B ILFEIRYEHER
Y T4 FERR A $8 5 50 R R SR S -

Recognised Recognised Recognised
GFA ASP revenue
R oER

EEEE FHEE 2 ERR S
sg.m. RMB/sqg.m. RMB’000
FHK AREEHK AREFT

Residential, retail and commercial FE ZTEREEXE
Huzhou SR 186,215 8,986 1,673,410
Haian B 146,022 11,266 1,645,042
Nantong [Eap ] 134,244 12,097 1,623,925
Shanghai ubic] 40,945 31,893 1,305,844
Hangzhou Al 52,543 19,394 1,019,006
Yancheng 2574 97,890 9,955 974,495
Huaian iy 101,501 8,813 894,484
Changzhou M 60,973 9,613 586,125
Taixing i 54,901 7,493 411,350
Lianyungang =) 4,417 6,358 28,085
Panzhou AN 1,859 9,722 18,077
Car parks and garage/storage (YN Y- i3 71,754 2,632 188,842
Total st 953,264 10,877 10,368,685

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

Land reserves

Leveraging on the Group’s deep understanding of the property
markets and intensive studies on the target cities, the Group continued
to strategically select and acquire parcels of land at strategic and
advantageous locations in those regions and cities in order to further
develop the Group’s presence in those markets. As of 31 December
2021, the Group (together with its joint ventures and associates) had
77 projects with land reserves amounting to 9,846,448 sg.m., of
which 70 projects were located in 28 cities in the Yangtze River Delta
region. Moreover, the Group had arranged its layout in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and Southwest China and has
successfully obtained quality projects in Guangzhou and Chengdu as of
31 December 2021.

The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the total land reserve
of our Group by province or cities as of 31 December 2021:

T i
REASEYHEHEMSRAEBAREHE
I T HRATTIE - R BB %S @ R
MHBEEFIM ESMBEERNRERBE T - )
E—HERASEEZMIGHTE N - R20214F
12A318  AEBGEREGERERBE AT
HATTEEE - L% /9,846,448 5K + &
70187 B A& = A& /28 @M - ttah -
R2021F12A318 » AEEERBEWBARR
BERXNERMTBEAREPRREGERE - BN
BN R ESESEEIER -

TREFHA2021F12 A31 BAREFIRE DT
oM TR RS REmERMA

Total land Percentage of

reserve(! total land bank

Province T b fEE L EEEE

H# g HWEDL

(sq.m.) (%)

(FFK) (%)

Jiangsu T Ek 4,978,470 51%

Guangdong E®x 1,756,075 18%

Anhui = 1,509,928 15%

Zhejiang AN 761,797 8%

Guizhou M 470,634 5%

Henan ] 192,223 2%

Sichuan Al 144,519 1%

Shanghai = 32,802 0%

Total et 9,846,448 100%
Notes: PitzE

(1)  Total land reserve equals to the sum of (i) The total GFA available for
sale and total leasable GFA for completed properties; (i) total GFA for
properties under development; and (i) total GFA for properties held for
future development.

(2)  For projects developed by our subsidiaries, joint ventures or associated
companies, 100% of total GFA are accounted for the respective
projects.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group (together with its
joint ventures and associates) acquired 9 new parcels of quality land
in Hai’an, Nantong, Jingjiang, Taizhou, Yizheng, Changzhou, Funing,
Guangde and Shunde, providing new land reserves of 1,208,236 sg.m.
in terms of total GFA, at a weighted average attributable land cost of
approximately RMB4,901 per sg.m..

Particulars of the land parcels are set out in the following table:

HE2021F12A318IEFE - AEBE(GERHES
EHRERBENEAEE Bl BT [
B BN BE - EERIEEEAEFNES
tih - BT 1,208,236 F K LR o A4RE
SEMEER - MEFHETF KR LKA A
AREEL9017T o

BTN TE -

The Group’s Total Total Average

Name of Project City Equity Interest GFA Consideration land cost

mEg 15

HE&EH W rEBEER [EE BRE LTHRAE

(RMB/

(sg.m.) (RMB’000) sg.m.)

(ARE/

(CFRK)  (ARBFT)  FHK)

Tian Cui Ge REHE Hai'an SR 24% 62,747 322,502 5,140

Long Xi Hua Yuan EiEeE Nantong [Ezg 40% 81,919 383,665 4,683

Jun Yuan Ya Ju SREME Jingjiang V5T 34% 183,015 878,320 4,799

Shang He Feng Hua Yuan ~ EJAf@EZERE ~— Taizhou M 34% 149,307 1,363,000 9,129

Han Yuan 5E Yizheng B 60% 147,588 495,000 3,354

Qin Hu Chun Qiu Hua Yuan i #&ERKIERE Changzhou &M 50% 86,718 482,000 5,558

Wen Lan Fu ORI Funing B 40% 207,254 404,770 1,953

Gang Long Xing He EBEE B Guangde — [EfE 100% 117,911 306,212 2,597

Ying Hua Yuan TEE

Foshan Shunde #BILEEIHE Foshan BB 100% 171,777 1,261,456 7,344

Total 4t 1,208,236 5,896,925
Note: P

For projects developed by our subsidiaries, joint ventures or associated
companies, 100% of total GFA are accounted for the respective projects.

Honors

Details of the achievements and awards received by the Group can be
found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on page
101 to 122 of this annual report.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

B AR AEDEIBEARFENEEMS -
HEEB/IEB BGREEmEEN100% ©

B2
BAANSEFTER S KRB FIBEHN AN FRE

10121228 [RKE - 1@ RERFEE] -



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Financial Review

Overall performance

During the year ended 31 December 2021, total revenue of the
Group was approximately RMB10,369 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 149%. Gross profit was
approximately RMB2,400 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 58%. Net profit of the Group increased by 72% year-
on-year to approximately RMB1,102 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately RMB10,369 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 149%. The increase was primarily
attributable to the significant growth in recognised sales of properties,
driven by an increase in the Group’s property projects delivered during
the year.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group represents the costs incurred directly for
sale of properties, which comprised construction costs, land costs and
capitalised interest.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sales of the Group
was approximately RMB7,968 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 200%.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB2,400 million, representing a significant period-
on-period increase of approximately 58%. Gross profit margin was
primarily affected by the selling prices, the construction costs and land
costs of our properties delivered. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately 23%,
as compared to approximately 36% in 2020. The decrease in the gross
profit margin was mainly due to the higher land costs of the properties
delivered during current year.

Bt 7% [E] 8

BEERA

HE2021F12A31HIEFE  AEBBRENAE
AR®E10,369 8 BT + FILLIGINAI149% ° EF
HBAREE2, 4008 8T - BLLIEINLI58% - EZE
202112 A1 ALLFE - A& EFF R g0
T2%EHARE1102BETT ©

W =

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE - AEERKS A
ANR#10,369F BT © FIIE ML 149% o %1%
MEZHERRNFERNAREBEH LAY ZEIEE K

SHEMA
REBNHER A REREEEONEHERS
DIEREMA - DR REAMEFIE -

HZE2021F12A31HILFE - REBAEEKRA
HBARET7 968EETT + RILLIEINEI200% °

EF

BE2021F12A31HIEFE - ZEENEFO A
ARBE2,400E & T - FIHAFAE L IN4I58% ° EF)
REIEZMIRNYERBHEEER  BERAK
TR LE o« B ZE2021F12A31BIEEE » &
B S TFEL)23% » B 20204 [EHI A 4I136% °
EFETRERABFARIMH LA RS -

F3R2021
BETEBEEEERAR

13



14

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

Other income and other gains, net

The Group had other income of approximately RMB87 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, as compared to approximately RMB26
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2021, it primarily consisted of management and consulting
service income of approximately RMB20 million and fair value gains on
disposal of listed securities investment of approximately RMB44 million,
respectively. The management and consulting services mainly comprise
of the assignment of staff and personnel to support the operation of
the relevant project companies including but not limited to services with
respect to managerial, operational, financial and marketing aspects and
are provided exclusively to the Group’s joint ventures and associates in
relation to the property development projects.

Fair value gains on investment properties

The Group develops and holds certain retail units for rental income and/
or capital appreciation. The fair value gain on investment properties
amounted to approximately RMB2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, as compared to approximately RMB10 million in 2020.
The fair value of the investment properties of the Group had a stable
growth during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by approximately
32% year-on-year from approximately RMB389 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB514 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The increase was primarily attributable to
the increase in marketing and advertising costs and staff costs, driven
by the increase in number of property projects held by the Group’s
subsidiaries during the year.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 36% year-on-year from approximately RMB462 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB627 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The significant increase in our
general and administrative expenses was primarily due to an increase
in number of property projects held by the Group’s subsidiaries and the
scale of operation during the year.
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Finance costs — net

Net finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 187%
year-on-year from approximately RMB83 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB238 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in interest-bearing debts for the purposes of properties development
business and the full year interest impact of the issuance of interest-
bearing senior notes for refinancing and general working capital
purpose.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The Group accounts for the results of joint ventures and associates using
the equity method, which mainly represent the share of profits related to
the projects delivered during the relevant period that have been offset
by losses incurred by other joint ventures and associates.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates slightly decreased from
approximately RMB403 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB393 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in revenue from
sales of properties of the joint ventures and associates. This was in line
with the Group’s increase in the number of the Group’s consolidating
projects throughout the years.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses increased by 5% from RMB382 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB402 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, which was primarily attributable to the combined
effect of (a) increase in the number of projects delivered during the year
and (b) decrease in land appreciation tax expenses due to the decrease
in gross profit margin for the projects delivered during the year. The
effective tax rates, excluding the share of results of joint ventures and
associates, were 36% and 62% for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the significant increase in the Group’s property projects
delivered during the year, the Group’s profit and total comprehensive
income significantly increased by approximately 72% from approximately
RMB642 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB1,102 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB481
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company is RMB0.30
per share for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an
decrease of approximately 56% from RMBO.68 per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management policy
and actively manages its liquidity position with sufficient standby banking
facilities to cope with daily operation and demands for capital for future
development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had financed
its working capital, capital expenditure and other capital requirements
primarily through (i) proceeds from issuance of the senior notes
as described below; (ii) cash generated from operations, including
proceeds from the pre-sale and sales of our properties; and (iii) bank
loans, trust financing and financing from non-controlling interests, and
other financings.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had total cash (including
restricted cash, pledged time deposits and cash and cash equivalents)
of approximately RMB6,985 million as compared to approximately
RMBG6,797 million as of 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily
due to the increase in proceeds from sales of properties. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in RMB.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the aggregate new
borrowings from bank and other trust financing arrangement obtained by
the Group amounted to approximately RMB7,331 million, net proceeds
from the issuance of the senior notes were approximately RMB51 million
and repayment of borrowings from bank and trust financing arrangement
was approximately RMB6,529 million. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group’s total bank and other borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB9,495 million, representing an increase of approximately 10%
compared to approximately RMB8,642 million as of 31 December 2020.
Amongst the bank and other borrowings, approximately RMB2,758
million (as at 31 December 2020: approximately RMB6,051 million) will
be repayable within one year and approximately RMB6,737 million (as at
31 December 2020: approximately RMB2,591 million) will be repayable
after one year.
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Senior notes

In December 2020, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$150 million due in December 2021 (the “2021 Senior
Notes”), which were listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”). The 2021 Senior Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of
13.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

In November 2021, the completion of the exchange offer and the
concurrent new money issuance had resulted in the issuance of
US$31.3 million of the additional new notes in the concurrent new
money issuance and US$126.7 million of the new notes pursuant to the
exchange offer, for an aggregate principal amount of US$158 million (the
“2022 Senior Notes”). In December 2021, all outstanding 2021 Senior
Notes with principal amount of US$23.3 million were due and redeemed
by the Company in full at maturity. The 2022 Senior Notes bear interest
at a fixed rate of 13.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

The issuance of the abovementioned senior notes was for the purpose
of general working capital of the Group.

Key financial ratios

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio (calculated
as the total borrowings net of restricted cash, pledged time deposits
and cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity) was 24%, an
decrease of 17 percentage points as compared with 41% as of 31
December 2020. As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s liabilities to
assets ratio after excluding contract liabilities was approximately 64%
(as at 31 December 2020: 82%). As of 31 December 2021, total cash
to short term debt ratio (calculated as cash and bank balances divided
by short term bank and other borrowings) was 2.5 times (as at 31
December 2020: 1.1 times). The decrease in both net gearing ratio and
liabilities to assets ratio was primarily attributable to the increase in total
equity by delivery of more projects and capital contribution by non-
controlling interest. The Group actively monitors and manages its cash
to short-term debt ratio, net gearing ratio and liabilities to assets ratio. As
of 31 December 2021, these indicators have improved as compared to
the ratios as of 31 December 2020. The Group will continue to manage
its working capital efficiently through working capital management
policies and continue to utilise the Group’s available financial resources
including proceeds from sales and pre-sales of property projects and
draw down of banking facilities and other borrowings and optimise the
payment schedule to contractors through negotiation based on the
latest construction progress.
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The Group’s current ratio is calculated based on its total current assets
divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates. The
Group’s current ratio had increased from approximately 1.13 times as
of 31 December 2020 to approximately 1.38 times as of 31 December
2021. The improvement of current ratio was mainly due to the decrease
in the proportion of short-term borrowings over total borrowings from
bank and other trust financing arrangements from approximately 70% as
at 31 December 2020 to approximately 29% as at 31 December 2021.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates its business in China. Other than the
offshore senior notes which are denominated in US$, the Group did not
have any other material direct exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Directors expect that any
fluctuation of RMB’s exchange rate will not have any material adverse
effect on the operation of the Group.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has not entered into any hedging
transactions. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its borrowings. Except for
the offshore senior notes the interest rate of which is fixed, most of the
Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB, and their interest rates
on the Group’s borrowings are primarily affected by the benchmark
interest rates set by the People’s Bank of China. The Group manages
its interest rate risk by closely monitoring the trend of interest rate
fluctuation and its impact on the Group’s interest rate risk exposure, as
well as regulating the debt portfolio of the Group.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings were secured by its pledged time deposit, equity interests of
group companies, properties under development, completed properties
held for sales and investment properties with total carrying values of
approximately RMB18,082 million (31 December 2020: RMB14,880
million).
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Commitments
As of 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments that are
contracted but not provided for as follows:

g
R2021F12A31H » AEB BRI HEEREEN
HAGENT

31 December 2021
2021%F12HA31H

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥FT) (AR¥FT)
Contracted but not provided for EHEMEGESET: 8,101,524 15,725,006

The amount represented capital commitment for construction contracts
and agreed proposed development contracts determined based on
current estimated budgets.

Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities
As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s total financial guarantees are as
follows:

ZERERBEMAATREETNERAORG
TE MBI A AR B AEGE o
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MR2021F12A31H » AEBE BRI EERNOT -

31 December 2021
2021%F12H31H

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥F ) (AR¥EETFIT)
Guarantee in respect of mortgage ARETEEENLBRE
facilities for certain purchasers VEHHIER 11,452,840 7,913,296
Guarantee provided for the borrowings A& &b EMEEZ QA FER
of joint ventures and associates AR 288,926 615,000
Total st 11,741,766 8,528,296

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had arranged for
bank financing for certain purchasers of our properties and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.
Such guarantees periods start from the date of grant of mortgage, and
terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the property ownership
certificate to the purchaser; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgage loans
by the purchasers of our properties. Pursuant to the terms of these
guarantees, upon default of mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the bank may demand us to repay the outstanding mortgage principal
of the loan together with accrued interest owed by the defaulting
purchasers to the banks. Under such circumstances, the Group are
entitled to forfeit the relevant purchaser’s deposit and resell the property
to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. The Directors
consider that the likelihood of default of payments by the purchasers is
minimal and the Group’s credit risk is significantly mitigated.
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The Group also provided guarantee for borrowings of the Group’s joint
ventures and associates from time to time in proportion to its equity
interests. The relevant borrowings were primarily from banks to finance
property development projects of these joint ventures and associates,
whereby the land use rights of the joint ventures and associates were
pledged to the banks and our guarantee was provided in addition to
the pledges. The Directors consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by the joint ventures and associates is minimal and therefore
the financial guarantee measured at fair value is immaterial and no
liabilities was recognised.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

Future plans for material investments

The Group will continue to invest in its property development projects
and acquire suitable land parcels, if it thinks fit. These investments
would be funded by internal resources and external borrowings. Save
as disclosed above, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investments as of the date of this report.

Human resources

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 1,180 employees
(31 December 2020: 1,465 employees). Total expenditure on salary
and welfare of the Group’s employees for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately RMB546 million (for the year ended
31 December 2020: approximately RMB407 million). The Group has
adopted a system of determining the remuneration of employees based
on the performance of employees. In general, the Group provides
competitive remuneration packages to employees, which include
basic salaries, performance-based rewards and year-end bonus. The
Group also pays social security insurance for the Group’s employees,
including medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, endowment
insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment insurance and housing
funds. In terms of employee training, the Group provides consistent and
systematic training to employees based on their positions and expertise,
in order to enhance their expertise in real estate and their related fields.
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Future outlook

After the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, various prevention and
monitoring measures have been and will be implemented all over the
country by the Chinese government. The Group will closely focus on the
development of the coronavirus pandemic and assess its impact on the
Group’s financial position and business result.

In 2022, the Group will adhere to the development strategy of “one
body, two wings”, focus on its core business, and continuously improve
its operating efficiency. We will be oriented by customers’ demands,
continue to improve the Group’s core corporate competitiveness, such
as product competitiveness and brand awareness. In addition, the
Group will adhere to the philosophy of of rational investment and stable
expansion, and fully grasp the development opportunity of rotation of
urban cycle to further promote the implementation of the strategy of
“deepening presence in the Yangtze River Delta region and the key hub
cities of China”.

In order to ensure the smooth implementation of the development
strategy, the Group will continue to strengthen the refinement of
management and improve its internal skills in 2022. The Group will
further optimize the operation and financial management system,
shorten the decision-making process, and improve the operation
efficiency. In addition, the Group will continue to adopt sound financial
control policies and further optimize the capital and debt structure
through diversified financing channels.

Summary of property development

The Group’s land reserve represents the sum of (i) total GFA available
for sale or lease for completed properties which also includes completed
GFA that have been pre-sold but not yet delivered, (ii) total planned
GFA for properties under development, and (i) total estimated GFA for
properties held for future development. The total land reserve of the
Group represents the total land reserve of projects developed by the
Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the total land reserve
of the Group by geographical location as of 31 December 2021:
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MBAR P B R BGMFHERITEm I M miE
FOEROLBEFN o WH  REEKEFENER
B RRAERMES RO LEATHBNER
HERNEEDRAMR=/ MRS LT
BRRE AR

RIREERERBEOIEN B - 2022F - AEEHK
B MR E R - BRFAY) - REERE—
FRCEBLENUBEERR  HBRARRE =
REEME o IO - AREEREERIRRD
MBEEBIBER - BRETENRERBE—TE
{EERNERER -

MEBRREBE

REBOTFHEFER)DR TYENIHEERE
SEEERAEHEZERBE(IREDREEARR
RNHE R T REEE) © (\FEPYENRIRE
REEAE RS ERRASEYMENGTREE
BB - NEEBEIEN T HEEEERRERASE
EfBAR AECERBEARMAEIEEN
THbEEE 2 .

TREFIEE2021F12 A31 BiR B B S| D5
B AEE L E SRR LT ERM
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEwED (&)

Completed
GFA available Planned GFA Total land % of total
Property projects developed Number of for sale/ GFA under of future reserve of land reserve
by the Group's subsidiaries® projects  leasable GFA  development  development the Group  of the Group
ARAE/ hE5E
LA LSRGk AREE  AREELE EAIHEE
REENBARDFHRNNEERR FEHE CATREER BEER RUREEE IihRELEY  S30EAM

(in'sq.m.) (in'sq.m.) (in'sq.m.) (in'sq.m.)

(F7%) (F7%) (F7%) (F75k)

Anhui ZH Fuyang ) 1 - 559,302 - 559,302 6%
Hefe Alp 1 - 172,182 - 172,182 2%
Huangshan &l 1 - 92,349 - 92,349 1%
Wuhu & 3 - 568,184 - 568,184 6%
Guangde B 1 - 24,542 93,369 117,911 19%
Guangdong ER Guangzhou BN 1 - 183,371 631,314 814,685 8%
Huizhou 2 1 - 121,273 - 121,273 1%
Shunde JE® 1 - 46,956 124,821 17,7 2%
Guizhou S Panzhou BN 1 5,596 156,971 308,067 470,634 5%
Henan A Luoyang i 1 - 192,223 - 192,223 2%
Jiangsu PE Changshu B4 2 88 190,399 - 190,487 2%
Changzhou 2 9 45,462 354,769 86,718 486,949 5%
Funing EE 1 - 207,254 - 207,254 2%
Hal'an 8% 4 57,036 414,470 - 471,506 5%
Haimen bt 1 - 95,579 - 95,579 1%
Huai'an i3 2 - 553,181 - 553,181 6%
JngJiang B 1 - 183,015 - 183,015 2%
Lianyungang BE) 1 6,815 - - 6,815 0%
Nanjing BR 2 - 132,341 - 132,341 1%
Nantong HiE 3 63,465 81919 - 145,384 1%
Taixing *E 1 16,672 110,398 - 126,970 1%
Taizhou ZM 2 - 339,521 - 339,521 3%
Yancheng i 4 59,390 300,512 - 359,902 4%
Yixing i 1 - 188,878 - 188,878 2%
Yizheng B 1 s 147588 s 147,588 19%
Shanghai i Shanghai s 1 32,802 - - 32,802 1%
Sichuan m)l Chengdu s 1 = 144519 g 144519 1%
Zhejiang e Hangzhou M 1 19,245 - - 19,245 0%
Huzhou il 2 94,199 162,794 - 256,993 3%
Shaoxing g 2 - 410,506 - 410,506 4%
Yiwu %5 1 - 63,295 - 63,295 1%
Sub-total NGt 55 400,670 5,660,433 1,782,146 7,843,249 80%

Annual Report 2021
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwED (&)

Completed
GFA available Planned GFA Total land % of total
Property projects developed Number of for sale/ GFA under of future reserve of land reserve
by the Group's joint ventures® projects  leasable GFA  development  development the Group  of the Group
ARAE/ s 1]
ALY EGEE AREE  AREEL  EAIHRE
REERELEFRRNNEERY BREE CATREER BEER HRUREER DHRGERY  B3NESM
(insq.m.) (insq.m.) (insq.m.) (in'sq.m.)
(FAX) (FAX) (FAK) (FAX)
Jiangsu TE Changshu B3 2 80,814 180,870 - 261,684 3%
Haimen & 1 1,299 - - 1,299 0%
Nanjing R 1 - 181,571 - 181,571 2%
Nantong il 4 39,735 86,969 98,267 219,971 2%
Taixing Z8 1 73,807 - - 78,807 1%
Zhejiang il Huzhou A 3 11,758 - - 11,758 0%
Sub-total Nt 12 207,413 449,410 93,267 750,090 8%
Completed Total land % of total
GFA available Planned GFA reserve land reserve
Property projects held by the Group’s Number of for sale/ GFA under of future  attributable to attributable
associated companies® projects  leasable GFA  development  development our Group®™  to our Group
ARLE/ EASEERL
ARHED RGN ARER  AREEH G
rEEBE N RFHRNNEERR EREE CHIREER BEER SEUREER  IHEGREH0  SENESM
(insq.m,) (insq.m,) (insq.m,) (insg.m.)
(FAX) (FAX) (FAX) (FAX)
Jiangsu PE Changshu BH 1 16,033 - - 16,033 0%
Changzhou ZM 2 47,230 158,569 - 205,799 2%
Haimen hetis 1 8,014 - - 8,014 0%
Jiangyin Ik 1 - 216,451 - 216,451 2%
Lianyungang BEE 1 31,240 - - 31,240 0%
Rugao mz 1 2,856 - - 2,856 0%
Yancheng B 1 7919 - - 7919 0%
Yangzhou il 1 - 116,457 - 116,457 1%
Guangdong EX Guangzhou B 1 - - 648,340 648,340 %
Sub-total Nt 10 113,292 491,477 648,340 1,253,109 12%
Grand Total o 7 721,375 6,601,320 2,528,753 9,846,448 100%
F3R2021 2 3
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEwED (&)

The following table sets forth a summary of our property and project TREFEMOEHETEE MO FHEEIE R BASU
phases developed, including projects and project phases held for future T BIEEZE2021412 A31 B ERKRFEZERIA

developments as of 31 December 2021. B &IEHE Bg -
Property Projects Interest
Developed by the attributable to Actual/Estimated ~ Total Land
Group’s Subsidiaries  Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
AEENEAT B /it
RS L B HENE EEHR rEEEGER  BHEER BIRE LHEELY
(sqm) (sq.m)
(k) (B3K)
Anhui £
Fuyang Gang Long Mei Di Yun Zhu South Side of Runhe Road Under Development 5% 218,695 August-24 569,302
= BEENZL and East Side of Funan e UESf
Road, Yingzhou District,
Fuyang City, Anhui Province
ZHESHEmENRETY
LR
Hefei Chen Guang Ya Yuan Southwest of the Junction Under Development 60% 66,068 March-23 172,182
Al o il of Guohe West Road Fig 23834
and Zhanghuatai Road,
Shuangdun Town,
Changfeng County, Hefei
City, Anhui Province
THERETREEESE
ATAREEZARLN
il
Huangshan Gang Long Jun Wang North Side of Beihai Road, Under Development 70% 46,780 December-22 92,349
&1l BREZ Tunguang Town, Tunx FEm 2F12A
District, Huangshan City,
Anhui Province
RHEBELTERREAA
plaiciESIq ]
Wuhu Hu Shan Ying North to Fushan Road, Under Development 60% 132,596 September-22 300,491
iy LB South to Longtang FEm 2%9R

Road, West to Planning
Branch Road and East to
Longhu Road, Sanshan
District, Wuhu City, Anhui
Province
THEEATZILRLET
Wik - BERER - AR
MBI - RERM
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB AT ()
Property Projects Interest
Developed by the attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
Group's Subsidiaries ~ Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
REEHELR BB /thit
FrERMEER BB BENE BEAR rREEGEE  HEEE RIRH TiHRBEY
(sa.m) (sam)
(FAX) (FAX)
Shi Dai Tian Jiao South of Binhu Avenue, Under Development 100% 33,928 July-22 2,513
R AR West of Huolonggang g 2F7A
Road, Wuhu County,
Anhui Province
THEENEENAE
DA ERBRLAT
Shi Dai Tian Jiao Er Qi North of Binhu Avenue, Under Development 65% 65,176 October-23 175,180
BRERXE (ZH) South of Shuiyangjiang G 2310
Road, East of Baosha
Road, Wuhu County,
Anhui Province
ZHAENGER E
b KIS T3E AR -
ROBUR
Gang Long Xing He Ying Yaoshang Plot, Taiji Avenue, Under Development 100% 57,434 April-24 117,911
Hua Yuan Guangde City, Xuancheng ap 244
BEETRIE Clty, Anhui Province
THESHMEETABAR
B
Guangdong ER
Guangzhou Zeng Cheng Shi Tan West Side of Nanbei Under Development 60% 196,435 November-25 814,685
B g Avenue, Shitan Town, Figh 25%118
Zengcheng District,
Guangzhou City
BTEARRERR)
RERH
Huizhou Gang Long Zi Yu Huang Ting No. 9 Shangluo Road, Under Development 51% 30,507 September-22 121,273
U g P Chenjiang Street, FEH 20%9A
Huicheng District,
Huizhou City
BimEARRIGE
FRAGR
Shunde Foshan Shunde Project Plot on the west side of national  Under Development 100% 40,848 March-25 171,777
= BIlEEER highway 105 south of Shunde ~ 25%3A
Waterway, Lunjiao Street,
Shunde District Foshan City
FlTIEER RHEEIRE
KENE 105 R Bl
Guizhou BN
Panzhou Park Mansion Wetland Park District, Under Development 100% 116,101 May-22 470,634
B RMHR Panzhou Ciy, Guizhou R 2450
Province
BlagNTRLARAE
FR2021

BEPEGEREERAR
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD AT ()
Property Projects Interest
Developed by the attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
Group's Subsidiaries ~ Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
EEENELT B /it
RS L BB BELE BEAR rEEEGER  HEER BIRE LihEEEY
(sam) (sam)
(F7K) (FA%)
Henan bz
Luoyang Mansion Grand Intersection of Luoji Under Development 100% 9,168 June-23 192,223
3 Elkk Expressway and Chanhe ok 23%6A
Bridge, Chaoyang Town,
Mengjin County, Luoyang Gity
REmREGAREAE
REREETELZXD
Jiangsu &
Changshu Tang Yue Ming Zhu South Side of Tongjiang Under Development 35% 62,585 May-22 190,399
13 g Road and West Side of EE 2257
Taishan Road (currently
known as Yanghong
Road), Longteng District,
Changshu City
EAmERRERTHREN
E IR B
Xiang Yu Hua Ting No. 159 Hattang Road, Completed 100% 60,221 April-20 88
e Haiyu Town, Changshu Gty BT 204
BAMBEEERA150%
Yan Shan Ying 180 meters Northwest of Under Development 35% 61,021 December-22 163,484
HLg the Intersection of the A 2512
Side Road of Chengdong
Avenue and Jinhui Road,
Liyang City, Changzhou,
Jiangsu Province
THEENTERTHR
REHBRESERINA
B E180K
Changzhou Ganglong Bauhinia Residence  North Side of Dongfang Completed 100% 43510 November-14 9,468
Gl R Road and East Side BRI 14F115
of Huafeng Road,
Changzhou City, Jiangsu
Province
TEEBNTRA B
ZLRRA
Ganglong Hua Ting North Side of Xinggang Completed 100% 23,900 January-11 2,870
At Avenue and West Side of BET HE1A

Annual Report 2021
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Chahua Road, Zhonglou
District, Changzhou City,
Jiangsu Province
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEER W

Property Projects
Developed by the
Group’s Subsidiaries
REEHELR
FrERMEER

5270 47 (4&)

Projects

BB

Project Location

ERfE

Interest
attributable to
Project Status the Group

EEMR FEMEGRR

Site Area

HEER
(sq.m)
(FrK)

Total Land
Reserve

Actual/Estimated
completion date
BB /thit
BRIRY thREEY

(sqm)
(FAX)

Ganglong Shang Ceng
EERE

Long Chen Ming Zhu
ERHE

Long Yue Fu
3kl

The Hong Kong Masterpiece
e

Ziyu Mansion

e

Qin Hu Chun Qiu Hua Yuan
AR

North Side of Tongjiang
South Road, Zhonglou
District, Changzhou City,
Jiangsu Province

TEERNTEERR
TEEIA

West Side of Shuntong
Road and South Side of
Feng'an River, Economic
Development Zone,
Changzhou City

BNDEEREEIEES
- s

Land parcel situated at East
Side of Libal Road, South
Side of Baixing Road and
West Side of Limao Road,
Lijia Town, Wujin District

RERBEARARRA
EMARE BRI
i)}

West of Dongcheng Road
and North of Dongfang
No. 2 Road, Changzhou
City, Jiangsu Province

THERMRARIE
- yshat 0514

East Side of Shuntong
Road and South Side
of Gongyuan Road,
Economic Development
Zone, Changzhou City,
Jiangsu Province

LHERNTERE
JEBERE - REH A

East Side of Renmin Road,
North Side of Jiacheng Road,
Jiaze Town, Wjin District,
Changzhou

FNRERERRARN
R A

Completed 100%

AT

Under Development 40%
i

Completed 51%
B%RT

Completed 100%

BRI

Completed 100%

BRI

Under Development 50%
e

8,000

67,402

21,590

132,460

24,312

42,605

June-11

11565

5,049

Apri-23
23F4A

191,285

March-21
21%3A

July-20
20574

8,497

November-20
20F11A

3,386

May-23
23%5A

86,718

F #2021
BRETEMEREERAR



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEwED (&)

Property Projects Interest
Developed by the attributable to Actual/Estimated ~ Total Land
Group’s Subsidiaries  Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
REEHELR BB /thit
FrERMEER BB BELE BEAR rEEEGEE  HEEE BIRE LihEEEY
(sq.m) (sa.m)
(FAX) (FA%)
Funing Wen Lan Fu East Side of Shanghai Road Under Development 40% 67,454 June-25 207,254
BE ORI and South Side of Suzhou FEm 256
Road, Chengnan,
Funing Province
EEEHE A
REE MR
Hai'an Hanlin Capital No. 8 Hebin East Road, Completed 70% 57,633 December-21 57,036
a7 BIRER Hai'an City BRI 15F12A
BRI ERASH
Taoyuan Li South Side of Hebin East Road  Under Development 28% 49,314 August-22 159,692
D and West Side of Xin'an Road, B 20F8H
Hi-tech Zone, Hal'an,
Nantong City
BATERT AR
REMA - AR
Jun Wang Lang Ting South Side of Donghai Avenue  Under Development 35% 61,831 October-23 192,030
FERE and East Side of Ninghai g 2310
South Road, Hai'an City,
Jiangsu Province
IHEEZmREAERE
ZHEERG
Tian Cui Ge North Side of Huanghai Avenue,  Under Development 24% 23,960 July-23 62,747
REH West Side of Tongyu Road, B 237
Hai'an City, Jiangsu Province
TEEaRTEEAELA
BREE
Haimen Nature Image Intersection of Beijing Under Development 26% 47,078 June-22 95,579
8F R Middle Road and R 20467
Jianghai Road, Haimen
District, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province
TEHamETEMNRLR
HRETEARR XA
Huai'an Sunac Plaza West Side of Tianjin Road Under Development 26% 188,564 June-24 384,546
EZ BERE and South Side of Yan'an Bi%h 24F6A
East Road

RERAf - EZREEA
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwED (&)

Property Projects Interest
Developed by the attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
Group's Subsidiaries ~ Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
EEENELT BB /it
RS I BB BENE EAHRR rEEEGER  HEER RIRY Likkey
(sqm) (sqm)
(¥7K) (¥7K)
DongWangFu West Side of Tieyun Road Under Development 100% 50,476 November-23 168,635
RER and North Side of e 2F11A
Shanyang Avenue,
Huai'an City, Jiangsu
Province Su
TEHREETTREREN
WG AL
JingJiang Jun Yuan Ya Ju Land parcel 02 and 03, Under Development 34% 70,210 QOctober-23 183,015
B SERE North Sice of YongyiRoad, B 23105
Jingjiang City
BTmkakf02 - 0345
Lianyungang Jing Shan Xiu Shui South of Haining Road and Completed 100% 53,063 QOctober-19 6,815
EEH 2IIFK West of Yuzhou Road, BRI 19810
Haizhou District,
Lianyungang City
EEEMBNEEERR
BNER
Nanjing River of Mansion Land Parcel 01, South of Under Development 50% 28,188 January-22 48,825
[ A Puwu Road and West of fig prial:
Nanwan Street, Qiaclin
Town, Pukou District,
Nanjing City
BARmENRERERSH
DA - EERIIEO 1R
Tang Yue Fu North of Wenchang East Under Development 60% 28,483 November-23 83,516
FHF Road and West of FEH 23F11A
Hospital of TCM Hospitdl,
Yongyang Street, Lishui
District, Nanjing City,
Jiangsu Province
THEERTEKEKEE
EXERBIL  HER
i
Nantong Chen Yuan No. 399 Changjiang Road, Completed 51% 38,237 June-21 39,055
5 = Chengzhong Street, BAT 21%6A
Rudong County (Science
and Technology Innovation
Park of Hightech Zone)
RSP HERTR
3095 (BATERIAIE)

F #2021 29
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEwED (&)

Property Projects Interest
Developed by the attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
Group's Subsidiaries ~ Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
REEHELR BB /thit
FrERMEER BB BRfE BEAR rEEEGEE  HEEE BRIRY thREEY
(sqm) (sqm)
(FAX) (FA%)

Long Xi Hua Yuan Intersection of Xining Haiping Under Development 40% 35,723 May-23 81,919
RETE Highway and Jinshi Haiway, B 23557
Tongzhou District,
Nantong City
BRTENEESETRE
RERRRR
XiYue No. 399 Changjiang Road, Completed 51% 24,537 August-21 24,410
B Chengzhong Street, BT 21487
Rudong County (Science
and Technology Innovation
Park of Hightech Zone)
RS P ERTH399%
(BHEREIE)
Taixing Unique Summer Mansion South Side of Wenchang Under Development 33% 66,804 January-22 126,970
R HBRT EastRoadand WestSide 5%k 2F1A
of Ketai Road, Taixing City
RETERREH
BAEEE
Taizhou Hanlin Fu Huayuan West Side of Hailing South Under Development 60% 53,700 June-22 190,214
N BITIER Road and South Side of e 2056
Haijun Avenue, Medical
High-Tech Zone, Taizhou
City
RNTRERTRARENR
A BEAERE
Shang He Feng Hua Yuan West Side of Qingnian Road, Under Development 34% 67,035 January-24 149,307
FIREE North Side of Renmin East B+ UF1R
Road, Hailing District
BREEEREN
ARREILH
Yancheng Chun Xi Ji East Side of Fangong Road Under Development 51% 44,485 August-24 144,563
B BEE and North Side of G UESH
Wei'er Road, Economic
Development Zone,
Dongtai City, Jiangsu
Province
THERATABERERE
NSl
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEE W

Property Projects
Developed by the
Group’s Subsidiaries
REEHELR
FrERMEER

5270 47 (4&)

Projects

BB

Project Location

ERfE

Project Status

EERR

Interest
attributable to
the Group

FEMEGRR

Site Area

HEER
(sq.m)
(FrK)

Actual/Estimated
completion date
BB /thit
RIBH

Total Land
Reserve

TibfEAY
(sq.m)
(Frk)

Yixing
B

Yizheng
el

Shanghai
Shanghai
I

Sichuan
Chengdu
!

Ganglong Capital
EREN

Guan Tang Fu
BX

Jun Qi Hua Yuan
EHE

Gang Long Lakeside Mansion
ARl

Han Yuan

Bl

s
Shan Shui Shi Jian
Wik

)l
Ganglong-Midea-Wei Lai Ying
EREEAAR:

East of Jinhai Road and
South of Huanghai Road
(No. 77 Jinhai Road),
Xiangshui County,
Yancheng City

ERTEKELERR
BRRE (28R

No. 8 Yanzhen Road, Yandu
District, Yancheng City

B mESRETRR

East Side of Kaifang Avenue
and South Side of Dongjin
Road, Yannan Gaoxin District,
Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province

IHE B ERSHE
RHAERA - FERmEH

Opposite to the South Gate
of Dongjiao Garden C
Zone, Qiting Street, Yixing
City, Jiangsu Province
Lakeside Mansion

THLHEMIRSEE
RSEECERFHE
-4

North Side of Zhenzhou East

Road, East Side of Jiangcheng

Road, South Side of Wuyi
Huayuan, Yizheng City,
Jiangsu Province
TEEBEMENRALA -
THERE -

Lanhai Road, Chongming
District, Shanghai City
FETRREEER

Groups 2 and 4, Gemo
Community, Dongsheng
Street, Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province

BllERATERRR A E
EfRnR= - mA

Completed
B#T

Under Development

GG

Under Development

ZEG

Under Development
R

Under Development

g

Completed
BRT

Under Development

g

100%

34%

100%

60%

50%

55%

64,193

69,049

43,865

66,626

54,966

85,590

50,514

December-20
20F12A

March-22
20%3A

October-23
23%10A

January-23
2F1A

February-24
24520

June-21
21%6A

January-23
2F1A

388

59,002

155,949

188,878

147,588

32,802

144,519

F3R2021

BEPEGEREERAR



32

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEwED (&)

Property Projects
Developed by the
Group's Subsidiaries
REEHELR
FrERMEER BB

Projects Project Location Project Status

ERME EERR

Interest
attributable to
the Group

FEBEGRR

Site Area

HEERE
(sq.m)
(FrK)

Actual/Estimated
completion date
BB /thit
BIBH

Total Land
Reserve

HibREAY
(sq.m)
(F7%)

Zhejiang
Hangzhou

i

L
Qiu Shi Chen Yue
HERM

East to adjacent land,
South to Chonghang

Completed
BRI

26% 28,344

Street, West to Chongjin
Road and North to
Qiancun Port, Chongxian
Street, Yuhang District,
Hangzhou City (Lujiagiao
C-11 land parcel,
Chongxian New City)

T REEEGERE
B BERNE
BERMHE - LEAE
(REIMHEREC-1185)

No. 328 Qianwan Road,
Wuxing District, Huzhou City

WA REE A28

No. 1789, 1919, Shiquangjao
Road, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City

MNTREBRRER
1789% - 19195

Land parcel 39-1, North of
Shangyu City, Shaoxing

R EEHIL30-1R

Land parcel J6, Shangyu
Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Shaoxing

RRERERERER
Jottk

Southwest Side of the
Intersection of Zhuyang
Road and Wukang Road,
Niansanli Street, Yiwu
City, Zhejiang Province

HIEEEM = REELER
HRFARN AR

Huzhou Jiangnan Taoyuan
il LEHE

Under Development

GG

Zha Xi Taoyuan
EZHR

Under Development

G

Shaoxing Ganglong - Bo Yue Fu
L AR iR

Completed
BRI

Jun Wang Mei Ting
EERE

Under Development

GEG

Yiwu JiuXi Ying
%5 YR

Under Development

R

25%

25%

70%

50%

60%

73,231

176,013

80,568

92,923

19,633

December-20
20128

June-22
2564

September-24
24%9R

June-21
21%6A

May-23
23554

December-22
2F12A

19,245

45,672

211,321

129,611

280,99

63,295

Sub-total st
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

Property held by Interest
the joint ventures attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
of the Group Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
rEEAELE BB /thit
BElNE BB BELE BEAR rEEEGEE  HEEE RIRH TiHRBEY
(sqm) (sqm)
(FAX) (FAX)
Jiangsu ik
Changshu Shine Time South Side of Shenzhen Road, ~ Completed 50% 56,936 September-21 180,870
%3 BURE West Side of Nansha Road, 2T 21%9A
Changshu City
ERMAIBEN - AOH
[igi]
The Asia Mansion East of Green Belt, West Completed 33% 66,378 June-21 80,814
LEER of Planning Taishan BRI 21F6A
Road, South of Planning
Jinghai Road and North
of North Third Ring Road,
Changshu City
EAMBIENE 53
RIEIE - REEES
A =R
Haimen Run Yuan South of Nanjing Road, Completed 30% 63,285 November-19 1,299
el EE East of Jialingjiang Road, BRT 195114
Haimen District, Nantong
City, Jiangsu Province
IEERRTEMREREE
BIETHER
Nanjing Lan Wan Jiu Zhu Longrui Road, Liuhe District, Under Development 25% 60,138 March-23 181,571
3R Bens Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province ~ 2t 23%3A

(approximately 150 meters
north of Chengwang Qlinan
Garden)

TEERRT  ARERE
(BZrEmE R
41505%)

F #2021
BRETEMEREERAR
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

Property held by

the joint ventures

of the Group Projects
rEERELYE

BENNE BB

Project Location Project Status

FRME EERR

Interest
attributable to
the Group

FEBEGRR

Site Area

HEER
(sq.m)
(FrK)

Actual/Estimated
completion date
BB /thit
BIBH

Total Land
Reserve

HibREAY
(sq.m)
(FrK)

Nantong Metropolis
o}t fiie

Starry Bay

=N
B8k

Yunyue Heshan
el

The Garden of Time
FEtHIEE

Taixing Majestic Mansion
A il

Annual Report 2021
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North of Zhangyuan Road, Completed
South of Yanshou (West BT
of Hongxi Kindergarten),

Core Area of Yinhe New
District, Jinsha Town,
Tongzhou

BNEDERTHERD
B REBML EE
W (TR RERER)

Land parcel R2017-028, Completed
South Side of Jiangjing BET
Garden, West Side of
Hantong Road, Tongzhou
District, Nantong City

BRTEMNEERERR
TR{EERRIR2017-028
in ]

East of Fengyang Road, Completed
North of Hehuan Road, BRI
XiTong Science & Technology
Industrial Park,

Tongzhou District

BHREBNHERE
BERR  aE%

Groups 3, 4, 5 and 6 Section Under development
of Chengbei Communty, e
Chengbei Street, Rugao City

MR HER R
345 6iE

East Side of Zhenhai Road, Completed
North Side of Chengjiang BRI
Road, Taixing City

RETEERRA - HIR
plA]

13%

33%

20%

25%

33%

109,890

56,868

66,710

125,306

September-20
20594

September-19
19%9A

June-20
20F6A

October-23
2310

December-20

20512

18,179

13,223

8,333

180,236

73,807



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwED (&)

Property held by Interest
the joint ventures attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
of the Group Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
rEEAELE BB /thit
BElNE BB ERfE BEAR rEEEGEE  HEEE RIRH TiHRBEY
(sqm) (sqm)
(FAX) (FAX)
Zhejiang L
Huzhou Eastern Mansion Land parcel 2017-49, South Completed 60% 57,734 November-20 899
il AHARE unit, Taihu Lake Resort, A®T 205114
Huzhou City
ANKAERERET
201749505
Fontainbleau No. 188 Bianshan Avenue, Completed 49% 62,812 December-20 6,929
ANER Taihu Lake Resort, BHI 20512
Huzhou City
ANTARERRALAE
188%:
Taihu Mansion No. 76 Anju Road, Taihu Completed 49% 83,612 January-20 3,930
AHK# Lake Resort, Huzhou City BRI 20F1A
HNTANERERERTH
Sub-total NGt 931,396 750,090
F3R2021

BEPEGEREERAR
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEwED (&)

Property held by Interest
the associates attributable to Actual/Estimated ~ Total Land
of the Group Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
rEEHELT B /it
T b BB BELE BEAR rEEEGER  HEER BIRE LihEEEY
(sqm) (sqm)
(F7K) (FA%)
Jiangsu ik
Changshu Brown Stone Life South of Fuchunjiang Road and ~ Completed 25% 53,530 November-20 16,033
B BREZ North of Xiangehun Road, BRI 20F11A
Changshu
BABE IRADEERIL
Changzhou Peony Sanjiang Park Intersection of Tongjiang Completed 25% 135,330 September-21 47,230
Gl HAZILE Middle Road and Tianhe BRI 21595
Road, Xinbei District,
Changzhou City, Jiangsu
Province
IHAEN T ERT
MHRERARLIXA
Tianning Rong Yue Fu North Side of Zhenglujzi Completed 30% 53,936 October-21 158,569
RERUR Road, West Side of BRI 2110
Yingbin Road, Tianning
District, Changzhou City
BITREREEETH
BIAC R i
Haimen Romantic Bay Henan, Haimen District, Hexi, ~ Completed 30% 52,569 November-19 8,014
peti Bl Dongzhou, Nantong Cty, BRI 198118
Jiangsu Province
THEEEMENETE
RMAR
Jiangyin Leiden Town East Side of Xinyang Road Under Development 15% 203,609 March-22 216,451
il RE/A and South Side of Jiniu e 2F3A
South Road, Xingiao
Town, Jiangyin City
TETHBAMNEERE -
wAEREH
Lianyungang Feng Huang Yuan Zhu Haininggen South, Completed 20% 56,593 September-21 31,240
BE BEEZ Fenghuang Avenue BRI 15F9A
East, Haizhou District,
Lianyungang City
EEEMENREERR
BEAER
36 Annual Report 2021
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

Property held by Interest
the associates attributable to Actual/Estimated  Total Land
of the Group Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve
REEBELNT BB /thit
Tk BB BELE BEAR rEEEGEE  HEEE RIRY Likkey
(sqm) (sqm)
(FAX) (FAX)
Rugao Imperial Garden South of Fushou East Road, Completed 30% 43,601 March-20 2,856
fng EAHE East of Xianhe Road, BRI 20%3A
North of Jigfang Road
and West of Lvyang
Road, Rucheng Street
EEEESRANE
IBSBAAR - BRAER
b~ ARSI
Yancheng Jun Yue Fu Group 7, Beilin Completed 20% 99,663 July-19 7,919
& B Community Residents BRI 19877
Committee, Tinghu
Economic Development
Zone, Yancheng City
EmEMEERER
I RERZEEHA
Yangzhou Kai Chen Yuan West of Laoyangwei Road, Under Development 24% 57,548 January-23 116,457
BN FRE Fast of Yunhe South Road,  fEéeh %1 A
North of Huangcheng East
Road and South of Guiyu
Square, Yangzhou City,
Jiangsu Province

THERNTERTRIAE
ETERUR - BHRE
Wi EFERIURE

F #2021
BRETEMEREERAR
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

Property held by Interest

the associates attributable to Actual/Estimated ~ Total Land

of the Group Projects Project Location Project Status the Group Site Area  completion date Reserve

REEBELNT BB /thit

BENNE BB BRfE BEAR rEEEGEE  HEEE BRIRY thREEY

(sq.m) (sq.m)

(FAX) (FAX)

Guangdong ER

Guangzhou Huangpu Project Wangcun Vilage, Longhu Held for future 20% 170455 Tobe assessed 648,340

EM ERIER Street, Huangpu District, development BHE

Guangzhou City HERREE
BN ESRENGEER

Sub-total it 926,724 1,253,109

Grand total @ 5,473,808 9,846,448

Notes: BtsE -

(1)  Total land reserve equals to the sum of (i) the total GFA available for
sale and total leasable GFA for completed properties; (i) total GFA for
properties under development and (i) total GFA for properties held for

future development.

(2)  For projects developed by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associated companies, 100% of total GFA are accounted for the

respective project.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEENBERE

Board of Directors

Our Board consists of 8 Directors, of whom 3 are executive Directors,
2 are non-executive Directors and 3 are independent non-executive
Directors. Our Board is responsible for and has general powers for the
management and conduct of our business.

Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Ming (& BA), aged 59, is one of the executive Directors, one of
the founders of the Group, chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Group. He is responsible for formulating and overviewing
the strategic planning of the Group. Since the establishment of the
Group, he has over 14 years of experience in the property development
industry. He has also served as a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Lui manages and operates
the business in Kin Hing Hong Textiles Limited, a company principally
engaged in trading of textile product from March 1993 to June 2005 as
a director. He was appointed an executive Director on 8 October 2018.

Mr. Lui completed EMBA courses in Nanjing University of Science and
Technology in Nanjing in 2013.

Mr. Lui is the younger brother of Mr. Lui Wing Mau and Mr. Lui Wing
Nam, both non-executive Directors, and the uncle of Mr. Lui Chi Chung
Jimmy and Mr. Lui Jin Ling, both executive Directors.

BT

EXgmsRESMAN  HP3RR/UITES 24
RIFRATEFURSERBIIFNTES - EFE
BENHA —RENERMFARERS -

HITES

BEAKE 595  AEP—RBHNITES - A&
BEF—ZBPA  EBSIERAEEITERE
HoWAEEFTNAEAEENREEE - 8
REEKIUR - B EEREHEREITERS
B1AFER - BRENEALEZEWE R EM
EE o RAIPIALEER - 254 E1993F3AE
20056 AN EFRITHBMAR AR (—HEZER]
EHBRBINRR)NEEENETENEEE
% o HN2018F10 ASEELZ T AMITES °

B S ER2013F £/ RS R 3 T KEEMBA
AR o

BEERBNREEEBKFEEE (B RIFNTE
B)NEE  aTREERAEREE(OR/RT
BR)MMR -

F3R2021
BETEBEEEERAR
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREERNEESEA)

Mr. Lui Jin Ling (B35), aged 39, is one of the executive Directors
and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing
the cost planning and management functions of the Group. Prior to
founding the Group, Mr. Lui joined Kin Hing Hong Textiles Limited
in April 2006 as a marketing manager and was responsible for its
daily operation and marketing; and he remained involved in customer
relationship management on part-time basis since shifting his business
focus to the Group in July 2007. Since the establishment of the Group,
Mr. Lui has over 14 years of experience in the property development
industry. Mr. Lui has also served as a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group. He was appointed an executive Director on 8 October 2018.

Mr. Lui studied Computer Engineering at the University of California,
Irvine from January 2004 to March 2005.

Mr. Lui is the son of Mr. Lui Wing Mau, a non-executive Director, the
nephew of Mr. Lui Wing Nam, a non-executive Director and Mr. Lui
Ming, the chairman of the Board and executive Director, and the cousin
of Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy, an executive Director.

Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy (2 7%88), aged 41, is one of the executive
Directors and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible
for overseeing the risk management functions of the Group. Prior to
founding the Group, Mr. Lui joined Kin Hing Hong Textiles Limited from
January 2005 as a marketing manager and was responsible for its
daily operation and marketing; and he remained involved in customer
relationship management on part-time basis since shifting his business
focus to the Group in July 2007. Since the establishment of our Group,
Mr. Lui has over 14 years of experience in the property development
industry. Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy has served as the director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He was appointed an executive Director on 8
October 2018.

Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration in
January 2005 from Chapman University in the United States of America.

Mr. Lui is the son of Mr. Lui Wing Nam, a non-executive Director, the
nephew of Mr. Lui Wing Mau, a non-executive Director and Mr. Lui
Ming, the chairman of the Board and executive Director, and the cousin
of Mr. Lui Jin Ling, an executive Director.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEERNEBERE(A)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Wing Mau (2K %), aged 69, is one of our non-executive
Directors and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for
advising on strategy and overall development of the Group. Prior to
founding the Group, Mr. Lui manages and operates the business in Kin
Hing Hong Textiles Limited, a company principally engaged in trading
of textile products, from March 1993 to June 2005 as a director and
remained responsible for the overall business strategy and business
direction thereafter. He was appointed as a Director on 8 October 2018
and was appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019.

Mr. Lui completed his secondary education in the PRC in the 1960s.

Mr. Lui is the father of Mr. Lui Jin Ling, an executive Director, the elder
brother of both Mr. Lui Ming, the chairman of the Board and executive
Director and Mr. Lui Wing Nam, a non-executive Director, and the uncle
of Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy, an executive Director.

Mr. Lui Wing Nam (& k), aged 66, is one of the non-executive
Directors and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for
advising on strategy and overall development of the Group. Prior to
founding the Group, Mr. Lui manages and operates the business in Kin
Hing Hong Textiles Limited, a company principally engaged in trading
of textile products, from March 1993 to June 2005 as a director and
remained responsible for the overall business strategy and business
direction thereafter. He was appointed as a Director on 8 October 2018
and was appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019.

Mr. Lui completed his secondary education in the PRC in the 1970s.

Mr. Lui is the father of Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy, an executive Director,
the elder brother of Mr. Lui Ming, chairman of the Board and an
executive Director, the younger brother of Mr. Lui Wing Mau, a non-
executive Director and the uncle of Mr. Lui Jin Ling, an executive
Director.

FHITES

BAKERE 695 BEHP—RIENTEER
REBER—ZEIPA - FEAERAEERE X
BREEREEERER - REAEER - 2k4El
199343 A 2200556 A R EEITH ki B R A 7
(—HEEREHBRESINRRUESFNHE
BREEER e EAEREBEBRBRE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREERNEESEA)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Guo Shaomu (2844X), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2020. He is responsible for providing
independent advice to the Board. He is also a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee, and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Board.

Mr. Guo has over 13 years of experience in investment banking in
Hong Kong. From February 2000 to February 2001, Mr. Guo worked
in Salomon Smith Barney, an investment bank principally engaged
in providing financial services (then an investment banking arm of
Citigroup Inc.), where he served as an associate and he was primarily
responsible for supporting the marketing and execution efforts of the
China team. From March 2001 to September 2005, Mr. Guo worked in
HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited, an investment bank principally engaged
in providing financial services, where his last position is an associate
director and he was primarily responsible for the execution of China-
related transactions. From October 2005 to April 2007, Mr. Guo worked
in J.P. Morgan Investment Banking Asia, an investment bank principally
engaged in providing financial services, where his last position was
executive director in Investment Banking Coverage/Merger & Acquisition
Department and he was primarily responsible for marketing efforts
covering the real estate sector in China. From April 2007 to April
2013, Mr. Guo worked in the real estate team of Morgan Stanley Asia
Limited, an investment bank principally engaged in providing financial
services, where his last position is a managing director in the Investment
Banking Division and he was one of the key members responsible for
the business in the real estate sector in the Greater China region. Mr.
Guo has been an independent non-executive director of Yida China
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3639), a real estate developer in the PRC since,
June 2014, an independent non-executive director of Fantasia Holdings
Group Co., Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1777), a real estate developer in the PRC since,
February 2015, and an independent non-executive Director of Sunkwan
Properties Group limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code 6900), a real estate developer in the PRC
since October 2020. Since August 2021, Mr. Guo has served as an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai HeartCare Medical
Technology Corporation Limited (a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6609), a Chinese biotechnology
company.

Mr. Guo obtained his Bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering
from Zhejiang University in July 1989, a Master’s degree in computer
engineering from the University of Southern California in May 1993
and a Master’s degree in business administration from the School of
Management of Yale University in May 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEERNEBERE(A)

Ms. Tang Lo Nar (B8 ), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2020. She is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. She is also a member of the
audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board.

Ms. Tang has over 26 years of experience in accounting, tax, audit,
company secretarial and finance. She began her career by joining Ernst
& Young, an international accounting firm in September 1995 where she
last served as a Senior Staff Accountant Il. Ms. Tang then joined KPMG
Tax Limited, an international tax service provider in March 2001, where
she was involved in a wide range of tax compliance and advisory tasks
and left in August 2004 as a Tax Manager. Ms. Tang began her own
business by establishing TLN Co., Ltd. in Hong Kong in August 2004
to provide accounting, management consultancy, tax planning and
company secretarial services. Ms. Tang was the company secretary of
two Hong Kong Main Board listed companies, namely Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 899) and Karce International Holdings
Company Limited (currently known as Starlight Culture Entertainment
Group Limited) (stock code: 1159), for the periods from December 2008
to April 2010 and from January 2009 to April 2010 respectively. She
was then the company secretary of Yueshou Environmental Holdings
Limited (currently known as China Gem Holdings Limited) (stock
code:1191), which is principally engaged in the provision of financial
service, from March 2012 to October 2014. Ms. Tang also took up the
role as the company secretary of ISP Global Limited (stock code: 8487)
from September 2018 to March 2021, a company principally engaged
in the sale of sound and communication systems and related services
since September 2018. Ms. Tang joined Shuanghua Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1241), a China-based company principally engaged in the
manufacture and sales of auto air-conditioner parts and components,
since May 2011 as the chief financial officer and the company secretary,
and she was re-elected as an executive director in June 2015.

Ms. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 1995. She further obtained
a master degree in English for the professions from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and another master degree in applied finance
from University of Western Sydney in November 2002 and September
2004 respectively. She is a Fellow of the Association of chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREERNEESEA)

Mr. Chan Pak Hung (& #&78), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 February 2022. He is
responsible for providing independent advice to the Board. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Board.

Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in corporate finance,
compliance, auditing, and company secretarial fields. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of JLogo Holdings Limited, the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8527), and the company secretary of Shanghai Dongzheng Automotive
Finance Co., Ltd., a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liability with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2718). Mr. Chan had been a manager of the
listing division of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and has
worked in international accounting firms.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of Business Administration (Professional
Accountancy) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2002.
He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a CFA charterholder of the CFA Institute.

Senior Management

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management
of our business. The biography of each of our senior management
member is set out below.

Mr. Xie Jianqing (#®]3), aged 60, is the executive president of
our Group. He joined our Group in August 2007. He is responsible
for overseeing our administration and human resources management
function of our Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a researcher at the Fujian
Institute of Tropical Crops* (1228 &S 1EYFIEZMZTAT), an institute
under the agricultural department of Fujian province, which specializes
in the research of tropical and subtropical crops from August 1983 to
March 1993. He was the executive director, legal representative and
majority shareholder of Zhangzhou Qingya Garden Development Co.,
Ltd. (&N & s EME AR A A]) until 2016, a company which was
principally engaged in landscape engineering.

Mr. Xie obtained Bachelor of Agriculture, with a specialization in
Horticulture from Fujian College of Agriculture* (&7 2 £p%) in July
19883.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEERNEBERE(A)

Mr. Xie is the younger cousin of Mr. Lui Wing Mau, Mr. Lui Wing Nam
and the elder cousin of Mr. Lui Ming.

Mr. Dai Xiaofeng (& /) g), aged 42, is one of the vice-presidents of
our Group, and has been with our group since May 2018. Mr. Dai is
responsible for overseeing the project operation of the Group.

From August 2002 to October 2004, Mr. Dai was an assistant engineer
at China Construction Eighth Division Installation Co., Ltd.* (FEZN\BZ%
# A7), a construction contractor. From October 2004 to May 2016,
Mr. Dai worked in Jiangsu Changfa Property Group Co., Ltd.* (&5 %
ESEBEAFR AR, his last position was president of Jiangsu Changfa
Property Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Dai then worked at Zhongnan Real Estate
Jinan Co.* (F & &b Er %15 A 7)), a company which is principally
engaged in property development, from May 2016 to April 2018, as a
regional president.

Mr. Dai completed a three-year vocational course from Nanjing Tech
University (fF 5= T3 A2 in June 2002 majoring in Building Equipment
Installation and Management. Mr. Dai further obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering in January 2012 from Southeast University
(BRI KE2). He is enrolled EMBA outreach program at Nanjing University
since October 2018. He held the Engineer qualification issued by the
Human Resource and Social Security Bureau of Changzhou (/)N A
HEBRMAERERD) since September 2011,

Mr. Wang Guozhen (E£E]E), aged 43, is one of the vice-presidents
of our Group and he is primarily responsible for overseeing the project
design and management functions of the Group. He joined the Group in
March 2013.

Mr. Wang over 16 years’ experience in structural engineering. From
August 2001 to March 2011, Mr. Wang was a structural designer at the
Wuxi Architectural Design and Research Institute* (#8511 @258k 5T
7ebi BPR & fFA 7)), an architectural design institute. From April 2011 to
February 2013, Mr. Wang worked as the Structural manager at Jiangsu
Changfa Property Group Co., Ltd.* (T E 3 EEBGR A 7).

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering (Building
Engineering) from Southeast University (38 & A £) in June 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREERNEESEA)

Mr. Zhu Hui (5:48), aged 38, is one of the vice-presidents of our Group
and he is primarily responsible for overseeing our sales and marketing
function of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2019.

Mr. Zhu has more than 12 years of experience in sales and marketing.
He joined Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co., Ltd.* (T &k F i
HEBRM AR AT in May 2008 and left in April 2019 as vice-general
manager at marketing department, which is a company principally
engaged in real estate sector and the shares of which are listed at
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000961). Before joining our
Group, Mr. Zhu worked at Hongyang Group Nantong Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.* GARZ S E R BEHE B R A R)) as assistant general manager from
March 2019 to July 2019.

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in marketing from Jimei University
(A in July 2005.

Mr. Lam Yu Tin Eugene (#fH), aged 44, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Group and is mainly responsible
for overseeing the corporate finance, financial reporting, compliance
and company secretarial matters of the Group. He joined the Group in
October 2018.

Mr. Lam has over 22 years of experience in accounting and finance.
From September 1999 to March 2003, he worked in the Assurance &
Business Advisory Services Department of PricewaterhouseCoopers, an
international accounting firm. From May 2003 to March 2008, he worked
as senior financial positions, namely finance manager and financial
controller in various Hong Kong listed companies including Techwayson
Holdings Limited (now known as China Uptown Group Company
Limited) (stock code: 2330), Pacific Century Premium Developments
Limited (stock code: 432) and Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited (now
known as China Oceanwide Holdings Limited) (stock code: 715). From
April 2008 to August 2017, he worked in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited where his last position is assistant vice-president in
Compliance & Monitoring, Listing & Regulatory Affairs Division. Before
joining the Group, he worked in Huarong Investment Stock Corporation
Limited (former stock code: 2277), a financial asset management
company in the PRC, where his last position was the deputy director of
Business Monitoring Department.

Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree in business administration and a
Master’s degree in business administration, both from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1999 and 2005 respectively. He
is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2003 and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since November 2007.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEERNEBERE(A)

Mr. Law Siu Wo (£ ), aged 59, is the senior vice-president of the
Group and is mainly responsible for overseeing the treasury functions
and investor relations of the Group. He joined the Group in March 2021.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law worked in various listed companies,
including Fosun International Limited (stock code: 656.HK), Yida China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3639.HK) and KWG Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1813.HK) in their financial management roles.
Before that, he also worked for an international accounting firm and
a private equity fund for a number of years. Mr. Law has a total of 30
years of experience in accounting, finance and investment.

Mr. Law has been admitted as member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 1991. Mr. Law received his bachelor’s degree
in business administration at the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater
in 1985 and a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of California — Los Angeles in 1994.

Mr. Cheung Hung Kwong (3R 3£), aged 54, is one of the vice-
presidents of the Group and he is primarily responsible for formulation of
corporate finance and financial strategy and investor relations. He joined
the Group in May 2020.

Mr. Cheung has over 26 years of experience in auditing, financial
accounting, initial public offerings, merger and acquisitions, corporate
finance activities and investor relations. Mr. Cheung joined the assurance
and business advisory services department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
in July 1994 and left as a manager in the corporate finance and recovery
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers in March 2003. From March
20083 to March 2008, Mr. Cheung served in Boto Company Limited,
a festival product manufacturing company, and held various positions
including chief financial officer and consultant. Mr. Cheung joined Kaisa
Group Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1638.HK) in July 2008 as the finance
director, and for the period from November 2009 to December 2014,
Mr. Cheung served as its chief financial officer, company secretary
and joint authorised representative. From January to March 2017, Mr.
Cheung served in Culture Landmark Investment Limited (stock code:
674.HK) as the company secretary and chief financial officer. From
March 2017 to March 2020, Mr. Cheung served in Harvest Property
Holdings Limited, a China-based property developer, and held various
positions including chief financial officer, vice president, joint authorised
representative and company secretary.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREERNEESEA)

Since December 2011, Mr. Cheung has been an independent non-
executive director, and is the chairman of the audit committee, of China
Aluminium International Engineering Corporation Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2068) and
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601068).

Mr. Cheung was admitted as a member of the AICPA in August 1996.
He was designated as a Chartered Financial Analyst by the Association
for Investment Management and Research in the United States of
America in September 2000. Mr. Cheung obtained his bachelor’s
degree in science from the University of Hong Kong in December 1990
and his master’s degree (distinction) in quantum fields and fundamental
forces from Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine,
University of London in January 1992.
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Directors’ Report

ESHE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Company Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 October
2018 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”)
were listed on the Stock Exchange since 15 July 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC are primarily engaged in the development of real
estate projects in the PRC.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue and net results for the year by principal activities is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, could be found in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions form
part of this directors’ report.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.

The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity
to our staff, provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings
and development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfilment in their
positions.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEHmE(E)

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers and provide the products in a way that satisfy needs and
requirements of the customers. The Group enhances the relationship by
continuous interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing
market demand for the products so that the Group can respond
proactively. The Group has also established procedures in place for
handling customers’ complaints to ensure customers’ complaints are
dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. We reinforce business partnerships
with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication in a proactive
and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely delivery.

Further details of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on
the Group can be found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on page 101 to 122 of this annual report. Those discussions
form part to this directors’ report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been included in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on page 101 to 122 of
this annual report. Those discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividend
The consolidated financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out on pages 132 to 279 of this annual report.

During the year, a final dividend of RMBO0.18 per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020, amounting to approximately RMB293
million, was declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEHE(E)

Dividend Policy
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
details of which are disclosed as follows:

Purpose

This Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

Principles and guidelines

The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders of
the Company, subject to the Articles of the Association of the Company
(the “Articles”) and all applicable laws and regulations, taking into
account the factors set out below:

° financial results;

° cash flow situation;

° business conditions and strategies;

° future operations and earnings;

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;

° interests of shareholders;

° taxation considerations;

° any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment
of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Review of the Dividend Policy
The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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Annual General Meeting and Closure of the

Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2022 AGM

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “2022 AGM”) is
scheduled to be held on Thursday, 26 May 2022. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 23 May 2022
to Thursday, 26 May 2022, both days inclusive, during which period
no share transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 20 May 2022.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 280 of this annual report.

Principal Subsidiaries
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEHE(E)

Reserves

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statements of changes in equity and Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

The Company may pay dividends out of share premium, retained
earnings and any other reserves provided that immediately following the
payment of such dividends, the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to RMB1,557 million (2020: RMB2,067 million).

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings from Bank and Other Financial
Institutions

Details of borrowings from bank and other financial institutions of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Loan and Guarantee

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not made
any loan or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to
the Directors, senior management, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (“Controlling Shareholders”) or their respective associates
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)).
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Purchase, Redemption or Sale of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, the Group repurchased an aggregate of 3,914,000
ordinary Shares at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$16,032,225 on the Stock Exchange as follows:

BE BEIHEAQTNLD

RER - NEERERZFTEER A $£3,914,0000 %
B - BETRB A 516,032,225 0T + SEIBIAS ¢

No. of Shares Total

repurchased Consideration

S E R 5 Consideration per share Paid

Date of Repurchase $BE A8 #E BRAE B8R E
Highest HK$ Lowest HK$ HK$

mEATT RIEAET BT

5 November 2021 202111 A5H 803,000 4.2700 4.1300 3,366,390
8 November 2021 202111 A8H 110,000 4.0900 4.0900 449,900
9 November 2021 202111 A9H 120,000 4.1800 4.1100 499,704
15 November 2021 202111 A15H 90,000 4.1600 4.1600 374,400
18 November 2021 2021411 A418H 809,000 4.0800 4.0000 3,268,117
22 November 2021 202111 A22H 45,000 4.0900 4.0900 184,050
23 November 2021 2021411 A23H 50,000 4.1100 4.1100 205,500
1 December 2021 2021F12A31H 50,000 4.1500 4.1500 207,500
9 December 2021 2021F12A9H 391,000 4.1000 4.0500 1,595,436
10 December 2021 202112 4108 421,000 4.0600 4.0400 1,705,008
13 December 2021 202112 A413H 200,000 4.1200 4.1200 824,000
15 December 2021 202112 A415H 511,000 4.0600 4.0600 2,074,660
17 December 2021 202112 A17H 300,000 4.0700 4.0700 1,221,000
20 December 2021 2021812 A20H 14,000 4.0400 4.0400 56,560
Total et 3,914,000 16,032,225

The Board considers that the share repurchases were in the best

interests of the Company and its shareholders and would lead to an
enhancement of the net assets value per share and/or earnings per
share of the Company. All the abovementioned repurchased shares
were cancelled during the year.

On 1 December 2021, the Company redeemed the outstanding
US$23,300,000 13.5% 2021 Senior Notes at maturity, in full at their
principal amount together with interest accrued to maturity date and
such senior notes were cancelled and delisted from the SGX.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
or other listed securities during the year.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Global Offering

and the Issue of the Over-Allotment Shares

The net proceeds from the Listing amounted to HK$1,611.7 million
after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other
listing expenses borne by the Company. The Company had fully used
the proceeds raised from the Global Offering in accordance with its
development strategies, market conditions and intended use of such
proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2020 (the
“Prospectus”).

An analysis of the planned usage of the net proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus and the actual utilization of the net proceeds for the period
from the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report are set out as
below:

BRI E

BRAIRH S S (AR TEMR T T ERE)
EA T REWEARWEN G - AT ARAE
L PIMR AR TIRE B3R -

ERBERHITHRERERD A
SRR FENARE

ENBARTRRROOEBE « BRI -
MEE % - LG RAFEA61TEES
T o ARFRRBEBERFR « THHRARA
AEIHEIR202056 20 AR ER ([HBRE
B )[R A B RFTSHIEMS | — B HRRATER
AR R ERD A2 R E BRI -

SHRERMMAMSHRIEFENTERE - £h
BRI = AFERE B HMETIRFENER
PRERIMET

Actual use of

Intended net proceeds as at
Business objective as stated Percentage of use of net the date of
in the Prospectus total net proceeds proceeds this annual report Proceeds unused
REEREAH
FRSRIEEH FRSFEREMN
BRERMELEE 1k B8 SR IE R LL 6 REMRZ BERAZ REVAFRSRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
To fund land costs of potential 60% 967,020 967,020 -
development projects
ABERBIEE LA AREES
To finance the construction costs 30% 483,510 483,510 =
for the development of our
existing projects
BNIRBIE R B MERKE
General working capital 10% 161,170 161,170 =
—REEES
FR2021
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lui Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lui Jin Ling

Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lui Wing Mau
Mr. Lui Wing Nam

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Hung (appointed on 11 February 2022)
Mr. Guo Shaomu

Ms. Tang Lo Nar

Mr. Wan Ho Yin (resigned on 11 February 2022)

Biographical Details of the Directors and the
Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 39 to
48 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Lui Ming, Mr. Lui Jin Ling and Mr Lui Chi Chung Jimmy,
being the executive Directors, has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date.

Each of Mr. Lui Wing Mau and Mr. Lui Wing Nam, being the non-
executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date.

Each of Mr. Guo Shaomu and Ms. Tang Lo Nar, being the independent
non-executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date. Mr. Chan Pak Hung, being an independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing from 11 February 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with any member of the Group (excluding agreements expiring or
determinable by any member of the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

Contracts With Controlling Shareholders

Other than disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in this annual report, no contract of significance was entered
into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at
the end of the year.

Director’s Interest in Transactions, Arrangement

or Contract of Significance

Other than disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or any entity
connected with such a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Compensation of Directors and Senior
Management

The emoluments (including the discretionary bonuses) of the Directors
and senior management of the Group are decided by the Board
with reference to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme as incentive
for Directors and eligible employees. Details of the said scheme are set
out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual
report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2021, by the Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than being a
director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

Continuing Disclosure Obligations Pursuant to
the Listing Rules

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

Deed of Non-Competition

On 20 June 2020, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered into a
deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favor
of the Company, pursuant to which, among other things, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken,
jointly and severally given certain non-competition undertakings to
the Company. Details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in
the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders
and non-competition undertaking — Deed of Non-competition” in the
Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31 December
2021. The independent non-executive Directors were delegated with
the authority to review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the relevant undertakings and were not aware of any
non-compliance of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Management Contracts

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters
as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ service contracts”
in this annual report, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or in existence as at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Material Legal Proceedings
The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Share Option Scheme

On 20 June 2020, the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) which falls within the
ambit of, and is subject to, the regulations under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
selected participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage selected participants to work towards
enhancing the value of our Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and shareholders as a whole. The Share Option Scheme wiill
provide the Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
selected participants.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the shares commence
on the Stock Exchange, such 10% limit represents 160,000,000 shares,
but excluding any shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the
over-allotment option.

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Group to each selected participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12 months period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue.
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period
of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date, but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required
in accordance with the provisions of the rules of the Share Option
Scheme.

The amount payable for each share to be subscribed for under an
option in the event of the option being exercised shall be determined
by the Board but shall be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2021 and there were no outstanding share options under
the Share Option Scheme during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2021.

Any individual, being an employee, director (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors), officer, consultant, advisor, distributor, contractor, customer,
supplier, agent, business partner, joint venture business partner or
service provider of any member of our Group or any affiliate who the
Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to our Group is entitled to be offered and
granted options. However, no individual who is resident in a place where
the grant, acceptance or exercise of options pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme is not permitted under the laws and regulations of such
place or where, in the view of the Board or its delegate(s), compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in such place makes it necessary or
expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible to be offered or granted
options.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set
out in the section headed “Statutory and General Information — E.
Other Information — 12. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Prospectus.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or Its

Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise required, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
are set out below:

Interests in Shares of the Company

EERBESITRAERRKRS -~
B REER 2R AR

R2021F12A31H » ARAREERESTRAER
RARRRETMEEEZE (TR EHFRPE
EBIEXVER) MR - BERGD REEFTES
RIEE S RS G0 ) E35216/BrE AL IEFTE 8
ZafMagEmssk s - HIREGZESTANEBA

RATBIRAD 2 =

Number of Shares
or underlying

ARR R P OARIAT

Approximate
percentage of

Director/Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of Interest Sharesiete)  shareholding®ote 1)
IR A7 Sk AR B FREA
EE BRTHRAER B EEME IR B 8 (e B 7 b
Mr. Lui Ming Interest in controlled corporation 504,000,000 (L)Note2) 30.95%
=A% AE Rt EEE R (Hir2)
Interest of spouse 10,437,000 (L)Note 5) 0.64%
fo B s (HiEs)
Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy Interest in controlled corporation 396,000,000 (L)Note3) 24.29%
BERE A Rt EEE R (PE3)
Mr. Lui Wing Nam Interest in controlled corporation 396,000,000 (L)Neted) 24.29%
BIKEEE Rt EEE R (#E3)
Interest of spouse 10,437,000 (L)Note5) 0.64%
BB s (HiEs)
Beneficial owner 2,613,000 0.16%
EmEE A
Mr. Lui Jin Ling Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 (L)Note4) 18.42%
Bt Rt EEE R (4
Mr. Lui Wing Mau Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 (L)Note 4) 18.42%
Bk S A RESEEE R (fiz4)
Interest of spouse 10,437,000 (L)Note 5) 0.64%
BB HEZS (fsxs)
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Notes:

1)

As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 1,628,541,000 Shares.
The letter (L) denotes the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.

These 504,000,000 Shares are held by Huaxing Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Huaxing”), a BVI business company incorporated in the BVI and
wholly-owned by Mr. Lui Ming. Mr. Lui Ming is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by Huaxing for the purpose of SFO.

These 396,000,000 Shares are held by Hualian Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Hualian”), a BVI business company incorporated in the BVI
and owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Lui Wing Nam and Mr. Lui Chi
Chung Jimmy respectively. Therefore, Mr. Lui Wing Nam and Mr. Lui
Chi Chung Jimmy are each deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Hualian for the purpose of SFO.

These 300,000,000 Shares are held by Hualong Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Hualong”), a BVI business company incorporated in the BVI
and owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Lui Jin Ling and Mr. Lui Wing
Mau respectively. Therefore, Mr. Lui Jin Ling and Mr. Lui Wing Mau are
each deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Hualong for the
purpose of SFO.

These 10,437,000 Shares are held by Kin Hing Kong Textiles Limited
(“Kin Hing Hong”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and owned
as to 33.36% by Ms. Chan Mei Kam (spouse of Mr. Lui Ming), 33.32%
by Ms. Wong Sau Suet (spouse of Mr. Lui Wing Nam) and 33.32% by
Ms. Wong Kwai Fa (spouse of Mr. Lui Wing Mau).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had, or were deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations,
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ T EREREMA THAD TR
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and R HBERMD ZEEZRAE
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Company, as M2021F12 318 » BARRQRIFAAA T AL (A
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under NAEFHmBITRABRIN AR B A8
section 336 of the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or IR E B IR IB(GES R EIE &0 YE336{F/BE A
chief executive of the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the R PTIE R B 2 5% R A FHERS -

Shares or underlying Shares:

Number of Shares Approximate
or underlying percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Sharesiete)  shareholding®ote 1)
IR A% AR B HFREA
REME ERME IR A7 B & (e B2 e
Ms. Chan Mei Kam Interest in a controlled corporation®ote2) 10,437,000 (L) 0.64%
BREZ L+ R A E R e
Interest of spouseMote3) 504,000,000 (L) 30.95%
i (2 hE 2% (Hi33)
Ms. Wong Sau Suet Interest in a controlled corporation®ete2) 10,437,000 (L) 0.64%
BAELL BRI A B o 2
Interest of spouseMote4) 398,613,000 (L) 24.48%
BB A 25 (oiza)
Ms. Wong Kwai Fa Interest in a controlled corporation®ote2) 10,437,000 (L) 0.64%
=L S A E e ()
Interest of spouseiotes) 300,000,000 (L) 18.42%
BB e 25 (is)
Huaxing Beneficial owner 504,000,000 (L) 30.95%
i BmEAA
Hualian Beneficial owner 396,000,000 (L) 24.32%
R BEmfEA A
Hualong Beneficial owner 300,000,000 (L) 18.42%
FE BEnEBA
F3R2021 63
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Notes:

1)

As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 1,628,541,000 Shares.
The letter (L) denotes the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.

These 10,437,000 shares are held by Kin Hing Hong, owned as to
33.26%, 33.32% and 33.32% by Ms. Chan Mei Kam, Ms. Wong Sau
Suet and Ms Wong Kwai Fa respectively. Therefore, Ms. Chan Mei
Kam, Ms. Wong Sau Suet and Ms Wong Kwai Fa are each deemed to
be interested in all the shares held by Kin Hing Hong for the purpose of
SFO.

These 504,000,000 Shares are held by Huaxing, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Lui Ming and he is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by Huaxing for the purpose of SFO. Ms. Chan
Mei Kam is the spouse of Mr. Lui Ming, therefore she is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Lui Ming is interested and
deemed to be interested for the purpose of SFO.

These 396,000,000 Shares are held by Hualian, a company owned
as to 60% by Mr. Lui Wing Nam and he is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Hualian for the purpose of SFO. Ms. Wong Sau
Suet is the spouse of Mr. Lui Wing Nam, therefore she is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Lui Wing Nam is interested
and deemed to be interested for the purpose of SFO.

These 300,000,000 Shares are held by Hualong, a company owned as
to 40% by Mr. Lui Wing Mau and he is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares held by Hualong for the purpose of SFO. Ms. Wong Kwai
Fa is the spouse of Mr. Lui Wing Mau, therefore she is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares which Mr. Lui Wing Mau is interested and
deemed to be interested for the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

B

Q)

B BRI EESD -

MN2021 F12 A3 B - ARQXAB BT
1,628,541,0000% f 17 - FR()FR ~Z E SR
B 2R -

% %510,437,000 R I D REFEITIES - 957
HEXELL:  EFESHEhEELELLHES
33.26% * 33.32% &% 33.32%H) 2 - AL - Bt
BENBHEELNE  BREELL  EFFEK
TREEEL I SEBRIEEEETHEZ R
DR ZH R -

#%%504,000,000 i 0 R E B H - Z A A
MEREERERS  RESFLBEKRDIM
CRFREREERER 2 2RO P E AR
c REZLLR/BFHLENEE - Eit - 5t
AHLAEGRITE  RARFESREER
BREmMMmA RN P HEA#ER -

E>|< mlr

% 396,000,000 B {0 A EBERF A - LA A
B EKEEAEER0%MER - SHEFRAE
GO E - RARIEEERES 2 280
AL BEFSRLTRAKBIEENELE
Bt - shESEMEERAIm S - RARIELES
KRS A B s VP A0 P i A o

7% 300,000,000/ B {0 AEREFA » LA A
B AR AR A0% MR - SRS NS
GPImE - RARIEEERES 2280
FHfEE c ERER T RAKKLENRE -
Bt - BhESEMEERAIME - RARIEES
KSR R P I o s o

202112 A31H » RARA

R ETEMA L (KA AE B RETR
BB SN B2 RIS AR B AR5 A R B
5 % B2 071V B B3BBG AT 2 2
ZHRHAR -



Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Major Suppliers and Customers

In the year under review, the Group’s largest customer accounted for
0.29% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 0.91% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
2.75% of the Group’s total purchase. The Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 6.13% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
the Group’s five largest customers.

Event after the Year End Date

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there were no other material
subsequent events took place after 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report.

Tax Relief and Exemption of Holders of Listed
Securities

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their respective holding of
the Company’s securities.
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Retirement Benefits Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are required to participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees of
both Hong Kong and the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to this
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Group’s are set out in Note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the below paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this section, during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company had not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

Related Party Transactions and Connected

Transactions

The significant related party transactions as disclosed in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements do not constitute a “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be)
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules that needs to
be disclosed or is not fully exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

Since the Listing, the Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the
Directors and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/her
office or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Company or its securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code for the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2021. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group
for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2021.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float as required under
the Listing Rules.
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Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for all Directors and senior management. These insurances provided
protection to the liability incurred from related cost, fees, expense and
legal actions resulting from corporate activities. Pursuant to Article 192
of the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers for the time being of the Company
and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or administrators,
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty, and
none of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or
defaults of any other of them, or for joining in any receipt for the sake of
conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys
or effects of the Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody,
or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of the Company shall be placed out or invested, or for any other
loss, misfortune or damage which may arise in the execution of their
respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same
shall happen by or through their own fraud, dishonesty or recklessness.
The Company may take out and pay the premium and other moneys
for the maintenance of insurance, bonds and other instruments for the
benefit either of the Company or the Directors (and/or other officers) or
any of them to indemnify the Company and/or Directors (and/or other
officers) named therein for this purpose against any loss, damage,
liability and claim which they may suffer or sustain in connection with
any breach by the Directors (and/or other officers) or any of them of their
duties to the Company.
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Corporate Governance

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code of the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”), as its own code
to govern its corporate governance practices. Save for the deviation
in relation to the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
being the same individual, the Board considers that, the Company has
complied with, to the extent applicable and permissible, the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Lui Ming is currently the Chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Group, responsible for
strategic planning and managing of the Group’s overall business
and operations. Mr. Lui Ming has been responsible for the overall
management of the Group since the establishment of the Group. The
Board believes that the current structure enables the Group to make
and implement business decision swiftly and effectively which promotes
the Group’s development in line with other strategies and business
direction. The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision making under the present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors. Further, the audit committee of the Company, which
consists of a majority of independent non-executive Directors, has free
and direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, the
Directors consider that the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the CG
Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 70
to 100 of this annual report.

Donations
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to RMB144,000.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Auditor

There has been no change in the Company’s auditor since the Listing
Date. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
A resolution will be proposed at the 2022 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

Compliance With Laws and Regulations

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company in all material aspects.

Changes in the Board and the Directors’
Information

Change in Directors’ information since the date of the 2021 interim
report of the Company and up to the date of this report, which are
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are
set out below:

With effect from 11 February 2022, (i) Mr. Wan Ho Yin has resigned
as an independent non-executive Director, and ceased to act as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee; and ((ii) Mr.
Chan Pak Hung has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

With effect from 20 August 2021, Mr. Guo Shaomu has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Shanghai HeartCare
Medical Technology Corporation Limited (stock code: 6609).

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Lui Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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EEERWE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
CG Code. For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, save for the deviation in relation to the Chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer being the same individual, the
Board believes that the Company has complied with the code provision
of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code.

The Board

(1) Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board Committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

(2) Directors’ and senior management’s liability
insurance and indemnity
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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(3) Board composition

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors
Mr. Lui Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lui Jin Ling

Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lui Wing Mau
Mr. Lui Wing Nam

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Pak Hung (appointed on 11 February 2022)
Mr. Guo Shaomu

Ms. Tang Lo Nar

Mr. Wan Ho Yin (resigned on 11 February 2022)

Except that Mr. Lui Ming is the younger brother of Mr. Lui Wing
Mau and Mr. Lui Wing Nam; the uncle of Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy
and Mr. Lui Jin Ling, Mr. Lui Jin Ling is the son of Mr. Lui Wing
Mau and Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy is the son of Mr. Lui Wing Nam,
there is no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the Board members.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Board met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10(A) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
Among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wan Ho Yin and Ms. Tang Lo Nar have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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(4) Board diversity policy

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination
committee (or the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity
of board members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report. The
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) specifies that in designing the composition of the
Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The appointment of Directors will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be evaluated against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the effectiveness of this policy, as
appropriate, discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

As at 31 December 2021, the diversity of the Board is illustrated
as below. Further details on the biographies and experience of the
current Directors are set out on page 39 to page 48 of this annual
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the membership,
structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that
the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and
skills of the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the
Company to maintain high standard of operation.

Measurable objectives
For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

() Independence: The Board should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient
calibre and stature for their views to carry weight.

(i) Skills and experience: The Board possesses a balance of
skills appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Directors have a mix of finance, academic
and management backgrounds that taken together provide
the Company with considerable experience in a range of
activities.

Apart from the above objectives, the Board Diversity Policy has the
following objectives to comply with the Listing Rules:

1. at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least three of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

3. atleast one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Confirmation of independence by the
independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
respective identity of the public companies or organisations
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed
to disclose, and already disclosed their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

Induction and continuous professional
development

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.1 of the CG Code, each newly
appointed Director should be provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
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For the year ended to 31 December 2021, all Directors have been HE2021F12A31BILEFE - 28EFY
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules Eiﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ%%ﬁ R FTIB R R A
and other applicable regulatory requirements through reading FEERTHENEIERIEBEN - UER
materials to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of é%ﬁ&ﬁﬂfﬁiwﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬁ@i% EAE

good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received during the ZEERHE2021F12A31AFEMES
year ended 31 December 2021 is summarised below: Zll 2 st T T ¢
Attended Attended
trainings trainings
organised organised by
by the professional Reading
Directors Company organizations materials
2B AT SmEE
B LRI SRR IEI R AR
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Lui Ming (Chairman) v v
BREE(EE)
Mr. Lui Jin Ling v v
EHESE S A
Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy v 4
BEREE

Non-executive Directors

FHTES
Mr. Lui Wing Mau v v
BRI A
Mr. Lui Wing Nam v 4
EoKE A

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Wan Ho Yin v v v
ISR

Mr. Guo Shaomu v v v
I e e

Ms. Tang Lo Nar v v v
BBzt
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to paragraph A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEOQ”) should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Lui Ming is currently both the Chairman of the Board and
the CEO of our Group, responsible for strategic planning and
managing of our Group’s overall business and operations. Mr.
Lui Ming has been responsible for the overall management of our
Group since the establishment of our Group. The Board believes
that the current structure enables us to make and implement
business decision swiftly and effectively which promotes our
Group’s development in line with other strategies and business
direction. Our Board considers that the balance of power and
authority, accountability and independent decision-making
under our present arrangement will not be impaired because of
the diverse background and experience of our non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors. Further, our
Audit Committee, which consists a majority of independent non-
executive Directors, has free and direct access to our Company’s
external auditors and independent professional advisers when it
considers necessary. Therefore our Directors consider that the
deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In order to maintain
good corporate governance and to fully comply with paragraph
A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, our Board will regularly
review the need to appoint different individuals to perform the roles
of chairman and CEO separately.

The Board and the senior management, which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals can ensure the balance
of power and authority. As at 31 December 2021, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of Mr. Lui Ming, Mr. Lui Jin Ling and Mr. Lui Chi Chung
Jimmy, being the executive Directors, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of Mr. Lui Wing Mau and Mr. Lui Wing Nam, being the non-
executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date.
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Each of Mr. Wan Ho Yin, Mr. Guo Shaomu and Ms. Tang Lo Nar,
being the independent non-executive Directors, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. Mr. Chan Pak Hung,
being an independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 11 February 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with any member of the Group (excluding agreements expiring or
determinable by any member of the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for election by shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment and any new Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by the shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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(10) Board meetings and committee meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee shall meet at least once every year and the Audit
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Notices of not less than
fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members at least three days before the intended date
of the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meeting. When
Directors or committee members are unable to attend a meeting,
they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman of the
Board or the committee members prior to the meeting. Minutes
of meetings are kept by the Company Secretary with copies
circulated to relevant Board or Board Committee for comments
and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Board or committee members
and dissenting views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the relevant Board or
committee members for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, six board meetings
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these
meetings is set out in the table below:

HE2021F12A31BIEFE - 8BITTRKX
FEgen  [AREENZSEENERES
METIR TR

Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
= BHE BERLE
Mr. Lui Ming (Chairman and Executive Director) 6/6
BRREE (LEHFNTEE)
Mr. Lui Jin Ling (Executive Director) 6/6
EESEE(HTEE)
Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy (Executive Director) 6/6
AEREE(HITEE)
Mr. Lui Wing Mau (Non-executive Director) 6/6
KK (FEBTTESE)
Mr. Lui Wing Nam (Non-executive Director) 6/6
Bk S (FEPTTEE)
Mr. Wan Ho Yin (Independent Non-executive Director) 6/6
RIERE (U B TTEE)
Mr. Guo Shaomu (Independent Non-executive Director) 6/6
WS (VIR TEE)
Ms. Tang Lo Nar (Independent Non-executive Director) 6/6

BEPL L (BHHTEE)

(11) Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding dealings in
the securities of the Company by the Directors and the Group’s
senior management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the Company or
its securities. The Directors and the Group’s senior management
have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2021.

(12) Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently.
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HE2021F12B31BILFE  ARREERE
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The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management on the Company’s
behalf.

(18) Corporate governance function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and has delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include:

(@ to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors of the Group; and

(e) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Group and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report to be contained in the
Company’s annual reports.
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Board Committees
(1) Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2021, the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) comprised four
members, namely Mr. Lui Ming (chairman and executive Director),
Mr. Wan Ho Yin, Mr. Guo Shaomu and Ms. Tang Lo Nar (each
an independent non-executive Director). The majority of the
committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Lui Ming is the chairman of this committee. Mr. Wan Ho Yin
ceased to act as an member and Mr. Chan Pak Hung has been
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect
from 11 February 2022.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
followings:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individual(s) nominated for
directorship(s);

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board (if any) and
the chief executive;

o to review the Nomination Policy and to ensure disclosure of
the same in the Corporate Governance Report, including the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
by the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship;

o to review the Board Diversity Policy periodically and to ensure
disclosure of the same or a summary of it in the Corporate
Governance Report, including the measurable objectives that
the Committee has set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and
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e {0 ensure disclosure will be made in the circular to o REZZHNREARZ HIZEABERE
EREALABIIENITEENHRAE
RS ATRE MY A BRI SR i R KSR AR

shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting where the Board

proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an independent BE K R R R
non-executive Directors at the general meeting:
e the process used for identifying the individual and why e MAUYEZBEALTHRE -E=H

the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

if the proposed independent non-executive Directors
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the individual
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board;

TRREEREZBALHOIERIN
MEERRZBANLTEEYLAL
HREA

o WMRBREBUIFATESHHIE
FLR(KAL) ETRRNE
Z EFERRZBALIAUR
ARHERBTETEENRA

e the perspectives, skills and experience that the o ZEAATRAE=ETRMED
individual can bring to the Board; and HAE  BREk&E &

e how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board. o HBATIMAEEEEERES
gtk o

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit

REZBEHIZHE K8 EHRETR
B R EAEPTaE IR A B R N WG 1) SR AT
MREASIREAL - REZEEGNHEES
SEESREHTESSFEHRE - HEEB
REE AR RARREBRIEER

time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are
available on the respective website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the attendance of the HE2021F12A31BFEE  RBEZEEH

Nomination Committee’s meeting is as below: ezt EBRNT

Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
= eHE BERERE
Mr. Lui Ming (Chairman) 1/1
BRREE(EE)
Mr. Wan Ho Yin 1/1
/JZIJI/EI %%E
Mr. Guo Shaomu 1/1
WAL
Ms. Tang Lo Nar 1/1
Bzt
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In the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed and discussed
the policy, procedure and criteria for nomination of the Directors,
reviewed and discussed the Board Diversity Policy and discussed
all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy and the
progress made towards meeting the measurable objective in the
policy, assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors,
reviewed the time commitment required from the non-executive
Director and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.

Nomination Policy
The Board has adopted the following policy with regard to
nomination of Directors.

1. Objective
The Policy aims to:

° set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company;

o ensure that the Board the Company has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company; and

° ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

2. Scope
The Policy applies to the Directors and where applicable,
senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company.
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3. Nomination and Appointment of Directors
3.1 Criteria
In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, the Nomination Committee shall consider
the following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorships:

e Character and integrity.

° Quialifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the business and corporate strategies
of the Company.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules
and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee
for achieving diversity on the Board.

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to
the business of the Company.
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3.2 Nomination Procedures
3.2.1Appointment of directors

U

(i)

(i)

The Nomination Committee identifies
individual(s) suitably qualified to become
Board members, having due regard to the
board diversity policy and the nomination
policy of the Company, and assesses the
independence of the proposed independent
non-executive director(s) as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes
recommendation(s) to the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s)
recommended by the Nomination
Committee, having due regard to the Board
Diversity Policy and the nomination policy of
the Company.

The Board confirms the appointment of the
individual(s) as Director(s) or recommends
the individual(s) to stand for election at a
general meeting. Individual(s) appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board will be subject to
re-election by Shareholders of the Company
at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to answer the questions raised
by the shareholders on the nomination of
Directors and other matters in relation to the
Policy.

The Shareholders approve the election of
individual(s), who stand(s) for election at
general meeting, as Director(s).
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3.2.2 Re-appointment of directors

()  The Nomination Committee shall review
the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including
his/her attendance of Board meetings and,
where applicable, general meetings, and the
level of participation and performance of the
Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee shall also review
and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out in
3.1.

(i) The Board considers each retiring
director recommended by the Nomination
Committee, having due regard to the board
diversity policy and the nomination policy of
the Company.

(iv)  The Board recommends the retiring directors
to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

(v)  The shareholders approve the re-election of
directors at the annual general meeting.

Review and Monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis at least annually and diversity of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to
the requirements for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall keep under review the
leadership needs of the Company, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
Company to complete effectively in the marketplace.

The Nomination Committee shall keep up to date and fully
informed about strategic issues and commercial changes
affecting the Company and the market in which it operates.
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(3) Remuneration Committee
As at 31 December 2021, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Guo Shaomu, Mr. Wan Ho Yin and Ms.
Tang Lo Nar, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Guo Shaomu is the chairman of this committee. Mr. Wan Ho
Yin ceased to act as an member and Mr. Chan Pak Hung has
been appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 11 February 2022.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° either (i) to have the delegated responsibility to determine the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (i) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. This should include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment. The Committee should consult
the Chairman and/or Chief Executive (if any) of the Company
about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other
executive Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

o to consider factors salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
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° to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

° to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

o to ensure that no Directors or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the respective website of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the attendance of the
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B I

¥rENE B & e & m R 80 E ] B A AT R R

NAEIEBRUEER] -

HE021F12A31BFE  FNEZESH

Remuneration Committee’s meeting is as below: FEEMEEERET

Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
= eHE BERERE
Mr. Guo Shaomu (Chairman) 1/1
SRS ()
Mr. Wan Ho Yin 1/1
BEREE
Ms. Tang Lo Nar 1/1
BRI A+

In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, assessed performance of
executive Directors, made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
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Details of the Directors’” emoluments are disclosed in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statement of this annual report. Details of the

EHEZESHFWOFBEERAFERES IS
WERMFE7 - BHE2021F12 A31 HIEFEAR

remuneration by band of the members of the senior management NAEMERERKEREEEZ»NHMFES
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out HoT -
below:

Number of
Remuneration band individual(s)
NS E AE
Nil to RMB1,000,000 3
T AR¥1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 3
AR %1,000,0007T % A R¥2,000,0007T
RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000 1
AR #2,000,0007T 2 AR 3,000,000
Audit Committee 4) BZREES

As at 31 December 2021, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprised four members, namely Mr.
Lui Wing Nam (a non-executive Director), Mr. Wan Ho Yin, Mr.
Guo Shaomu and Ms. Tang Lo Nar (each an independent non-
executive Director), the majority of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Wan Ho Yin is the chairman of this
committee during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
11 February 2022 when he ceased to act as the chairman. Mr.
Chan Pak Hung has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee with effect from 11 February 2022. The main duties of
the Audit Committee include the following:

Relationship with the external auditors

° to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
process commences;

e to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
external auditor shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing
all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Review of the Company’s financial information

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(V)

any changes in accounting policies and practices;

major judgmental areas;

significant adjustments resulting from audit;

the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

compliance with accounting standards; and

compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:

members of the Audit Committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management and the Audit
Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company'’s external auditor; and

the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such report and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
external auditor.
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Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. The discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the external auditor to management
about the accounting records, financial accounts or systems
of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference;
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to review the Company’s statement on risk management and
internal control systems (where one is included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

to discuss problems and qualified opinion, if any, arising from
the half-year and annual audits, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management
where necessary);

to review arrangements which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management and
internal control or other matters. The Committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters for appropriate
follow-up actions;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board from time
to time.

Corporate Governance Functions

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with and disclosure
under the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members at these meetings is set out in the table

HZE2021F12A31HILFE FEXELES
BOITMRGH  BEREESREBNFSR

ARSI N RAR ¢

below:

Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
= BHE BERHE
Mr. Wan Ho Yin (Chairman) 2/2
SRERFTE(FE)
Mr. Lui Wing Nam 2/2
EoKE A
Mr. Guo Shaomu 2/2
BABSEE
Ms. Tang Lo Nar 2/2
B BRI 2+

In those meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
policies on corporate governance and discussed the same with
the Board, reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions) and
associated processes and the reappointment of the external
auditor and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid. The Board
had not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed (i) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2020 as well as the audited report prepared by the auditor relating
to amounting issues and major findings in course of audit; (i) the
interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 as well as the review report prepared
by the auditor relating to accounting issues and major findings in
course of review; and (jii) the audit scope and audit plan prepared
by the auditor relating to the audit for the year ended 31 December
2021.

There are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. The written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the respective website of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 which give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of the
Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions
and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual
report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing
basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the key risk areas,
including any remedial plans, if deemed necessary or appropriate, to the
Audit Committee for consideration. The identified key risk areas and the
appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and commented by
the Board at its meeting annually.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Company has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2020. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an internal
control system to manage all kinds of risks facing by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks are
identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our risk
management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk Management
— Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and management to
manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board receives regular
reports from the Risk Control Center and the Audit Committee. The Risk
Control Center is responsible for overseeing internal control and risk
management, and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing
the internal audit function.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk management monitoring
carried out by the finance and compliance team. The Group maintains a
risk register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The
risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and management
with a profile of its major risks and records management’s action taken
to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually
based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the
Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable,
at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed.
This review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have access to
the risk register and are aware of and alert to those risks in their area
of responsibility so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient
manner.
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Our risk management activities are performed by management on an
ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management framework
will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management meeting
is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company has an internal audit function which primarily carries
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the issuer’s risk management and internal control
systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual
basis.

Handling of Inside Information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information
in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), procedures including notification of
regular blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant
Directors and employees, identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis have been implemented by the Group to guard against possible
mishandling and/or unauthorised use of inside information within the
Group.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, an analysis of the fee paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services is set out as follows:

S i A

HE2021F12 A1 B IEFE » RBEFTRE MIEE
FTERISEN A AR A RINEZBENE A ST
AT

Fees Paid/Payable

et ENER
Service Category RMB’000
BRAE 3 Rl AREFT
Audit services 4,565
FiT AR
Non-audit services 645
TR
Total 5,210

4Bzt
oA

Company Secretary

The Company appointed Mr. Lam Yu Tin Eugene as the company
secretary of the Company. Please refer to the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management — Senior Management” in this annual report for
the biography of Mr. Lam Yu Tin Eugene.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lam Yu Tin
Eugene undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update their skills and knowledge during the year ended 31
December 2021.

RNEME
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General Meeting
During the year ended 31 December 2021, an annual general meeting
was held on 20 May 2021, the attendance of the Directors is as below:

RERRE
HZE2021F12A31BILFE - KR2021F5H20H
BRE—NAFHRERE - @ZNLREROT

Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
55 BHE FERHE
Mr. Lui Ming (Chairman and Executive Director) 1/1
ERREE(FERHTESE)
Mr. Lui Jin Ling (Executive Director) 11
BHEST SRR (HITEE)
Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy (Executive Director) 1/1
BERSEE(HITEE)
Mr. Lui Wing Mau (Non-executive Director) 1/1
BKIK STk (FEHTEE)
Mr. Lui Wing Nam (Non-executive Director) 11
EIKE Sk (FFHITEE)
Mr. Wan Ho Yin (Independent Non-executive Director) 1/1
BERSE (BN TTEE)
Mr. Guo Shaomu (Independent Non-executive Director) 1/1
Mk (IR TEE)
Ms. Tang Lo Nar (Independent Non-executive Director) 11

WEPZ L (BB TEE)

Communication with Shareholders and Investor

Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of
the shareholders and potential investors on the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the informed investment
decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the annual general
meeting to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of
the Company will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report and auditor independence.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

HERRVEBERERREEBRRE

ARERA  BRROGREBYE NRKREERE
BERHBRRNEEREERBARBNERR K
BARRBMEEEE « ARRTORM K HIEEE
R ERHARBREREEFELABRER
ROERM -

ARFBRRBEFREARRIEHEETHR AR
e EFSIFNESZESIRHLER
RBFERSHRERRIRAE - AR B INEELEED
T HERRBFERE  AREBMABRET
BN IR & AR B S A E A BB M AR RE o



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRSE (&)

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and its
shareholders and maintains a website at www.glchina.group, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may at any time contact the Company’s Investor Relations
Department at 852-2688 8055 or email to ir@ganglong.net.cn. The
Board will review the shareholders’ communication policy regularly to
ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings, including nomination and
election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each shareholder meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting
In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), any one or more shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

AREEMAER - AQ RN EEMEE
EEEVAAREERTNBEBERER I
%A 48 3k www.glchina.group » T & B B 2 £ 7%
EERBRNENER UKER  bEERT
MEEMER  UMEARALER - REREE
& AT BB B BT S 55 852-2688 8055 B ik EH E
ir@ganglong.net.cn it £ K X Al 8y 1% & & B R &0
M- B2 BT HEHNBRENBAECRARRE
B o
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EHAMEEEHARRWERZENR B
KEEEEIEERBERPREANEMAE
HARBRBIA®  MZXEARNZEE
RIR2RMIER 81T - MERGRENZSE
ERR2RAAANEHEHE  REELER
SRR RIE T SRR - M2 ERA
THEFEEREARAREMARELNME
XX ERARBMERAELEN

F3R2021
BETEBEEEERAR

99



100

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

@

EEERRE ()

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. However, shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such
meeting. The requirements and procedures of Article 64 of the
Articles are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests

to the Company as follows:

Address: Suite 3620-22, 36/F, Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Hong Kong

Attention: Investor Relations Department
Tel: 8522688 0855

Fax: 852-2688 0030

Email: ir@ganglong.net.cn

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.

Change in Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Memorandum and the Articles during the

year ended 31 December 2021.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREARLE

About this Report

Ganglong China Property Group Limited (“Ganglong China Property”
or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or
“we”) are pleased to present our annual Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”).

The scope of this Report covers our key business operations in
property development and sales in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). This Report focuses on the disclosure of our performance in
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters for the reporting
year ended 31 December 2021. This Report is prepared based on the
ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The Group is committed to creating sustained and long-term value for
its stakeholders and continuously tracking its impacts on society and the
environment. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) oversees the overall
direction of the Group’s ESG strategy and programmes. The Group’s
ESG performance is measured, reviewed and reported to management
regularly for continuous improvement. The Group aims to enhance its
internal data collection process for improved reporting.

Reporting Boundaries

The Group adopted the ‘financial control’ approach to define its
organisation boundary for calculating environmental and social
performance. The reporting boundary is defined by the performance
of the Group in the PRC within the reporting year including revenue,
gross floor area developed and net assets value, which is unchanged
as compared to the previous reporting period. Thus, the report provides
an overview of our ESG management approach, related initiatives and
environmental performance indicators during the period of 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021. During the year, we continue to include
development projects that actively contributed to the Group, 32 projects
are in-scoped during the year and 12 of the projects are newly in-
scoped.

BRI S

R E £ EERA A ([ EEEE |5
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BRAGZRRMOTERE  HEREARE
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BMERE g RER(ESG)EHHHEME
4B o AR RIRE X ATE TRV E AR T AR AR B
QTRTHMIRE - G REAMEIESIRE -
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B UHERREHHERRENTE - EF
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BiR - HERERBHSE(E)

Board Statement

The Board of Directors acknowledge the significance of effective
sustainability practices and are actively integrating ESG systems in key
business decisions. The Board has overall responsibility for our ESG
strategy and reporting. It guides the management and monitoring of
ESG matters that have been identified as relevant to the Group.

The Board regularly evaluate and determine our ESG related risks,
and ensures that appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems are in place. The Board also meets and
discusses the effectiveness of these systems as well as the progress
made against relevant ESG-related goals and targets during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

Our stakeholder engagement helps us consider a diverse range of
perspectives and understand the aspirations, needs and concerns of
our stakeholders. We understand the importance of communicating with
our stakeholders to gather their opinions, ideas and feedback through
various established channels.

The respective channels through which we engage with our key
stakeholders are as follows:

EEgRM
EFRRAERNTRERREANEE
THEEESCRAMABELHAR - B FEY
ESCHMR2HAARBER RO B AR
AEEAMNESCEE - KBS TEAEEEY
T

EEgEP T HTETHRMOESGHERK - Iz
R D RALA S WA ESGELR: B T2 A A 2B 122 4
BR -EFSNTRITLE  BRSTERREROK
88 UAREEZE2021F12A3HILEER - X E
FERESGRE MBEMESE -

FESRREZRMG

BRI FHESEEPNEMEESETRNE
B OEMBOENRE - FREETH o A
RERNHERR  WBESEMERBEEMM
WER  BERREBNEZE

B ERES SO EEEORBOT

Stakeholder Groups Engagement Channels
HOERR SERE
Employees ° Staff satisfaction survey
8T BT REEHRS
° Performance appraisal
SERGT R
° Internal newsletters
AESEE

° Annual dinner

Fg

° Training/seminars/workshops

Al TR BB
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Stakeholder Groups
B ERE

Customers
®P

Suppliers, contractors and business partners

(LRETS - RE T R

Investors and shareholders

BREERER

Community

gadin

Media
iHeg

Regulatory bodies
BRI

Engagement Channels

BHRE

° Daily operation and interaction
AEELERED

o Customer newsletters
E P

° Customer hotline
BPEE

° Customer satisfaction survey
EPWMEERE

o Customer feedback form
BPRER

° Company website
NSIFER

° Events
TEED

° Seminars/briefings
wig,  mRe

° Evaluation and performance review
S REMEE

° Inspections/site visits
BE/BIEER

° Interim/Annual reports
HEEE WS

° Financial announcements
PN

o Official filings/circulars
BHEREBK

° Investor calls and briefings
KEEEFRER

° Roadshows/presentations
¥E B

o Conference on company listing
NEETEH®

° Qutreach

SN AR 75

° Voluntary activities
EREEH)

° Sponsorships and donations
i UpSEE]H

° Social media
R KRS
° Press releases

hEEm
o Interviews
Rk

° Reports on compliance

BHRRE

F3R2021
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B .

Based on the key interests and concerns of its stakeholders, its industry,
business nature and the market landscape, the Group’s management
has identified the following four areas as most relevant and material to
its operations, namely environmental protection, water management,
waste management and diversity and inclusion.

Achievements and Awards

During 2021, the Group has gained wide recognition from the
market, industry, media and other stakeholders for its achievements.
Throughout the year, the Group has received a collection of industry
awards in respect of business performance, social responsibility, supply
chain management, brand management, product quality and other
areas. Moving forward, the Group remains dedicated to strengthening
its business practice and creating sustained value for its shareholders,
customers and broader society.

AP E

(06968.HK)

2021 E EHREE
BANME+E

Top 10 Listed Chinese Property Developers
in Terms of Investment Values

hEEmEAREBETR

Toeion

202V PEREEF SHEER
ToP1o

MOREproit EF~R iR |
L]

Top 10 Chinese Property Developers
in Terms of Product Value Systems

FEIEEMEBEEZRZTOP10
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RN+

Top 10 Listed Chinese Property Developers

in Terms of Risk Control Ability
B EmERREEE 4
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Top 20 Chinese Property Developers
in Terms of Healthy Operations
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Best Employers

in Chinese Property Sector Influential Property Projects — Zeng Cheng Shi Tan
HEEERERERE FENEWERR — I8 A #
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Role Model Property Developers China General Ranking for Best-valued Property —

in Terms of Product Excellence Best-valued City Operators of the Year
FEiEPEESEmM NG FEIBEMELNE FREEENTEER
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Healthy Enterprises of the Year APSDA AWARDS -
in Chinese Property Sector Gold Prize in Asia-Pacific Space Design Contest
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Environmental Protection

Emissions

The Group understands the impact of greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions in exacerbating global warming and consequently, climate
change. Therefore, we are committed to minimising the environmental
impacts of our business activities and operations through monitoring
and controlling our air and GHG emissions in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations in areas where we operate. In addition, we
endeavour to reduce unnecessary waste generation and disposal.

We aim to promote and practise green construction in our operations of
property development by adopting measures such as design innovation
and process optimisation. For example, we aim to incorporate more
sustainable building materials in our construction projects to improve
resource efficiency. Effective thermal insulation systems are built to
prevent unwanted heat loss or gain through the building envelope and
hence reduce energy consumption. We also aim to adopt more flexible
and eco-friendly building elements, such as employing a lightweight
partition design to enable rapid room adaptation for various purposes
and reduce waste materials during renovations. Our buildings are
certified with China Green Building Label with a majority of these
buildings receiving 2-star certificates including the requirement on
materials and designs.

In our day-to-day operations, we continue to strengthen our waste
management practice, such as procuring more durable and eco-friendly
supplies and encouraging our employees, suppliers and other business
partners to minimise waste generation. For example, we will set up
designed bins at construction sites to collect garbage and construction
waste from construction workers for recycling and handling. In our
offices, we have introduced various measures to increase resource and
energy efficiency, such as centrally managing office supplies to avoid
unnecessary wastage, performing patrols in the evening to switch off
lights and computers that are not used, setting double-sided printing
as the default printer setting and encouraging teleconferences over
physical meetings to reduce employee travels.

We are dedicated to make a contribution to environmental protection.
We will continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives of
the Group and set achievable targets in future years.
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During the reporting period, our environmental performance on
emissions and waste management is summarised and provided as
follows:

WERA - HAIESRREDERE T EARRR
Wt

2021 2020
Environmental KPls BRIEKPIs Unit By 20214 20204F
Nitrogen oxides BAIY Kg N 160 710.74
Sulphur oxides ety Kg N 0.83 0.93
Particular matter SR Kg N 15.04 59.62
Total GHG emissions RERBHRES tonnes CO2e  WACO2e 8,354.10 6,484.21
Scope 1 direct emissions BENEETER tonnes CO2e  MECO2e 129.83 206.44
Scope 2 energy indirect emissions HE2BLBRE LR tonnes CO2e  WECO2e 8,224.26 6,277.77
Total non-hazardous waste produced E£REZEREYEE  Tonnes 148 193.60 315.46
Notes: BisE -

1. The scope of the environmental key performance indicators covered
the subsidiaries of the Group which performed operations or
implemented projects related to property development during the
reporting period.

2. The total hazardous waste is not material to the Group so is not
disclosed in this table.

3. The consumption increased during the year mainly due to the increase
of projects during FY2021 when the COVID-19 pandemic slow down.

4. The data collection, preparation and calculation methods for the
environmental key performance indicators are based on Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of How to Prepare an ESG
Report issued by the Stock Exchange.

Use of Resources

The Group have implemented initiatives in support of sustainable
development to encourage the efficient use of energy, water and other
resources. For example, we continue to replace our existing lighting
with LED lights and upgrade lifts to enhance energy efficiency. For
some public areas, timer-controlled switches are employed for lighting
to help conserve energy and controls of lighting are adjusted in line
with seasonal changes between summer and winter times in the
reporting year. In addition, employees are encouraged to use less air-
conditioning and switch off lights, air-conditioners and other electrical
appliances when leaving the office, and to use electric vehicles or public
shuttles instead of traditional petrol or diesel private cars. In doing so,
our employees can help reduce environmental pollution caused by
refrigerant emissions and vehicle exhaust emissions.

1. REHREVESHEREAEENRSE A
EITHEAEEBRERARERNREAR -

2. BEEVMREHAKEITEK ST EE
R -

3. FRERELEN  TZHR2021PEHFEHT
bR IE PR 2 BRIRE S48 0 -

4. REBREZEENRBRE  BREAES
ETYERE T E MM 8 — - i IR
5 HgREARENREHRERIERER
&5l

BERAMA
AEBECERIFARERRNER  SBAX
MARR - KEEMEIR - flan - FAFIEEIA
LEDERRIRARE - WHBIEH - NIREHE
R - RREFER - R —LRHEE - R
B E R IR R - ARBETARER - WIRE
2 RMZEEEL - FETE S o BH - A&
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We attach great importance to the efficient use and conservation of
water resources in our operations. For example, we seek to use more
water-efficient equipment, pipes, sanitary appliances and sprinklers for
our buildings, and in our office space and construction sites. Where
possible, we continue to recycle and reuse water for our activities.
Rainwater harvesting systems are utilised to collect, store and reuse
rainwater for other purposes, such as watering plants and washing
roads.

During the reporting period, our environmental performance on direct
and indirect energy and water consumptions is summarized and
provided as follows:

BIPEEERELKE YN B REHLKER « f
o BAISRARMANEEDARRMANBAE
FIRETH - ERAEEKNRE - BE  HER
BREKEE - EAIRENERT » RAIEERR
FIEEE MU R BFIFAK - RKKRERZEARK
& BELRBAARKEE MBS  MEEEY
RIBSRER

RIBE IR - R EE R R R EL
EIERBAET

2021 2020
Environmental KPls BRIEKPIs Unit By 20214 2020
Total energy consumption 1aEeRE kWh TEE 13,970,025.97 10,687,726.48
Total direct energy consumption AR KWh TRE 549,233.97 615,897.59
Petrol pawc kWh FEE 549,233.97 565,588.33
Diesel Edii kWh TR - 50,309.26
Direct energy consumption intensity B griF4E KWh/RMB'000 revenue TR /T ARBIA 0.05 0.01
Total indirect energy consumption BRI kWh TRE 13,420,792.00 10,071,828.88
Purchased electricity BE kWh TEE 13,420,792.00 10,071,828.88
Indirect energy consumption intensity P LR E KWh/RMB'000 revenue TR ¥ /FARBIA 1.29 0.15
Total water consumption WIEKE m? Sk 686,489.34 553,668.71
Water consumption intensity FKRE mY/RMB'000 revenue STk TARBIA 0.07 0.01
Notes: BiE -

1. The scope of the environmental key performance indicators covers
those subsidiaries of the Group which performed operations or
implemented projects related to property development during the
reporting period.

2. The consumption increased during the year mainly due to the increase
of projects during FY2021 when the COVID-19 pandemic slow down.

3. The data collection, preparation and calculation methods for the
environmental key performance indicators are based on Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of How to Prepare an ESG
Report issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Note:

GHG emissions data for both years were calculated based on emissions
factors with reference to sources including the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong’s “How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs”, the Hong Kong SAR Government’s Environmental
Protection Department and the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department’s “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse
Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or
Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong”, the Greenhouse Gas Protocol’s
Emission Factors for Cross Sector Tools, the OECD and IEA’s “CO2
Emissions from Fuel Combustion”, the EPA’s “Emission Factors for
Greenhouse Gas Inventories” and the IEA’s “Energy Statistics Manual”.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and conserving
natural resources through identifying more efficient ways of managing
its business and running its operations. We continue to seek new
and innovative measures and initiatives to effectively manage our
environmental impacts. For example, we promote and adopt eco-
friendly workplace practices, including encouraging paperless offices
and the recycling of materials by our employees. We also support the
development of smart communities and green residential areas that
include sustainability considerations during site planning and facilities
management.

Considering our property development business, we have also identified
measures to control and reduce the impacts of construction activities on
the surrounding environment. For example, we work with our staff and
subcontractors to ensure vehicles are fully washed and cleaned before
leaving construction sites, bare soil is covered to reduce suspended
dust, and that dust control and removal equipment is properly utilised.
Furthermore, onsite energy consumption is efficiently managed, and
additional sedimentation tanks are installed to treat wastewater before
discharge.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BIR - HEREREEE (H)

To demonstrate our dedication to addressing climate change, as well as
to reduce environmental impact brought by the operations of the Group,
the Group has formulated new environmental targets of:

° Minimising GHG emission

o Enhancing energy efficiency by further upgrading the lightings and
air-cooled chillers

. Expanding the generation and use of renewable energy such as
solar energy

o Increasing employee’s awareness for energy saving and
environmental protection

° Developing green building properties starting in design stage,
also increase the use of renewable material and new construction
method.

Responding to Climate Change

In respect of climate change, we have policies and guidelines in place
to facilitate new measures for being more climate resilient. In addition to
promoting green buildings, we aim to increase solar power generation
and new energy vehicles in line with government policy initiatives in
the PRC. We have also considered the potential adverse impacts of
climate change on our properties during the planning and design phase,
including incorporating new climate-resilient designs and developing
plans to respond to increasingly frequent extreme weather events to
mitigate potential damage on our property assets.

As a result of climate change, extreme weather events, such as
typhoons, seasonal storms and heavy rains, are likely to become more
frequent in the future. To manage and mitigate climate risks resulting
from extreme weather events and protect the Group against possible
financial loss, the Group has formulated emergency plans to deal
with extreme weathers, which aims to reduce disruption and loss due
to suspension of operations. The Group regularly review the impact
of climate change on its operation and will formulate measures in
response to different risks to reduce the risks to the Group and achieve
sustainable operations in future.

The Board will keep monitoring all relevant risks and opportunities and
update its strategy in responding to climate change.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERHRESE (H)

Opportunity in Green Building FEEENKS

As a leading sustainable property developer, we are dedicated to ERBBEMN A FEYMERER ROV
designing and operating our buildings in line with the most rigorous BREEBRIENGEEERINAIRE - REFTME
green building principles and standards. Our commitments to BREMOEEY - BMEFENETENHEIER
advocating green buildings is exemplified by our key property projects I T HRMEREBHOEEFENEE - BME
in the PRC. We aim to obtain certification for our buildings under FEEIRREEYIGAE TOEEMRE &
environmental building assessment schemes that provide benchmarks stz sE R X EER|  AESRANE
and objective standards against which can measure our performance. e Fofr 2021 BA R EEE 7t T 51|78 B JEER A B4k
In FY2021, we have obtained the China Green Building Design Label for EEER T EE -

the below outstanding projects.

Basic information

BEXER
Green Building
Certificates
No. City Project/Building Address obtained
EES&KE
=277 W HE R hik BERE
1 Yancheng Chun Xi Ji (FZ%) East Side of Fangong Road and North Side ~ 2-star
245 of Wei'er Road, Economic Development 4z — 2
Zone, Dongtai City, Jiangsu Province
IEHERAMEEREREAAREMR
et (]|
2 Huai’an Sunac Plaza (ghalE%) West Side of Tianjin Road and South Side 2-star
L of Yan’an East Road HE—2
RAERFE - TR
3 Hai’an Hanlin Capital (338 EKT) No.8 Hebin East Road, Hai’an City 2-star
gy LT B R I8 BB
4 Hai’an Tian Cui Ge (K2 #) North Side of Huanghai Avenue, 1-star
B West Side of Tongyu Road, Hai’an City, g —2
Jiangsu Province
LERE B E G REILA - ERETE A
5 Nantong The Garden of time Groups 3,4,5 and 6 Section of Chengbei 2-star
Eagi) (RS tERE) Community, Chengbei Street, Rugao City 48
T A B b At &
345 6rHMER
FR2021

BEPEGEREERAR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BIR - HEREREEE (H)

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group attaches great importance to its employment practices and
processes as it deems employees as valuable capital for sustainable
business growth and development. We have implemented various
policies and procedures from recruitment, compensation, and welfare
to working hours, promotion and dismissal to safeguard our employees’
rights and benefits. We strictly comply with the Labour Law of the PRC as
well as any other relevant laws and regulations locally.

We are determined to improve our system and practices to attract,
recruit, retain and develop our talents. Having fair and open hiring and
promotion processes is important to the Group. To support youth
development, we implemented internship programmes over the year to
provide students with real-life career experience and opportunities with
the Group. We also organised campus recruitment events to hire new
university graduates with skill and potential. The Group will continue to
contribute to providing career opportunities to youths who will be the
future of society.

In respect of talent retention, our staff are assessed and rewarded
based on a biannual performance appraisal, the results of which are
also used to inform promotion decisions. Staff are promoted based on
their performance, ability, work ethic and attitude, and suitability with
the Group’s corporate culture. Outstanding employees and teams with
excellent performance are selected from these regular appraisals for
recognition and rewards, which may include bonuses and cash prizes as
incentives.

We aim to offer competitive remuneration to our employees. For
example, we updated our human resources structure and Salary
Management Handbook to adjust our pay scale to ensure our
employees are compensated fairly. To achieve more comprehensive
compensation, other benefits in addition to salaries and wages are also
included in our internal policies, including but not limited to holidays
and annual leave allowances, subsidies, housing allowances, birthday
benefits, heatstroke prevention supplies for frontline workers, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BIR - HEREREREE (E)

The Group embraces diversity and inclusion as one of the top priorities.
We are committed to creating a friendly and harmonious environment
for every employee who works together. We seek to promote the
awareness of equal opportunity and anti-discrimination within the
Group. For example, we prepared gifts for our female employees to
celebrate International Women’s Day and give thanks for their service.
Furthermore, we integrate the principle of equal opportunity in our
human resources practices, such as recruitment and promotion. As at
31 December 2021, some of our subsidiaries have promoted female
directors to the Board and management and achieving 50% of female
seating in the board. Employees are appraised, hired and promoted
based on their ability and capabilities, regardless of age, gender,
nationality, culture, religion or other backgrounds. It is our goal to
achieve a diverse and balanced composition for our personnel.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment. In accordance with the “Safety and operation
management guideline” of the Group in place, all our employees
are required to immediately report any workplace hazards to their
supervisors. We regularly conduct inspections to identify potential
workplace hazards and assess risks. Follow-up actions are then carried
out to prevent accidents and maintain safe workplace conditions in our
buildings, equipment and facilities. The results of our inspections are
reported to the management regularly and we monitor the progress of
any follow-up actions.

Rigorous measures are taken to ensure that the wellbeing of our
employees is protected. For example, maintenance and regular
inspections are carried out at the workplace to ensure availability of fire
protection equipment, such as fire extinguishers and emergency lights
in case of emergencies. Greenery is leased for greening our workplace
(“4XEFHE”) to improve indoor environmental quality for our staff who
spend long periods of time in the office, and cultivate their awareness
of environmental protection. At construction sites, our employees and
contractors are required to wear sufficient protective equipment such
as safety helmets and boots, to prevent and reduce the occurrence
of work-related incidents. The Group has strictly complied with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety, including the Production
Safety Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases and the Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurance.
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BIR - HEREREEE (H)

Moreover, we recognise the importance of promoting employee
wellness within the organisation. For example, we organise wellness
programmes for our employees to improve their fitness, including regular
exercise sessions and running events throughout the year. Physical
examinations are offered to employees including new recruits, to ensure
their health.

Under the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group strictly aligns with
government’s disease prevention and control policies and regulations,
and performed precautionary measures to protect the health and safety
of the employees. For instance, we support and encourage our staffs
to take vaccines so as to reduce the risk of infection. We have also
supplied our employee with the health insurance covering COVID-19
to fully secure and protect them. In the working environment, we have
frequently performed disinfection procedures and have setup isolated
mask disposal points separate from normal waste. Our employees
are provided with health guidance and advice on the prevention of
pneumonia and respiratory tract infection. These guidances include
wearing of mask, maintaining appropriate social distance (at least 1
metre), and disposing of used masks properly.

We seek to maintain responsible and healthy workplace practices. Clear
instructions and guidelines are provided for adjusting working hours
and rest periods to ensure adequate rest for workers, to protect their
physical and mental health, as well as to improve their performance.

Development and Training

Integrity, responsibility, pragmatism and efficiency are some of the
fundamental values of the Group’s corporate culture. The Group
believes it plays an important role in developing talents and building
capacity within the Group. With a view to enhancing the professional
quality and management capability of its staff, the Group has established
the Ganglong Academy (“/5#E2 ") with a specific system for
continuous professional development to forge a learning culture across
the Group. The Academy is positioned as an engine for empowering
the organisation and facilitating business growth by developing core
human capital, strengthening corporate culture and serving as a
knowledge hub. Employees are expected to benefit from this corporate
development and training system which helps them broaden their
horizons and realise their potential through a wide range of training
courses. For example, the training encompasses different modules
ranging from onboarding, business training, operations management,
financial management, marketing, train the trainer to management
trainee instruction and leadership training for different management
levels. According to the Group’s internal instructions, employees are
expected to undertake training on a regular basis depending on their
positions, roles, career goals and professional needs.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BIR - HEREREREE (E)

Apart from the Ganglong Academy, the Group continues to introduce
new initiatives to build capacity for its employees and management
personnel. For example, we have introduced some e-learning courses
which are conducted over an online platform to help eliminate some of
the barriers and restrictions of traditional classroom training. In addition,
we are implementing the new “Longxiao Training Scheme” (‘B &5t &5
FII”) initiative for the Group’s middle and upper management to enhance
their managerial and leadership skills and gear up for the Group’s post-
pandemic strategic development plans.

Labour Standards

The Group acknowledges the importance of maintaining a high level
of labour standards in its operations. We strictly prohibit the use of
child and forced labour in any form in our operations and take rigorous
measures to prevent such practices. We expect our suppliers and
contractors to adhere to the same standard for their operations with a
view of protecting the rights and welfare of workers.

Furthermore, we strictly follow the relevant laws and regulations related
to labour practices and endeavour to provide employees with quality
working conditions. Our policies, including the Group’s Staff Handbook,
are regularly updated to reflect relevant regulatory changes where we
operate.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group interacts with a network of suppliers and contractors
for its operations and services. Adherence to environmental and
social standards by our supply chain is integral to our commitment
to sustainable procurement. Internal policies and procedures are
established as operational guidance for staff in relation to supplier
selection, management and evaluation, as well as procurement
management.

Through working with our suppliers and contractors, we strive to
minimise environmental and social risks associated with our supply
chain. For example, we require our contractors to pay their workers
promptly as a condition for awarding contracts. Moreover, suppliers
are encouraged to avoid materials with potential adverse environmental
impacts. To ensure construction quality, spot checks are made to
prevent use of inferior materials by suppliers which may compromise
building safety. Furthermore, we promote the values of environmental
protection and sustainability in our supply chain by encouraging more
eco-friendly designs and materials for our buildings, such as installing
more water-efficient fixtures to help reduce water consumption by
tenants.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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We are dedicated to working with suppliers and contractors that satisfy
our environmental and social standards. Background checks and/or
field visits are conducted to assess qualification of new suppliers and
contractors before acceptance. Performance of existing suppliers and
contractors is reviewed and evaluated quarterly to ensure continuous
compliance. In the event of unsatisfactory performance, suppliers and
contractors may be asked to rectify the issues in a timely manner. If they
fail to meet our selection requirements, their evaluation results will be
affected which may lead to disqualification.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to operating with a high level of integrity,
transparency and accountability. We have zero tolerance for any form
of bribery, corruption and unethical practices. To communicate our
principles and strong stance against corruption, we provide regular
trainings to all our staff and management to raise their awareness and
understanding of unethical behaviours and other malpractices. The
Group has strictly complied with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC, the Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery and
other relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has established internal rules to provide guidance and
a basis for employee behaviour. We have also introduced specific
guidelines and mechanisms to ensure that high standards of business
practice are maintained. For example, we require all our suppliers to sign
an anti-corruption agreement and comply with our requirements before
establishing the business relationship. Internally, we provide declaration
forms to our staff for reporting any potential or identified conflicts of
interest.

We have a whistle-blowing mechanism in place, including report hotline
and email and the Group’s self-developed integrity platform “SunShine
Ganglong” (53¢ 8E), to create a safe environment for our employees
to report any concerns of non-compliance or malpractice at work.
During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any litigations
arising from violation of laws or regulations against corruption, bribery,
fraud and money laundering.

Product Responsibility

As a responsible property developer, customer safety is among the
Group’s top concerns. Thus, we are committed to delivering high quality
and safe products and services to all our customers. Policies and
systems regarding quality assurance are in place to ensure our products
and services are satisfactory, reliable and compliant with relevant rules
and standards. The Group has strictly complied with the requirements
of the Law of the PRC on the Administration of the Urban Real Estate,
the Regulations on Urban Real Estate Development and Management
Control and other relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BIR - HEREREREE (E)

The Group extends its responsibility beyond its own operations and
requires all contractors to strictly abide by the contractual requirements
and specifications set out by the Group. We have established a quality
management system to facilitate the close supervision and monitoring
of our property developments from design, through surveying and
construction, to completion. Regular inspections and visits are carried
out at construction sites to ensure work quality of contractors. We also
make great efforts to ensure our properties are developed in accordance
with relevant standards of local authorities through internal and external
inspection and project acceptance processes. For example, we use
building materials that have been satisfactorily tested by local testing
centres and make sure lightning protection and fire safety systems in our
buildings meet the relevant inspection standards. All of our properties
delivered to customers have passed the acceptance check and
certificate of acceptances are issued by relevant government authorities.

Our properties comply with China Green Building label 1-star and 2-star
standard. To ensure our properties are environmental friendly and our
customers can live in sustainable and healthy areas.

The Group are committed to expanding the sustainable sourcing by
“Green Supply Chain”. Our guideline on supplier management and
material management have been enforced to protect our properties and
ensured our suppliers to comply with the Group expectation of ethical
standards, including business integrity, fair competition, environmental
sustainability, legal compliance and human rights.

The Group treasures our own research and development. Our
intellectual property (“IP”) rights have been protected by our Intellectual
Property Maintenance and Control policy. We are cautious about
handling designs, and strictly comply with patent requirements and
royalty in adoption. Similarly, we defend our IP rights by registration and
other confidential measures.

The Group takes concrete steps to ensure customer complaints are
dealt with in a timely manner. Feedback and complaints are collected
from customers through our service hotlines, aftersales phone
interviews, or customer surveys conducted by third-party providers.
Appropriate staff are assigned to follow up and identify suitable remedial
actions to address customers’ concerns. Moreover, specific response
time targets are set for complaints received. For example, we aim to
follow up with customers within an hour upon receiving complaints
related to maintenance and sales and aim to settle the complaints within
2 days.
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Our commitment to data protection and privacy is reflected in our
approach to handling customers’ personal and transactional data.
In light of growing concerns in data privacy and cybersecurity, and
an increasing level of digitalisation of communication, data collected
by the Group during business will be encrypted and properly stored
in the enterprise system. We have provided guidelines and regular
communications to enhance staff awareness and their practice on data
handling. For example, data control is strictly managed such that each
sales representative can only access data of their own customers in the
system. We also made agreements with the system vendor to ensure
our data will not be distributed to any third parties. During the reporting
year, we did not observe any customer data leakages.

Community

The Group is dedicated to serving communities and creating positive
societal impacts. In 2021, the Group focused on Little Koi Initiative
(/B ETE") to develop quality education in local area, including
volunteering reading books for children, renovation of school libraries
and donating books.

During 2021, the Group made great efforts to support local communities
in the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic by strictly following public
health guidelines to help prevent the spread of the disease. We also
provided free face masks and disinfectant alcohol to those in need in
some communities.

The Group will continue its efforts in encouraging its staff to actively
participate in a variety of charitable, voluntary and outreach activities
and in building a rapport with local communities.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group is committed to ensuring that its business operations are
in compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. Regulatory
frameworks within which the Group operates are reviewed and
monitored while internal policies are prepared and updated accordingly.
Where necessary and appropriate, workshops and/or trainings are
conducted to strengthen staff’s awareness and understanding of the
Group’s internal controls and compliance procedures.

During the reporting year, we did not observe any form of non-
compliance or violation with laws and regulations that might have
a significant impact on the Group’s operating areas, such as
environmental protection, employment, labour practices, operational
and organisational activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERHRESE (H)

Social Performance Data Table HERBEIER
FY2021 FY2020
20214 2020%F
Unit B BBEE MIRFE
Employee Profile BTExR
Total workforce EEIPAECE | No. of people A% 582 911
Total workforce by employment type T LRI E 75 145 B 77 4B 2
Full-time i No. of people AR 577 910
Part-time 3 No. of people A EX 5 1
Total workforce by gender LI B &) 77 S B T A8 2
Male B No. of people  A£X 339 522
Female pegii No. of people  A£X 238 389
Total workforce by rank R E| 7 RAE S EBA O
General staff —fRELE No. of people AKX 408 720
Middle management hREESIEAS No. of people A EX 140 164
Senior management SREBAB No. of people A £ 29 27
Total workforce by age group FEF AR Z) 75 B B T A8 2
18-29 18-29 5% No. of people A 177 396
30-39 30-39 &% No. of people AL 320 402
40-49 40-49 5% No. of people AL 64 87
50-59 50-59 % No. of people A ZL 16 24
60 or above 60 BREA L No. of people A £ - 2
Total workforce by geographic location — 15 FE(7 & 2|7 1954 8) 711 48 2
Mainland China A No. of people A £ 569 911
Hong Kong B8 No. of people A £k 8 0
Employee Turnover BT 7%
Employee turnover rate 8 TR R % % 45% 29%
Employee turnover rate by gender FEVERIZ 7789 8 T Bt K
Male B % % 44% 28%
Female pegi % % 47% 29%
Full-time employee’s turnover rate HBERAAZ S HE T
by age group orid
18-29 18-29 7% % % 57% 29%
30-39 30-39 B% % % 39% 32%
40-49 40-49 5% % % 30% 14%
50-59 50-59 B% % % 1% 20%
60 or above 60 FRakA % % 0% 33%
Employee turnover rate by 1 PR 2 &) 7898 T
geographic location BERE R
Mainland China A % % 45% 29%
Hong Kong BB % % 11% 0%

1. The overall turnover rate increased in FY2021 is in order to improve
cost and increase efficiency through structure adjustment and

resources optimisation.

1.

2021 SR B B RE R R IR0 BB IBAEIE

AR ERE(CARERARIRTIRE -

BEPEGEREERAR

F 72021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIZ - HERERRES ()

Social Performance HERR
2019 2020 2021
Unit By 20194 20204 2021

Occupational Health and Safety BEREHZS

Work-related fatalities HTHEBEMILTENR No.ofpeople  AH 0 0 0
FY2021 FY2020
Unit By 021 FHBEE  2020FHHFE
Lost day due to work injury* ETIEmRERE No. of days K& 0 0

# The lost day is calculated based on sum of the number of injuries no. # TREN B RETHIRIR X5 A B LA TR 8D R B ifn 51
of days cannot attend to work. B8 -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BIR - HEREREREE (E)

Social Performance HEXRR
FY2021 FY2020
20214 2020%F
Unit By BEREE MEFE
Development and Training BERLZ
Total workforce trained BRI E) &8 No. of people  ABX 526 804
Employees trained by gender I BIE a2 e 8 T
Male Bt No. of people A 303 453
Female pegi No. of people A 223 351
Employees trained by employee 1% 8 T 527789
category XAIRIET
General staff —BE No. of people A% 362 641
Middle management REEEAR No. of people A% 137 139
Senior management SHEBEAE No. of people A% 27 24
Employees trained by gender EIEFE e 8 T
Male B4 % % 89% 87%
Female 4 % % 94% 90%
Employees trained by employee HZIE S X FIE 5B
category ES
General staff —MRE%E % % 89% 89%
Middle management FREEEAS % % 98% 85%
Senior management BHREEREAB % % 93% 89%
Average training hours per 171t FIE 7 & § T
employees by gender T2 2
Male Esls Hours/ BHESR
employees /N R 26 24
Female pegis Hours/ HHESR
employees /INEFER 32 31
Average training hours per employees %5 T 1852/ 5 #742 (7
by employee category ST P22
General staff —REE Hours/ BxES
employees NEFEL 30 29
Middle management FEEEAS Hours/ BHEE
employees /INEFER 27 21
Senior management SEE YN Hours/ BEREE
employees N 19 23
Supply Chain Management HEREE
Number of suppliers by geographic & 27 B &5 #Y
location HRERZ A
Mainland China A No. of suppliers &£ H 5,492 5,692

F #2021 121
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BiR - HERERBHSE(E)

FY2021 FY2020
202145 20204F
Unit By BEREE MIEE
Product Responsibility EREF
Percentage of total products sold T2 REERRRE T
subject to recalls for safety and ARIMERER
health reasons HEBNAD % % 0.05% 0%
Number of products and service W /9 B EE o J2 No. of
related complaints received RIS MR IRER £ complaints &2 51 60
Community investment HERE
Amount of money spent KALEE
Education HE RMB ARET 210,000 224,360
Environmental RIR RMB AREETT - 32,120
Health f Rk RVB AR®TT - 2,086,093
Labour needs BE) hFEK RVB ARETT 30,000 61,260
Sport 5 RVMB AR¥TT - 72,400
Other contribution HAb E B RMB AREETT 220,000 2,452,880
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ABET RS

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Ganglong China Property Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ganglong China Property
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 132 to 279, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B R R 1

BEETEHERERRARARRK
(REIEHSTMA LA ER A A])

=25

KMAEBTWAR
BREPEMEEBMARARATHEBIEAR])
REMBARIATHHEI ESEE)SHNE132E
27T9E MR EMISTRE - BIE

FEIRREK

202112 A31 BH4RA

o FAUKBREWE  ERIZeHBEME
MEAMEEES -

RAHWER

BMRAE  ZEREUBHRERCBRIEE LA
AEBRHGACEEHBHREEIDEEMFR AR
BT BHEER2021F12831 AHERA BN
LEBZZALFENGAUBRERGARS
e WEEREB(ARMENINNIBEERTE S
B o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB RS (&)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

1 Classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates

2 Provision for land appreciation tax

ERHNER
RNEREEBR DR RBEHAO(EEE 8
BT - RIVER SRR TR ROETDE
ARWETHBE B HEA M BRRAEHEAE
B —HM -

BFEE - HAMESHESREERRREES
RRPIME B RIR A -

B

REFB GRS BEMHACEXSFTEERT
ADCATERE PR - BFPBLR BEE - A
EETTRIFMEMEREEAT -

EARET S
MRETFEERERMNERALE - BAYA
PG AR BRENETRAEENER - %25F
HARERMEFBEEFAMBHRRREAZAR
EITRERN - ZATEHZETFREHREBENE
8o

BAIEET AR RERE FREMALT

2 IHIREWOERE

Key Audit Matter
BREETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RSN EERREERIEE

L= s Ubsidiaries, ointventures
and associates
HEBAR  AECERBERRND IR

Refer to Note 4(b), Note 16 and Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2 HEE VB ImROMEE4b) - IFE16F1PFES5 -

In assessing the Group’s classification of investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, we have performed
the following procedures:
ERIEZEEENELR - AL 0ERBE QRN DER -
FIEET LA TEEF

(@) in relation to the composition of the board of directors of
the investees:

BARNRIRENEFTEMAK
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BE RS (&)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

EREISEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N AEEBRETEE

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China
focusing on the development of residential properties. The
Group co-operated with other parties to invest in a number
of property development projects, which are classified as
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

SEA—MPEAMNEERER  FINRBETY
¥ SEBEHMEMERERSIEREZ AR MEREIR
BRR ZERRRBERANBEAR 68 LEIBER

Al e

We focus on the classification of investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates as the classification requires
management’s use of significant judgements in determining
whether the Group has control, joint control or significant
influence over the investees. It requires the analysis of
various factors aside from shareholdings, including but
not limited to composition of the board of directors of the
investees and decision making authorities at the investees’
shareholders’ meeting and board of directors meetings.
HMBIREMEAR a8 bERBERRINSE
REZVBEREEENRTE BSEETHERERAES
i HEZEGIRSERTE NGRS ARAE o HE
FEBFREAREMEERE - AFEETRNERES
ESgNABRNARERREFRRAGNESZEER LN
TRERE -

—  we obtained and examined the legal documents
in relation to the investments in the property
development projects where the Group co-operated
with other parties, including the co-development
agreements and articles of associations of the
investees, to assess management’s evaluation of
the rights of investors, co-operation arrangements,
termination provisions, management structures and
profit-sharing arrangements;
HPERITES REE M SENYERMEIER
REMBREEXY - BEEREFNEIERERZ
MARIER - UrHEEREHREEEN WG - &
PEZHE - #RIEIGRRR - BIRAEB IR =28k

- where there are subsequent changes to legal
documents, including but not limited to the co-
development agreements and/or articles of
association, we assessed whether the accounting
impact of such changes, affecting any previously
determined classification have been considered.

ER (BRI (TR A EREHE & SEM
ZIRMANBELREBE - BT EZSEDHH

&=l B4 B A< BL AR e =} ANHK
ST ERG T ELREENDE -

in relation to the decision making authorities at the
investees’ shareholders’ meetings and board of directors
meetings:

BEHREKETNERRASNESTS G E LHORERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB RS (&)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEER

ERESHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N AEEBREETER

For subsidiaries, their assets, liabilities and transactions
are consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements on a line-by-line basis, whereas the interests
in joint ventures and associates are accounted for as
investments on the consolidated statement of financial
position, whilst their results are accounted for using the
equity method. Hence, the classification of investments as
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates has material and
pervasive impact on the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

HRMERT - BEE  ABERRSRN EXEENGEEH
BWMEPEITEH  MEBELERBEATNERNERE
MBARRKRPERKREAR  MAXBAGEAERZEA
Ik o At - BRESERIE - &8 E L2 A RHER
B RROFRRZFINEFEARLRBNTE -

- we understood and evaluated whether the decision
making mechanism as well as the scope of decisions
where shareholders and the board of directors are
empowered to make are consistent with the co-
development agreements and articles of association
of the investees;

BB BRI AT T OREH I LA R ME S & 1F
HARNBES T ELRAEHENERERANE
A%

- we reviewed minutes of shareholders’ meetings
and board of directors’ meetings of the investees,
and other materials presented to shareholders
and the board of directors to corroborate with our
understanding on the decision making mechanism
and the scope of decisions that the shareholders
and the board of directors are empowers to make, or
made in practice during the year.
BMEMTREAGRERESEFSERNGRL
8 ARABRRRESSRIAEMME - LAEFER
PIEDRFEE LB R REFe B RN ELHE
SRR R EO B A IRAR ©

(c) inrelation to changes in shareholdings during the year:
MAEEHT =

- we understand and evaluated management’s
assessment on the changes in control and
classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates;
BMBRIUTEEREHNEAR &2 tEREE
DA E BT S R D HEE LR

—  we obtained and examined the legal documents in
relation to the changes in investments, including the
co-development agreements, articles of associations
of the investees and shareholders’ resolutions.
BPEGITESRREFSHEENEEXY - Bk
REFHNHREREG®  ARERRRREARESR ©

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgements applied in determining the
classification of the Group’s investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates were supported by available evidence.
RIBFFATEERR RMBEREERERTE ESERMER
Al AEREIEE N RINKRE D ERERNFIBHEEEE
K o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BE RS (&)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

EREISEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N AEEBRETEE

Provision for land appreciation tax

THIRER RO EE

Refer to Note 4(c) and Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
F2RERE VISR KR40 FMIEE10 ©

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had land appreciation tax (“LAT”) payable amounted
to RMB200,608,000 and the provision for LAT amounted to
RMB53,804,000, respectively.
HE2021F12AARBEZAILFE - E5ENERN
T EER A A RE200,608,0007T + i ETR BB A A
R ¥53,804,0007T °

LAT in Mainland China is one of the main components
of the Group’s tax provision, and is levied on the sale of
properties at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
based on the appreciation of land value. At the end of
each financial reporting period, management of the Group
estimates the provision for LAT in relation to the sales of
properties based on the allocation of revenue and cost of
sales among different property types and the estimated total
sales of properties less total deductible expenditures of the
relevant property. This estimation incorporated judgement
around classification of property types, and the application
of deductibles, which includes lease payments for land use
rights, property development costs, borrowing costs and
other development expenditures, based on management’s
understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax rules
and regulations.

HEINME B ER S EREHREX LA E 2HEKE
D2 o WEHE N IR ER THIRIB30% £ 60%H) RiE
TR T HISERAY - REMERK - SEEEERE
TRIFE HEHE 2 M AW AN EE & AT F HhE R a8
HERBE RN E AATERMET DB EREE - %
B EREREHEETEZNRENRRANERE - PRE
WEARNSE  AEKAEELEAENEERNT
b EE BN » {8 AR A B Ath 5 B 2 7R A Y S B 2R
Coball=i

In assessing the provision for LAT, we have performed the
following procedures:

FERHL TR ER AR - BB T IA T EZR

(@)

we understood, evaluated and tested the relevant controls
over the calculation of the provision for LAT;

BOIEEE - SHEAAE T A TS ET R ERT B
I

we tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of sales of
properties and expenditures of the relevant properties by
checking the relevant documents including property sales
contracts and invoices;
BMBEEREHEEER(BREBMEHRESNNER) - N
Hm A TURE T ¥ E BRI Y X e R

we assessed the reasonableness of the basis for
classification of property types and allocation of revenue
and cost of sales among different property types by
reviewing the relevant documents including construction
land planning permit and certificates;
HMAmASHERAMREFTAIEMEES XM - &7
& T BHE D A R T REHE 5 B A AR S & AR EY
BIRE

we obtained and examined the tax payments, LAT
clearance, where applicable, and other relevant
correspondences with local tax authorities, on a sample
basis, to assess the accuracy and reasonableness of LAT
provision; and

BMESTRERF - DR ERFE(MER)AKREE
R TSR R LA AR A (S 1 - DA 7 SRS LG (E A
BETDERSE R
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ZBE#RE (E)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEER

ERESHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N AEEBREETER

When the LAT is subsequently determined by the tax
authority upon LAT clearance, the actual payments may be
different from the estimates.
ISR B2 B TF T IR E R
FHE -

- BERI KA B2 A BIMA

We focus on the provision for LAT as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the LAT to the consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the judgement
and estimates involved.

MR IR ERE G E M RRBERNTEARME R
EVHIET (AR E E M - BAPIS T IR E R R A —
THRRETFER -

)

we engaged our internal tax specialists to review the LAT
provision, including the LAT provision calculation based on
the relevant tax rates for different types of properties and
the deductibility of the against the relevant tax rules and
regulations in the calculation.
BMEETABHEEREM L MISETRE - 2FERE
A Bt EE R AR A AR B I R DA R st AP ABRA T A M AR = Y
AJHEHNIE B 5T DS E RS o

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgement and estimates applied in provision for
LAT were supported by available evidence.
BBEFTAITEVIR T - RO EREY + IR E R B E e 2B
AEFHERISE B R -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEERE (&)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

HfER
EAREEAHRBELAR - KB BEF
BANFEREE (BT EEGAMEHRERRM
PO R S -
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Afg ©
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB RS (&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEERE (&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SREEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BRISRIEFRRSN  SEEEE LA AREE)

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR®T T AREFTT
Revenue Uz 5 10,368,685 4,171,331
Cost of sales SHEE R AR 6 (7,968,312) (2,654,238)
Gross profit EF 2,400,373 1,617,093
Other income and other gains, net E A A R B i 250558 8 87,289 26,172
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R EHAYT 6 (514,368) (388,552)
General and administrative expenses — AT 6 (626,590) (461,659)
Fair value gains on investment properties & ¥ A it BEKE 15 2,120 10,100
Operating profit R 1,348,824 703,154
Finance income RE WA 9 43,575 38,735
Finance costs ELEEND N 9 (281,605) (121,702)
Finance costs, net BhE R AR R 9 (238,030) (82,967)
Share of results of joint ventures and JEIh &S DE RS AR RE
associates 16 393,009 403,436
Profit before income tax FriS B A= 1,503,803 1,023,623
Income tax expenses PRGBS 10 (401,622) (381,684)
Profit and total FRRAREEKEEEE
comprehensive income for the year 1,102,181 641,939
Profit attributable to: BTN AL FEAERRF
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE Y =DN 480,936 960,748
Non-controlling interests EIS O iy 621,245 (318,809)
1,102,181 641,939
Earnings per share attributable to AATHEE AEGRRZ
owners of the Company BREMN(ERUAREIIR)
(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 0.30 0.68

The notes on pages 139 to 279 are an integral part of these F139E 2798 Z RN Z S a M Iz —
v VAN

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=AN R Q)
e IR AR R R
At of 31 December 2021 | 2021F12A31H
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

As at 31 December

#M12A318
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET T AREETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE RERE 13 138,939 67,975
Investment properties LB 15 183,020 180,900
Investments accounted for using RAESEYRNIEE
the equity method 16 1,619,884 1,468,834
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTIE & 17 409,496 347,836
2,351,339 2,065,545
Current assets REEE
Properties under development By 18 36,670,782 32,108,351
Completed properties held for sale FEHEMD BRI YE 18 2,375,337 295,960
Trade and other receivables and B 5 K E Ath e RIE &
prepayments TEfTRIR 19 1,804,477 1,128,141
Amounts due from associates NI E O 33 129,850 175,789
Amounts due from joint ventures FEU & E{ERIA 33 253,761 426,390
Amounts due from non-controlling interests  FEY3E12 % #2531 18 26 3,960,807 2,578,961
Tax recoverable EEEEE 1,497,073 670,214
Restricted cash HRHIRE 20 4,608,272 2,211,490
Pledged time deposits TTEHFER 20 71,657 37,727
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEEY 20 2,304,919 4,547,628
53,676,935 44,180,651
Total assets BEAEE 56,028,274 46,246,196
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to the 771 F#EHE A GRS R H#E
owners of the Company
Share capital i 21 14,900 14,919
Reserves (0] 22 3,826,972 3,679,095
3,841,872 3,694,014
Non-controlling interests FEHERRAER 6,435,880 792,679
Total equity DB 10,277,752 4,486,693

F 352021
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RE M HIRR R ()

At of 31 December 2021 | ¥2021F12H31H
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br4FRI5FRESN © £ 5B A AREE)

As at 31 December

A12831H
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
st ARETT AREFTT
LIABILITIES a8E&
Non-current liabilities kREBERE
Borrowings & 23 6,736,574 2,590,967
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTSHAE 17 157,124 110,402
Lease liabilities HEAaE 14 80,188 18,049
6,973,886 2,719,418
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables, bills payables and other B EMNFE - EAEE R
payables HAuhpE A 24 5,076,982 5,836,270
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 16,629 12,151
Contract liabilities aHaE 5 27,240,235 20,979,809
Amounts due to associates FEfTE N BIFRIE 33 705,827 1,159,616
Amounts due to joint ventures ENEEERIA 33 804,488 914,191
Amounts due to non-controlling interests ~ fE{ 3E1E R 425 2018 26 1,858,586 3,761,926
Tax payable FESHIIE 315,876 325,482
Borrowings IEY 23 2,758,013 6,050,640
38,776,636 39,040,085
Total liabilities BEH8E 45,750,522 41,759,503
Total equity and liabilities ERRBEEE 56,028,274 46,246,196

The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 279 were F132F 2798 L M4 E B 5 MR B 7202243 A
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were signed OSHEEESHAE  WRRESSHE -
on its behalf.

Mr. Lui Ming Mr. Lui Jin Ling
BHLE BERKE
Director Director

FE E3

The notes on pages 139 to 279 are an integral part of these F139E 2798 Z RN Z S a M Iz —
consolidated financial statements. & o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=AN >< 4=t
MEERBEXR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ANFRE AER
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserves reserves  earnings  Subtotal interests Total
Bx  BOEE tERE  EHHEE  RERA ot FERER a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR
(Note21)  (Note22)  (Note22)  (Note 22)
(Wro1)  (E22)  (WE22)  (HfsEeo)
Balance at 1 January 2021 R021F1B1R LR 14919 1474816 227,833 315515 1,660,931 3,694,014 792,679 4,486,693
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENR2EYRES
for the year - - - - 480936 480,936 621,245 1,102,181
Transactions with owners: EREANRS
Cancellation of shares (Note 21) SRR (BsE21) (19) (6,997) - 7,016 - - - -
Buy back of shares (Note 21) BERA (1) - - - (13147) - (13147) - (13147)
Dividends for the year ended HZ2000512A31A
31 December 2020 IFEERES - - - - (293511)  (293,511) - (293511)
Acquistion of additional interests NG
in subsidries (Note 27) e (fistar) - - - (26420 - (6420 (122072 (148,492
Waiver of advances from HeErEa (i)
non-controlling interest (Note a) - - - - - - 1,847,133 1,847,133
Acquisition of Shanghal Gangxuan (Note 28) Utk 18 5%F (Hi3t08) - - - - - - 50047 50,047
Deemed disposal of Nanjing Jinjun BIELEFRSB (M)
(Note 29) - - - - - - (2010 (22,010
Capitalinjections from non-controling FARER A (D)
interests (Note b) - - - - - - 3,268,858 3,268,858
Appropriation to statutory reserve BRTTETRE - - 4,955 - (4,995) - - -
Total transactions with ownersintheir ~ E#&& A (UEEBEEAN
capacity as owners ERNRAAE (19) (6,997) 4955  (32,551) (298,466) (333,078) 5,021,956 4,688,878
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31 AeR 14900 1,467,819 232,788 282,964 1,843,401 3841872 6,435,880 10,277,752

Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain subsidiaries of the
Group have passed shareholders’ resolution to waive the collection
of advances from non-controlling interests. Accordingly, advances
from non-controlling interests amounted to RMB1,847,133,000
have been recognised in equity during the year ended 31 December

2021.

Note b: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the non-controlling
interersts of certain subsidiaries injected RMB3,628,858,000 (2020:
RMB701,665,000) in cash into the Group’s subsidiaries as capital

contribution.

Mista : EE2021F12A31 HILFE - REBETH
BARCRBRERERA RIS E
HBF - ALk 0 EHZE2021F12831HIEF
€ JEIERE RS B IR A R E1,847,133,0007T
ERERPRER

BifEED

HE2021F12 A31H IEFE

THIB R

AR SRR E RS IR S T EAE BB
NE] - &85 ARES,628,858,0007T (2020
F : AR#701,665,0007T) °

F 72021
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
FEEnREBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARAREE RS
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling
captal  premum  reserves  reserves  eamings  Subfotal  interests Total

BE BHEE  EERE  HtREE  RERY N5t FEERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB0O00 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note21) ~ (Note22)  (Note22)  (Note 22)

(sro1)  (re2)  (Msko2)  (MizEoe)

Balance at 1 January 2020 202051 A1A &% - - 136,121 315515 791,896 1,243,531 409,823 1,663,354
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENR2EYRES

for the year - - - - 960,748 960,748  (318809) 641,939
Transactions with owners: EREANRS
Shares issued pursuant to the HERMBETRORG

capitalisation issue 10,979 (10,979) - - - - - -
Shares issued under the global offering PHEEETERTRG 3940 1,544,394 - - - 1,548,334 - 1548334
Share issuance costs RAEIRA - (859 - - - (859) - (3859
Capital injections from non-controling FARER TR

interests - - - - - - 701,665 701,665
Appropriation to statutory reserve EREITRE - - 92 - @ - - -
Total transactions with owners in their capacity H#5 A MEIEARR A

as owners G HEE 14919 1474816 91,712 - (91,7129 1489735 701665 2,191,400
Balance at 31 December 2020 2020512431 A e 14919 1474816 227,833 315515 1660931 3,694,014 792679 4,486,693

The notes on pages 139 to 279 are an integral part of these F139E 2798 Z RN Z S a M Iz —
consolidated financial statements. & o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\ é Iﬁv ﬁ)\ﬁ% %

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERRSN -

TREVSARKE)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEFE
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥TT AREETTT
Cash flows from operating activities KESEE TSRS RE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &4 (FFR),Fr53iIR& 25(a) (2,682,086) 755,605
Income tax paid [=ERIZIESTT (1,253,025) (1,027,084
Net cash used in operating activities LETRE T ARS8 (3,935,111) (271,479
Cash flows from investing activities RETHREBHRERKE
Payments for purchase of property, plant  BEEWZE - E &KEER R
and equipment 13 (34,284) (22,499)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEW% - FE MR IERSIIE
and equipment 25(b) 5,891 224
Payments for purchase of financial assets & A A BETEBEEBA
at fair value through profit or loss BB ESmEEMNR (120,790) -
Proceed from disposal of financial assets ~ HER AR BETE B EE T
at fair value through profit or loss FFABENEREENME
s m 164,800 -
Net cash acquired on acquisition of U 5% —FEI BT B X B PTIETS Y
a subsidiary ReFE 28 37,481 -
Net cash disposed on deemed RIELE— KB ARRRL A
disposal of a subsidiary REF8 29 (81,669) -
Investments in joint ventures REGEDE (25,115) (47,000)
Investments in associates KBRS AT (98,340) -
Advances to associates Bl A=NEIE=EA (152,318) (45,000)
Repayment of advances to associates [EV AL =N E-PN 188,890 -
Advances to joint ventures MEEDERR (297,743) (795,816)
Repayment of advances to joint ventures (BB [A& S DX 435,401 720,996
Advances to non-controlling interests IEEIR R R 2K (2,273,814) (2,455,392)
Repayment of advances to non- BB MIFEIERRAE I E R
controlling interests 819,218 254,330
Dividend received BURRE 4,100 -
Interest received BUFIE 43,575 38,735
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTAEESFE (1,384,717) (2,351,422)
F352021
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

FERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

Year ended 31 December

BE12ABLEE
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fisE AR¥T T AREFT
Cash flows from financing activities METBHAERERE
Advances from associates kNI EAE /4 53,881 104,855
Repayment of advances from associates BEBMES AR (332,690) (379,940)
Advances from joint ventures BEDERT 148,230 1,257,156
Repayment of advances from joint ventures EBEAEDERR (27,665) (1,214,190)
Repayment of advances from Controlling BEPIRA R
Shareholders - (23,539)
Advances from non-controlling interests FEIERR TR B R 1,039,675 6,967,702
Repayment of advances from BRI EERERE
non-controlling interests (995,009) (8,085,120)
Proceeds from borrowings CEGiEE e 7,680,895 9,511,850
Repayment of borrowings BERER (6,277,915) (3,723,542)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities ~ EEREABEERE LD (12,984) (11,315)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities EEHEAENELY (6,305) (1,249)
Buyback of shares EeAmpldh) (13,147) -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ FEERIELR T E 3,268,858 701,665
Dividend paid BERRE (293,511) -
Interest paid 252 (999,813) (432,749)
Payment for acquisition of UGBS JEIR A RS T IR
non-controlling interests 27 (148,492) -
Proceeds from the listing il SN - 1,548,334
Payments for listing expenses ETREXAR - (92,819)
Payment for issuance of senior note BITEARERE (6,889) (8,787)
Net cash generated from financing activities METEMEESFE 3,077,119 6,118,312
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRBESEEBURD)
cash equivalents EInFEE (2,242,709) 3,495,411
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUReNREFEY
the year 4,547,628 1,052,217
Cash and cash equivalents R2021F12831H
at 31 December 2021 HERESZEEY 20 2,304,919 4,547 628

The notes on pages 139 to 279 are an integral part of these F139E 2798 Z RN Z S a M Iz —
consolidated financial statements. & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8
October 2018 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church
Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is located at
No. 11 Building, PortMix South District, No. 2177 Shenkun Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is located at Suites 3620-22, 36/F, Two Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the development of real estate projects
in the PRC. The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15
July 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issued by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company on
25 March 2022.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622 (“HKCQ”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as modified by investment properties
which are measured at fair value.

—RER
RRAFNR2018F10 A8 HARBERASHS A
AEERERESAMA L AEREERA
A) o A R 8 5 il 4% =5 5E o 4k A 4th Floor,
Harbour Place, 103 South Church Street,
P.0O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands ° A2 &) & B[ @A 7] (4118
[REEDHFELEMBUNRPEARL
B ([ B FEmEIfTIR R E 2177554
BEREERRI1EE - RARREANE
DEEMBUN BB REESS AL ES
PE361£3620-22F °

AAElR—EREEKRAT - AEEEEE
PREGEFHEEBRE - A2 RAORN
2020F7 A15HERBHER AR AR
(B2 ]) £70 o

BIEREFHN  BRIGEMBREAARE
(TARK D25 -

FEMGIRKREN2022F3 A25 B EAR A T
e ([EFg)HERM -

EXRSTHREE
RENSHAMBREBFRMZ EATHH
BEBESIMT - BBEHBI - HEK
FRFTE 2R BB -

2.1 fREE%E
AEENGEARBHREREESEH
HBAE((EEGHHAT ) BHHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@)

New and amendments to standards adopted by the
Group

The following new and amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BB EMELERFEG, - HAEZFAERIE3I95 -

BEREVBHEERETR - BEMERELRESRR
FRMBREENF165ZIER]

The adoption of the above new and amendments to
standards did not have significant financial impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited
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2.1 RBEEE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

New standard and amendments to existing standards (b)
issued but not yet effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and have not

been early adopted by the Group:

2.1 IBEE(E)

ERATERA :

R EARIEE
MEME M AT 202241 B1B#E5
BN EAYN - Bl EERE

BEXREFBERBE (E)

A2 ETAR

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
AT BEIE
ZEBRRE
=R EES

Amendments to HKAS 16

EEGEERIE165E 2 BFTA
Amendments to HKAS 37
BAGERIEITHR ZIEET A
Amendments to HKFRS 3

BRMBRELER

|35/ ERTA

Annual Improvements Projects

HE 2 FEBE

Revised Accounting Guideline 5

2ET953|E5H(BE])
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BRGREAF IR RBBMBERESRE

BIERHRE FE29m 2 IBET A
Amendments to HKAS 12

EEGEERIE125 2 BFTA
Amendments to HKAS 8

BA G ERIES 2 BT AR
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB EAIE R IEHTA

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

WE - BERRE - BEERRRASHRIE

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BEEH-BITAHZKR

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

DERSIESR

Annual improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018

to 2020

BB IR EER2018F E2020F A 2 FEN

i:=

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

HAZEHINE A

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRR

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

BE-RHEENEEME BERBANRTEMEN

Definition of Accounting Estimates

BIHEERN TR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BESBRARBIIERE

1 January 2022

202241 81H
1 January 2022
202241 H1H
1 January 2022
202241 H1H
1 January 2022

202241 A1H

1 January 2022

20221 A1H
1 January 2023

2023F1A1H
1 January 2023
20231 A1H
1 January 2023
20231 A1H

1 January 2023

2023%1HA1H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EAE T EHFEHE (&)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1 mBEE(E)

(o) New standard and amendments to existing standards (o) FETEARBALEAZEETARE
issued but not yet effective for the financial year MEHRE AR 202251 A1 H Rk
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and have not ZEMPEAR - BUWEERE
been early adopted by the Group: (Continued) ERRIRA - (8B)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RULT Bk
ZBBBI
= RS
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2023
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
BB R E55%(2020) BB REOZT| — ERAE S HRERERGER 2023%1A1H
MEBE RS A
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BBV ELENETSR RBEX 2023%F1A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture
BB EERE105% K REEMEBENTHEECECHEELENX 1
BAGEERF28R 2 EETAR xE

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2021 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E884) -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (Note
2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights, except for joint
arrangements as detailed in (c) below. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity,including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.9.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

TREU/ARKE)

2. ERSFTEERBEGE)

2.2

e RARERSTTRE (&)

b2 Ny =]

(©)

BERH

REBFEMBREENFEHEE
BRY] REERHNRED
BRAEEBHAERE -8
HORNEREEN A KRN RE
% MIEFRERTEVEERE -

ROV F LA S BB BERRE
RHERIR RAEBRENEER®
REEARR(R X))

EEEE

REZENE  REVNIERK
AHER - HRETHEUANEGS
E2HEWRRERRNE T EILHER
BB RENSER  RE
fib 2R R A R E (5 ER
BEhmEMheEKE cEE - 2
Wk B & R R R A & B EMN
I B FER R ERE AR ©

A E LS AR E OB
BERNIBBERNZERBNER
(IR E A SRR R R U
])  AIARETSERE—TE
B BRICKRREZ-BERAESR
ERIEHRIRK

AEEREBENTRAERE
ZRAZHHRBRE YR IZ AR E
RzEEROER TAHH - R
BREBEMNE TANE - BRIEZ
RXPBRCEREERENTE
- BEARERETNER
RENFERIEL IR - AR
BARBIRAERABRR 2 -

Rz AR ENRE S BAREM
A2 OFT Il BRI TIRE R, ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E884) -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Structured entities

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether
they should be consolidated based on the contractual
terms as to whether the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Third-party beneficiaries’ interests in the consolidated
structured entities with a limited life and are classified
as liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, and net profits or losses attributable
to third-party beneficiaries are recorded in consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “finance costs”.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of
the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (Continued)

() Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

2. BAETHERME(E)
2.3 EHA0T(E)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred;

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the Group’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that makes strategic decision.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(o) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

TREU/ARKE)

2. ERSFTEERBEGE)

24

2.5

2.6

BB RER

R 2 IR E TR A IR R (5
B o MAEIERAEREEEA - 18
PRES R EET ST (S
ON: X

(VSIIEYNCIE b & V= aat 0l &V ali]
JB R RN RS HATE Ay 2 W ek 4R
I E RIS VSRR AR REE
HBBEIRETTFEE(RREREINGRS
MEHmRANEREE - BIRNKREIZERK
BREHZFREETRENR -

REDFMmE T ABER T ERLE
REE ([ EBERLRRE DORERS
AR TBELERREAENRE
REHEREDRNRIR - HFORA
RAMEH R IDR R TES -

HNESIRE

(a) IhEERERE
NEEEEENGATBEHREN
BHINHMEE - NIEREELLH
M E BEFIRENEE ([ThaE
EE]E BRATBEREAA
RE23 MAREAEQRN
MR AEEN2REE -

(b) RZREER
INER BILR 5 E BRBITER
BERUREER - INEXHEE
NI FRER BB IAIMNEETEDN
EXBERBBEMELNERE
SRR A EE W ER AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E884) -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within “finance costs”. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a net basis within “Other income and other gains,
net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of financial
position

° income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and any impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EASsHFEME (&)

(Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.7 M - MERFZEE)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount BEKANE AL IE B AR AR R
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when Flefg ] ge R ARNSE[E B 18 B B ANRE R
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with S:ER A est AEENREESE
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can RE—EEBEE(ER) - (EAEYS
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component BEANERNIMARISED ZEERERE
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when BRSPS - FTEEMBEEREES
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to RO EEEENRE ARARERFE
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are A e
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method WEHUESEAE » R THEETA]
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values over their FRFRAGER ARSI EEFIREE
estimated useful lives as follows: FEE
Leasehold improvements Shorter of 5 years or the lease term
HEMERE SE I E (AR E BLE)
Computer and office equipment 3-5 years

E Y NG 3E54F
Motor vehicles 5 years
B 5%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and BEMFIBEBENRTEAFHNSHS
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial position date. A B HR iR R W AR (a4 ) ©
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its WEEMNRAEBRE G TKRES
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater o REEMNREESRHRZER
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9). ez (MFE2.9) -
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing HEEENBRIZMSHREHEEREY
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in HNZERET  WHRGEER H&ﬁﬁﬁ%
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied
by the Group. They also include properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, included related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequently they are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, and adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is and uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are presented in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of
a valuation gain or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EASsHFEME (&)
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments 210 &Em TR

(@)

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(a)

(b)

/'\§E
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G
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i—\*ﬁ"

BRERITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction cost of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

—  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIzERRSb -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

()

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI,
the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in

except for

OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains, net. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains, net and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains,
net in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains, net in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for
further details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS) - @ 5EE A ARE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EASsHFEME (&)

(Continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments 2RSSR T A
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount A AMOEE GBI TR R RIEEHE
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial BWReE BB EEREFHELES
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset FARNZREENEEAER AT
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle BEERBERERRE  YHEFAME
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability ARNKRZ2MEFE  AIHFOERBILATTH
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be EEFITSREARREMGE - BERER
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in EBBEY  UERAEENR FETF
the normal course of business and in the event of default, FIER) ~ BN EE SR ER A A SR I
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty. iTe

2.12 Properties under development 2.12 AP
Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost 35 FR W) S 4 X 2N B ] A 3R FHE B Y
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined BIREVIR - ISR FEL2ERATE
by reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the 75‘5115?#?‘ EEMEMNHEEMEHIE - R/
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling AR EEERT RERRIRK
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion based on $ CIRIBERTISAORMGEEEE
prevailing marketing conditions.
Development cost of property primarily comprises land use VIR FABERR AN E E e IE L A
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and professional IR ~ (BN R AE 3 BRI EE A
fees incurred during the development period. On completion, WEXEER - MERNETREEEHE
the properties are transferred to completed properties held HENDERIYE -
for sale.
Properties under development are classified as current BRIETEEBRAMEMFIEE MEEHE
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property N—REERS - BRIRETRYELR
development project is expected to complete beyond RBRBEE —REBERPBET R2E
normal operating cycle. The normal operating cycle is usually 3% o

between 2 to 3 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.13 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of
reporting period are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises development costs
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates
based on prevailing marketing conditions.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 2.10(d) for
impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EAEHFEHE (&)

(Continued) )
2.15 Contract assets and liabilities and costs for LI EHNEEREBBUREEBEN

obtaining contracts

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from customer and
assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or
services to the customer. The combination of those rights
and performance obligations give rise to a net asset or a net
liability depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. The contract is an
asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of
the remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is
a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure
of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from customer and
assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or
services to the customer. The combination of those rights
and performance obligations give rise to a net asset or a net
liability depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. The contract is an
asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of
the remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is
a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure
of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer within prepayments if the Group
expects to recover these costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash

and pledged time deposits

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Bank deposits
which are restricted to use are included in “restricted
cash” of the consolidated statement of financial position.
Time deposits pledged for notes payables of the Group
are included in “pledged time deposit” of the consolidated
statement of financial position. Restricted cash and pledged
time deposit are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of
any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to
the owners of the Company.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EAEHFEHE (&)
(Continued)

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs 219 B R AEFRAAR

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company and its subsidiaries and associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely amount
or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
on the basis that the property will be recovered entirely
through use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIzERRSb -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Pension obligations

The group companies incorporated in PRC contribute
based on certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan organised by relevant government authorities
in the PRC on a monthly basis. The government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no
further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these defined
contributions plans are expensed as incurred.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other
social insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate
in various government-supervised housing funds,
medical insurance and other social insurance plan. The
Group contributes to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of these employees on a
monthly basis. The Group’s liability in respect of these
funds is limited to the contribution payable in each
period. Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are expensed as
incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E884) -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

() Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value, is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for the sales of properties in the PRC
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Sales of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset
is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o Provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

o Creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser
controls as the Group performs;

o Does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the purchaser obtains the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERRSN -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.24 Earnings per share

(i)

(i)

Basic earnings per shares
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per shares

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.25 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

2.26 Management and consultancy service income

Management and consultancy service income is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

2.27 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Dividends
are recognised as other income and other gains, net in the
consolidated profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case, the
dividend is recognised in OCI if it relates to an investment at
FVOCI. However, the investment may need to be tested for
impairment as a consequence.

2.28 Leases

The Group leases various properties to operate as its office
premises. Property leases are typically made for fixed
periods of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain various different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (included
in property, plant and equipment) and the corresponding
liabilities at the date of which the respective leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B P ERRMEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS) - @ 5EE A ARE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EASsHFEME (&)
(Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 228 HE (&)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received. Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its
land and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-
use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of less than 12 months.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in
the consolidated statements of financial position based on
their nature.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EAEHFEHE (&)

(Continued)

2.29 Financial guarantee contracts 229 IEIEREHK
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial BISERE RN IREIEREER BT
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is B - ZBBEUARBEVLSHE £
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher BIRATRSETE
of:
e the amount determined in accordance with the o REBBYBREERFH &

expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, .
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

Annual Report 2021

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated in RMB.
With minor operation in Hong Kong, the Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk with respect to
the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) and United States
dollar (“USD”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency of the relevant
group entity. The exposure to foreign exchange
risk related to HKD is not material to the Group.

At 31 December 2021, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year then ended would have
been approximately RMB47,589,000 (2020:
RMB41,418,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange difference on translation
of USD denominated cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group closely monitors trend of interest rate
and its impact on the Group’s interest rate risk
exposure. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements but will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2021, bank and other
borrowings of the Group which were bearing
at floating rates amounted to approximately
RMB3,160,168,000 (2020: RMB3,993,680,000).
If interest rates on borrowings at floating rates had
been 50 basis points higher or lower with all other
variables held constant and without taking into
account interest capitalisation, interest charges
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
have been RMB15,801,000 higher/lower (2020:
RMB19,968,000 higher/lower).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, pledged time
deposits, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from associates, joint ventures and non-controlling

interests included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, which represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
Management has credit policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

()
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Risk management

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, in order to
manage this risk, the Group’s bank deposits are
mainly deposited with reputable banks which
are all high-credit-quality financial institutions
incorporated in the PRC.

For the trade receivables arising from sales
of properties, the Group closely monitors the
collection of progress payments from customers
in accordance with payment schedule agreed
with customers. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales are made to purchasers with
an appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments.

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the
contracts once repayment from the customers
is in default; it also has monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover
overdue balances. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment provisions are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

Ganglong China Property Group Limited
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and
provided guarantees to secure obligations of such
purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure of
such guarantees is made in Note 30. If a purchase
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan
during the guarantee period, the bank holding the
guarantee may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding principal of the loan and any interest
accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and
resell the property to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the bank. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is mitigated.

For other receivables and amounts due from
associates, joint ventures and non-controlling
interests, the Group assessed the credit quality
of the counterparties by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other
factors. Management also regularly reviews the
recoverability of these receivables and follow up
the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default
by counterparties is low. The directors of the
Group believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
these receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()
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Risk management (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating

° external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counterparty’s
ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the customer

° significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the customer,
including changes in the payment status of
customer in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the customer.

Ganglong China Property Group Limited
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) . R MEE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 I EBEZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) T‘EHF"’%(”;)
()  Risk management (Continued) () ERE
The Group uses four categories for those $%@H¢F’EW9§?&%E@

receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are
aligned to external credit ratings.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s expected credit loss model is as follows:

B ZESBERBREERE
A R BRI B R -
ZENBEERFREINRLE
ERFEARTT -

XEASBEEMEERER
L RRMAmT -

Basis for recognition of

Category Description expected credit loss
bl it ERARMEEEENEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and 12 months expected losses.

does not have any past-due amounts

B4 RGHEFHFNELRBRERIE - WEBEATIA

Underperforming Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle after due date

RANTEHA BEBALERIHRBERER - BBEENEE
SEE¥

Non-performing There has been a significant increase in

credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or external
resources
RIEHARIMBERSENER - 8905
R - (FERMEEIE M
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
i BEBRAES AR SN HEE -
REBETEERNERAR

i
[y

Where the expected lifetime of
an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

12{E A O TEERIE1E - MEERTE
HAZ B/ 218 - BliRETE
He Bt SR HEE

Lifetime expected losses

2 HTRHIEE

Lifetime expected losses

2 HTRHIER

Asset is written off

F #2021
BRETEMEREERAR

T



178

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

(i)
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Risk management (Continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit losses
on a timely basis. In calculating the expected
credit loss rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of receivables and
adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data.
The loss allowance provision for the Group’s
financial assets were not material for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables
from third parties.

The Group overall considers the shared credit risk
characteristic and the days past due of the trade
receivables to measure the expected credit loss.
Based on management assessment, the expected
credit losses of the financial assets mentioned
above are not significant. The loss allowance
provision for these balances was not material as at
31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Ganglong China Property Group Limited
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised costs

For other receivables and amounts due from
associates, joint ventures and related parties,
the measurement of the expected credit losses
has been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. All of these
financial assets are considered to have low credit
risk and thus the impairment provision recognised
was based on 12 months expected losses.
Management considered other receivables from
third parties, amounts due from associates, joint
ventures and related parties to be low credit risk as
they have a low risk of default and the issuer has
a strong capacity to its considered contractual
cash flow obligation in the near term and the loss
allowance provision for these balances was not
material as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents or have available funding
through proceeds from pre-sale of properties and an
adequate amount of available financing including short-
term and long-term borrowings and obtaining additional
funding from shareholders. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, the Group maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate amount of
cash and cash equivalents and through having available
sources of financing.

The Group has a number of alternative plans to mitigate
the potential impacts on anticipated cash flows should
there be significant adverse changes in economic
environment. These include reducing land acquisition,
adjusting project development timetable to adapt
the changing local real estate market environment,
implementing cost control measures, promotion of
sales of completed properties, accelerating sales with
more flexible pricing and seeking joint venture partners
to develop projects. The Group will pursue such options
basing on its assessment of relevant future costs and
benefits. The directors consider that the Group will be
able to maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its
operation needs.

The table below sets out the Group’s financial liabilities
by relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) . IR REIE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEMEZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBELRER(E)
On  Lessthan Over
demand iyear 1-2years  2-5years 5years Total
BEX 15/ 1225 2256 BB5F #@st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTE ARETT AR%T:E

At 31 December 2021 R2021F12831H
Borrowings EE 63,747 3,433,866 2,617,245 4,777,393 - 10,892,251
Trade payables, bills payables and & 5 ENFUE - FEf Zi5 K

other payables (excluding payroll — E BT 0B - T E4EER

payable and other taxes payable) % & & B fEMFIE - 4,799,951 - - - 4,799,951
Amounts due to associates AR NI 705,827 - - - - 705,827
Amounts due to joint ventures AL METIE 804,488 - - - - 804,488
Amounts due to non-controling  FERT3EIERRE S FB

interests 1,858,586 - - - - 1,858,586
Lease liabilities HEERE - 23,274 18,995 38,593 45,642 126,504

3,432,648 8,257,091 2,636,240 4,815,986 45,642 19,187,607

On Less than
demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
RER 15/ 1225 225 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2020 20205128310
Borrowings & - 6,707,251 1,842,187 1,079,688 9,629,126
Trade payables, bils payablesand B SEMNFUE - BRNEEK

other payables (excluding payroll HibENFIE - TREER

payable and other taxes payable) %ﬁ%&ﬁm&ﬁﬁlﬁ - 5,454,531 - - 5,454,531
Amounts due to associates FE(THE & AR 1,159,616 - - - 1,159,616
Amounts due to joint ventures N+ AIE 914,191 - - - 914,191
Amounts due to non-controlling eI R T

interests 3,761,926 = = = 3,761,926
Lease liabilities HEERE = 13,948 11,207 8,169 33,324

5,835,733 12,175,730 1,863,394 1,087,857 20,952,714
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group also provides guarantees to secure
repayment obligations of certain purchasers of the
Group’s property units and the principal of borrowings
of the joint ventures, associates and third parties, which
will have contractual cash flows only if the guaranteed
purchasers, joint ventures, associates or third parties
default the repayment (Note 30).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the owner and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. Except for the compliance of certain financial
covenants for maintaining the Group’s banking facilities
and borrowings, the Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. The management monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio of the Group. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings, amounts due to third
parties, amounts due to associates and joint ventures and
non-controlling interests and lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus
net debt.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. MKEMERE(E)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EXREMEE (&)
As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Borrowings (Note 23) B (fIzE23) 9,494,587 8,641,607
Amounts due to third parties (Note 24) B E = AR IE(ME24) 139,812 139,812
Amounts due to associates (Note 33) FEATE A B A (K FES3) 705,827 1,159,616
Amounts due to joint ventures (Note 33) JER A & EFIAE(M5E33) 804,488 914,191

Amounts due to non-controlling interests JEAS FEFRE RS AR 25 FOE (P 3£ 26)

(Note 26) 1,858,586 3,761,926
Lease liabilities (Note 14) HEAGEPT14) 96,817 30,200
Total borrowings B4R 13,100,117 14,647,352
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R REEEED

(Note 20) (H¥5E20) (2,304,919) (4,547,628)
Net debt (G 10,795,198 10,099,724
Total equity TS 4BR 10,277,752 4,486,693
Total capital B4 21,072,950 14,586,417
Gearing ratio EEAMFELX 51.2% 69.2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

Investment properties of the Group were measured at fair

value.

(@) Fair value hierarchy
This note explains the judgements and estimates made
in determining the fair values of investment properties
that are recognised and measured at fair value in
the consolidated financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its non-
financial assets into the three levels prescribed under
the accounting standards.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

TREU/ARKE)

3. Btigm

b &3 ()

3.3 A REEMAE
AEENIREMEIR N7 BIEE -

(a)

RAEEER

AW EHEEGFESPBHRERPR
AR EBEERLGENREDE
B A BB R 1T 80 2 BT R (=t
TURE - RRABELAEE
e e A BRI 5 - AKE
BEREFRETMA=ES LY
HIFSRMEELTHE -

F1R: HRAEEXRBELER
BmiganmE CRER

)

B2 BREARFIBENRE
S SR BEKAEM
= RER(AMER)HH
E(BREER)NAE
R AR -

EIM . PREEXREBEMSAL
FERBABETSEIE
B & A & (B A A8
RRAHE) -

N

AEBH R AERNRE R
WanBEERSANBARE
4o

HZE2021F12 A31 B It F[Z £
M F1R - F2R R BEIREE
MARBEMEZHTEEE
(2020 : #8[A) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERRSN -

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Valuation techniques used to determine level 3
fair values

The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. Fair values
of the Group’s completed investment properties are
derived using the income capitalisation approach. This
valuation method takes into account the net rental
income of a property derived from its existing leases
and/or achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment
properties are included in level 3.

TREVSARKE)

3. MR EEGE)
DREEA (&)

3.3

(b)

BESEIRLABEMANMGE
7E
EEEREM A EBEMTRE
WIEEMEMEE - AEENHE
RTREMEAABEER K
BRCEE - RAZRSHED
AR BRZMEFRNEREAR
BN/ REERNH ST AIERMN
FHEBA  XERHSEEEEDN
AESEERA - BZFRALD
BRAENERNMCRETER
1t BREEAAEE-

HLBENERENENRERAR
EBEMLFTEEEREIRA
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3. MBEMmEE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
Detailed disclosures of the changes in level 3 items
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 for
recurring fair value measurements are disclosed below.

(d) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. See (b)
above for the valuation techniques adopted.

()

(d)

LEEMSE (&)

3.3 A

FREATTBEHARBEN
AREETE(ER)

T XA R 2= 2021 F 2020
FI2A3THLEFENEEERR
BETEPEIRIEENED -

HEBARBREAAEEN
TREGREEEFEIR DA BER
EFEANERTATERG AR
BRECER - BRAMRERAMG
B F2HLEX () °

Fair value at 31 December

M2A31BENAREE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT A REFT
Investment properties B 183,020 180,900

Properties status

Unobservable inputs

LIE S TABRHARE

Range of unobservable inputs

As at 31 December

R12A31 BT ABRERABBNEE

2021 2020

Investment properties

REWME - N[eES

Capitalisation rate

Monthly rental (RMB/sq.m./

month)

AR (ARE TR/

A)

5.2%-5.3% 4.8%-5.3%

78-110 77.2-106.1

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:

—  The higher capitalisation rate, the lower the fair

value;

—  The higher monthly rental, the higher the fair value.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIzERRSb -

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(d)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

The Group’s investment properties were valued by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, Cushman &
Wakefield, who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For
all investment properties, their current use equates to
the highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department has a team to review
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly
to the executive directors. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held amongst the executive
directors, the valuation team and the valuer at least
once every six months for the Group’s interim and
annual reporting process.

At each reporting period end, the finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

o Assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report; and

. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

TREVSARKE)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(e) Leasing arrangements
Certain investment properties are leased to tenants
under long term operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. Minimum lease payments receivable on leases
of investment properties are disclosed in Note 32.

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases ranged
from 1 year to 5 years.

Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Revenue recognition on properties sold

Judgement on recognition method

The Group recognises revenue from sales of properties at a
point in time when the buyer obtains control of the completed
property. The Group may not change or substitute the
property unit or redirect the property unit for another use
due to the contractual restrictions with the customer and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative use to
the Group. Whether there is an enforceable right to payment
depends on the terms of sales contract (by written or verbal)
and the interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to the
contract. Such determination requires the use of judgements
interpretation.

Annual Report 2021
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(@

Revenue recognition on properties sold
(Continued)

Judgement on recognition point

Management has also made judgement on when control of
properties are transferred to customers. Control of properties
are transferred to customer upon which the construction
of relevant properties has been completed and upon which
the properties has been handed over to the customers, the
Group has present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable, usually all considerations received
before handover of the properties to customers.

The judgement on the right to payment associated with
the property sales transaction and the transfer of control of
properties would affect the Group’s profit for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 and the carrying value of
completed properties held for sale.

Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate is based on whether the Group
is determined to have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee, which involves judgments
through the analysis of various factors, including the Group’s
representation on the chief decision making authorities
of an investee, such as board of directors’ meetings
and shareholders’ meetings, as well as other facts and
circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their
assets, liabilities and transactions are included line-by-line
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements, whereas
the interests in joint ventures and associates are equity
accounted for as investments on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Accordingly, any changes in classification as a result of
recognition or derecognition of material investments could
have a material and pervasive impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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4. Critical Accountin

Estimates and

Judgements (Continued)

(©

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC,
and the Group’s land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments are subject to finalisation with local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgements is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation and its
related taxes. The Group recognises these land appreciation
taxes based on management’s best estimates according
to the understanding of the tax rules, by using a single
best estimate of the most likely outcome approach. The
final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and deferred income tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised with local
tax authorities.

Income tax and deferred income tax

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises tax
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on a single
best estimate of the most likely outcome approach. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Provision for impairment of properties under
development and completed properties held
for sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and completed properties held for
sale according to their net realisable value based on the
realisability of these properties, taking into account estimated
costs to completion based on past experience (properties
under development only) and estimated net sales value
based on prevailing market conditions. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be realised. The assessment
requires the use of judgement and estimates.

Annual Report 2021
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5. Revenue from Contracts With Customers

and Segment Information

The Executive Directors of the Company have been identified as
the CODM. Management determines the operating segments
based on the Group’s internal reports, which are then submitted to
the CODM for performance assessment and resources allocation.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segment based on a measure of profit before income tax and
regard these to be only one operating segment — property
development. Accordingly, segment disclosures are not presented.
No geographical segment analysis is presented as the majority
of the assets and operation of the Group are located in China,
which is considered as one geographical location in an economic
environment with similar risk and returns.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no
transaction with a single external customer that amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue.

The revenue from contracts with customers recognised during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are sales of properties
in the PRC, all of which were recognised at a point in time.

The revenue from external parties is derived from numerous
external customers and the revenue reported to the Executive
Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

(@) Details of contract liabilities

5.

REFFEHNNKER D EE
#
ARATPTEFERERAE EMERE
%o EREREAEEONBREETAL
DE - 2 EIRRTEEEEREE BIATE
KHRSTER -

MITEERBRMEMATEN T EFELE
DEEIRIR - AR 2 mME—REE DR - Al
WEFIERR o Bt - RIS BT ER -
HRARENABD BEEREEMRF
(AR AR B A MR LR B B 00 i 0 48 75 3R
BTHIERI) - BORFIIRMIZD JEDHT -

HE2021F 2020512 A1 A ILFE - B
B-INBRFAR S B EB B AL E K
FHHI10%EIA L »

H E20214F K2020F12 A31 H IF FE R
RIRERBFEE O BRI B R Y% 5
EFEHERAE BT UAER)
REINBEF R E TR R EINBRE -
B ERFHRITEZTNREHAELGE T HR
K—BHARFE -

(a) EHEEHE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AREFT
Contract liabilities related to sales of Y EERBEH
properties (Note) BHBEE) 27,240,235 20,979,809

Note: As at 31 December 2021, contract liabilities represent
advanced payments received from customers for
properties that have not yet been transferred to the
customers. Increased in contract liabilities during the
year ended 31 December 2021 represents increase in
advanced payments received from customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

5. Revenue from Contracts With Customers

and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) Revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities

The following table shows the revenue recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2021 related to carried-forward

contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract

liabilities balance at the beginning of the year:

5. REFFEMNIWZER D AR

TREU/ARKE)

o

\

BH1E)

(b) HEXNEBEEBENEERRE
TREFIR2021F12A31 B ILEEH
R ATHERR B A58 4 40 B EAERE UGS -

FUETARHBEGERNE ERWES -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEFE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Sales of properties YEIHE 9,869,526 3,799,385

Unsatisfied contracts related to sales of

properties

() ERYFHEBBHAREITEN

As at 31 December

#W12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Sales of properties YIHEHEE
Expected to be recognised TEERHE T RERR
— Within one year ——FR 13,906,177 11,214,411
— After one year ——F1% 17,356,647 13,542,130
31,262,824 24,756,541
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5. Revenue from Contracts With Customers

and Segment Information (Continued)

(d) Assets recognised from costs to fulfill a
contract
In addition to the contract balances disclosed above, the
Group has also recognised sales commission as an asset
in relation to costs to fulfill the contracts with customers.
This is presented within trade and other receivables and
prepayments in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

5. REFFEMAIKZER D AR
#H4E)
(d) BEARADHEIANEE

SREVSARKE)

It

\

=

B EXPIIER A QRN - AEETE
ERHEME RERBETEEFPANZ
RAEEE © LR A TSR R AR
B 5 I H UK IR A R TR SRR
o

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREET T

Sales commission recognised from costs BRAOEERNKAFRERNEE

incurred to fulfill a contract (Note 19) & (EE19)

136,267 40,759
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
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6. Expenses by Nature

TREU/ARKE)

6. REESTHEH

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Cost of properties sold — including EEMEXR — BIEEEMR -

construction cost, land cost, capitalised THAR A R E AR F BT

interest expenses 7,917,295 2,623,888
Other taxes and surcharges E b MK nE 51,017 30,350
Employee benefit expenses (Note 7) 1B B FIF S (3E7) 545,997 406,604
Management and consulting services fee EE N AAREE (K@)

(Note (a)) 47,197 47,553
Donation B 144 2,334
Advertising and promotion expenses BEMEERY 188,195 140,722
Office expenses MAEER 126,343 79,931
Depreciation on property, plant and W BE - RENMEAEEE

equipment and right-of-use assets (Note 13)  #7& (ff5513) 37,831 19,669
Entertainment expenses EBRERY 42,811 39,196
Recruitment fee HEBA 3,270 3,123
Motor vehicle expenses REEA 3,111 2,678
Auditors’ remuneration (2 G
— Audit services — TR 4,565 4,894
— Non-audit services —JEEET RS 645 796
Guarantee fee BRE - 2,143
Legal and professional service fees FERBERBER 58,099 27,242
Listing expenses WX - 16,541
Travelling and transportation expenses EIR N BEH 15,586 12,683
Sales commission HEME 50,326 34,414
Others Hi 16,838 9,688
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing HEARA  HE M EHEFI N

expenses and general and —MITHFAX

administrative expenses 9,109,270 3,504,449

Note (a): The amounts represent the fees paid to certain non-
controlling interests shareholders and third parties in relation
to the management and consulting services provided by them
for the property development projects.

Mizte) : ZEMEAE TIFERERRERE RS
=EAXNERMERERENEER
ARG ENER
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RE MR R R M EE ()
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7. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including 7. EEGMNBEZ(GEEEHRS)
Directors’ Emoluments)

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  He LREMETR 486,086 382,226
Pension costs — statutory pension BRIRESEA AT RIS 59,911 24,378
545,997 406,604
Pensions scheme - statutory pension BIREFEI—EEENKRE
Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required REBHPEFBARREBEZ N T I
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme FEE M EERTREME ,TA;_ﬁ(ngiu RNEEFH
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. HWARENBAR A TEES S HEDLEE
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are BB RFTEIER - LLAEE Eﬁvaq‘ljk{
calculated on certain percentage of the employee salary to the BE o
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
The Group recognises employee benefit expenses in the following NEFBRGE2ENEEZERIATERNE
categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive EfEfEX
income:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
Selling and marketing expenses THE R R 189,418 141,724
General and administrative expenses —MEITER R 356,579 264,880
545,997 406,604

F #2021 195
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7. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including 7. EEEIHX(EEEEHED)

Directors’ Emoluments) (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEWwE
The remuneration of the directors of the Company are RAGIESHFMAT -

presented as below:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2021 () BEZE2021F12831HLFE
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director’s other
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
contribution the Group
Allowance to a retirement BREES
and benefit benefit EEAER
Discretionary in kind scheme  EHHHMRE
Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses R BIURK  BHIEUN Total
B2 i i BisiEd BNAE  RAENMN Efeie Ehy

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARERTR ARRBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARWTR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £Z2021£12A31ALLEE

Executive Directors Y182

M. Lui Ming BekE - 1,788 - - 136 - 1,924
Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy BERLE - 1,622 - - 136 - 1,758
M. Lui JinLing REREE - 1,62 - - 136 - 1,758
Non-executive Directors gz

Mr. Lui Wing Nam AKEEE - 931 - - - - 91
Mr. Lui Wing Mau BKKEE - 931 - - - - 91

Independent Non-executive Directors B 4/78%

Mr. Chan Pek Hung (Note () REREL(H3H) - - - - - - -

Mr. Wan Ho Yin (Note (i) BEREE (W) 200 - - - - - 200

Mr. Guo Shaomu B G 300 - - - - - 300

Ms. Tang Lo Ner HENLT 200 - - - - - 200

Total & 700 6,804 - - 408 - 8,002
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7. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including 7. EEEINHX(EEEEHES)

Directors’ Emoluments) (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EBHE(E)
(i) Forthe year ended 31 December 2020 (i) EZE2020F12H31HILEE
QOther
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's other
senvices in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
contribution the Group
Alowance o retirement AHES
and beneft benefit EBA%E
Discretionary inkind scheme  SEMEMRE
Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses R EEURR  BAEELY Total
1322 8 54 B TR sy £ 3t

RMB000 RVB000 RVB'000 RMB00 RVB000 RNB'000 RVB000
ARRTT  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

For the year ended 31 December 2020  EZ2020%12A31B.LEE

Executive Directors YirES

Mr. Lui Ming BELE - 916 - - 62 - 978
Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy BB - 756 - - 62 - 818
Mr. Lui Jin Ling BEREE - 756 - - 62 - 818
Non-executive Directors FUTES

Mr. Lui Wing Nam BXELE - 800 - - - - 800
Mr. Lui Wing Mau BkfEE - 800 - - - - 800

Independent Non-executive Directors B 478%

M. Wan Ho Yin (Note (i) RIEAE (D) ) - - - - - ®

M. Guo Shaomu IohEE 139 - - - - - 139

Ms. Tang Lo Nar HEfat R - - - - - 9

Tota it 33 4,008 - - 186 - 4537

Notes: MiEE -

(i) Mr. Chan Pak Hung was appointed as the Company’s 0] BEAGIE Se A FAR20224E2 H11 B EE T A
independent non-executive director on 11 February 2022. ANEIREIIEERITES

(i)~ Mr. Wan Ho Yin resigned as the Company’s independent (i) SEMERIELEN2022%2 A1 HEHEAR A
non-executive director on 11 February 2022. B FEITES -

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Bx4F55E8RSN -

7. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including
Directors’ Emoluments) (Continued)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiaries’ undertaking for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any former employers of the
directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company during the year 31 December 2021
(2020: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There were no other loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favor of the directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 33, no significant transactions,
arrangements, and contracts in relations to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

7. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including 7. EEEINHX(EEEEHES)

Directors’ Emoluments) (Continued) (&)
(f) Five highest paid individuals Hh BARESFHMAL
There are three directors’ emoluments included in the five HZE2021F12A31BILFE » A5EH
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group AREBHMA TEE=BE S HH
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: None). The (20204 : ) - H{E2021F12A31H
emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2020: 5) individuals IFEE - ERBT22 ALHHMET
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: (20204 : 54) ¢
Year ended 31 December
HZ12B31HILEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - EHeLEMET 3,958 6,744
Pension costs — statutory pension BRIREHA — AT RIS 27 168
3,985 6,912
The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group AREZEFHRTATZHMEELT ¢

fell within the following bands:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2021 2020
Number of Number of
individual individual
A N
Annual emolument bands: FENEE -
— HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000 —1,000,000/87TE
1,500,000/ 7T - 3
— HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 —1,500,001 T2
2,000,000/ 7T 1 2
— HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 —2,000,0018 T2
2,500,000 7T 1 -

F #2021 199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

8. Other Income and Other Gains, Net

TREU/ARKE)

8. HMWARH s - F5

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Fair value gains of financial assets at fair BAREEFEBEEHABE
value through profit or loss - listed NEMEE—- LR SHFESH
trading securities 44,010 -
Fair vale gains on deemed disposal of RIELERAR2EN 2R EBERE
Nanjing Jinjun (Note 29) (MF7529) 4,548 -
Dividend income from financial assets at BARBEFEAEEZH AEBR
fair value through profit or loss NEREENREWE 4,100 -
Management and consulting service EIE KBRS UA (B 5Ea)
income (Note a) 20,088 12,281
Rental income s N 5,482 4,181
Interest income from amounts REBERE) AETER
due from associates, joint ventures E M2 = AR EBGRIER
and other third parties FLEWA 10,187 8,547
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HEYE  BEEEREN
plant and equipment Wz, (E518) 801 (193)
Others Hib (1,927) 1,356
87,289 26,172
Note (@): The amount mainly represents the management and Wit : ZRBEXEEMYEREFTIEE M
consulting services provided to the Group’s joint ventures HIREBAELELBENAIN
and associates in relation to the property development BB N R IRTE o
projects.
9. Finance Costs, Net 9. BIERA » FEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Finance income BEMRA
Interest income from bank deposits FEUWABRITER (43,575) (38,739)
(43,575) (38,735)
Finance costs BhE AN
- Bank and other borrowings —RITREMER 917,041 405,922
— Amount due to associates and a joint —EABE AR N—HEE
venture IR 40,139 17,229
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests — e SRR R M 2 R IR 30,785 197,787
— Lease liabilities (Note 14) —HEBE(MHE14) 6,305 1,249
— Less: capitalised interest —8 : BAREFE (712,665) (500,485)
281,605 121,702
Finance costs, net BB R AN F R 238,030 82,967

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | & ZF 2021412 A31H IFEE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR45RIEEBASN - £EEERI A A REE)

10. Income Tax Expenses 10. TS HIBEZ
Year ended 31 December

BZE12831HLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T

Current income tax: BEAFR{SER

- PRC corporate income tax — R EMEH 362,756 348,677
— PRC land appreciation tax — R+ IR ET 53,804 213,948
416,560 562,625
Deferred income tax (Note 17) BEIEFTIS R (I 5E17) (14,938) (180,941)
401,622 381,684

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical AEEFAF EORIER R ERGEER
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate B, EEATE B M R Em A e
applicable to profit/loss of the consolidated entities as follows: BRERE - BAWT

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Profit before income tax FiS R A& 1,503,803 1,023,623
Adjust for share of results of joint ventures T2 D LA L LG
and associates reported net of tax NEIFEBEEFARE(HBRTRIE) (393,009) (403,436)
1,110,794 620,187
Tax calculated at applicable corporate BB EMSHREAER
income tax rate I8 291,153 159,518
Effect of income not subject to tax BARBAEHBANTE (8,973) (172)
Effect of expenses not deductible TR EHEY T2 4,935 10,066
Effect of tax losses not recognised FERAEILEFTSHEERN
as deferred income tax assets MIEEENTE 45,176 42,291
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for AP B A A B T IS E R
income tax purpose (13,451) (68,487)
Effect of withholding tax on undistributed Rokm M ETENTE 2
profits 28,978 9,520
Corporate income tax EMEH 347,818 167,736
PRC land appreciation tax PR £ S (A B 53,804 213,948
401,622 381,684

F 352021
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10. Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the estimated
assessable profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the group entities
located in Mainland China is 25% according to the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “CIT Law”).

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

Pursuant to the requirements in relation to LAT in the PRC, all
income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
building and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation
value, with an exemption provided for sales of ordinary residential
properties if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the
sum of the total deductible items.

The Group has made provision of LAT for sales of properties
according to the aforementioned progressive rate.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and, is exempted from Cayman
Islands income tax. The Company’s direct subsidiary in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) was incorporated under the BVI Business
Companies Act of the BVI and is exempted from BVI income tax.
The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at
the rate of 16.5%.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

10. PTSHREZ (48)

RN

AR BB B IR L RS BB T
RERARMETE RERENHEEY
B AT PR BN B AR R Tt -

RSP EARKAMBEERETEN B
FRISBUE D) - IR B A B 5 B B B8 PT3E
FRH) R E PSR 525% o

B £ it 3R AR ([ L it 3R {ER )
R IDREBNRAT - HEXERTEE
AL RE - BRI BREN AR
TR T 4 1E.30% 2 60% #) R B % S 4
TEER - i —REEYE M E R
BB AR AT IR B S HA020% + BIFT T#
70 o

AEED R M RER KR RIFERL
HIBETHBHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

10. Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

PRC withholding tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2017, dividends distributed from the profits generated
by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their foreign
investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax of 10%, a
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate
holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated
in Hong Kong and fulfill the requirements to the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

On 21 December 2020, the immediate holding companies of the
PRC subsidiaries have obtained the Certificate of Resident Status
from the Inland Revenue Department and fulfill the requirements
to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.
Therefore, a lower 5% withholding tax rate shall be applied to
dividend distribution thereafter.

As at 31 December 2021 deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately RMB109,328,000 (2020: RMB80,350,000) have
been provided for at applicable tax rate 5% (2020: 5%) in respect
of temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

10. FrSHip Xz (&)
RTINS
RIEFR2017F12 A6 BB D EESTE
ENBIEG - H2008F1 518 - LAREAT
ELRENMEGIMEE S S IRMIR B IEIE
10% B RBMTEINFTER - HPBEMNBEAR
AMEEERARCESIME I LTS
FREEEBHEI L ORBSIEOZERE - 8
A% BRIKTBINFE -

R2020F 1282180 - FEIMB A MERE
ERAFIEESHEREENER I HER
& WRE R BEEEBR L MBB GO
RIFRIE o At - HEMREDREFRAERE
HI5%TEFNTLE o

20214124318 49 AR 109,328,000
7T (20204 : A R #80,350,0007T ) )i A&
FiiSHiBBEERARRFBENBRRRDIK
St I B A BT B 2 SR IR FA B R 5% (2020%F
5%)aTHefdE -

11. Dividends 1. IR E
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFTT

Final dividend for the year ended HE2020F12A31BIEFER
31 December 2020 of RMB0.18 RHARR B G AR I mAR

per ordinary share ARME0.187T - 293,511

The board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMBO0.18 per ordinary
share).

EESLEETIMNEE2021F12A831H1E
FEMKE(2020F : ERTABRARE
0.187T) °

F3R2021
BETEBEEEERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

12. Earnings Per Share 12. GRS
(a) Basic (@) &K
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit B EARWE TIAS FERARA A
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted A ARG R LA D 31T AR A 0
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the Mt ESE -

respective years.

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B31BLEFE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Profit attributable to owners of the BEAFEARATHEE AEIERT]
Company during the years (AREEFIT)
(RMB’000) 480,936 960,748
Weighted average number of ordinary B 81T @R A IS (FR%)
shares in issue (in thousand) 1,630,249 1,415,823
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FRERKZR(ARET) 0.30 0.68
(b) Diluted (b) #8
The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares A E2021F 202012 A31HIFEE
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2021 and AR BLEE A EE RS TEIN ©
2020. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share is the same as FEitt - e gk R E AR SRR
the basic earmings per share. BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. Y% - MENR%E
Computer
Right-of use Leasehold and office Motor
assets improvement equipment vehicles Total
HEWE £
ERELE % WARE hat: @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AR®TRT AR®TRT  AR®TRT  AR®TR

At 31 December 2020 R2020F12831H

Cost R 58,172 11,364 25,987 13,804 109,327

Accumulated depreciation Z2itiE (22,323) (4,808) (7,922) (6,299) (41,352)
Net book amount REFE 35,849 6,556 18,065 7,505 67,975

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12831ALFE

Opening net book amount HREFE 35,849 6,556 18,065 7,505 67,975

Additions NE 79,601 24,051 8,538 1,695 113,885

Disposals HE - (1,161) (3,271) (658) (5,090)
Depreciation & (24,088) (6,600) (4,672) (2,471) (37,831)
Closing net book amount KR SE 91,362 22,846 18,660 6,071 138,039

At 31 December 2021 20215128318

Cost AR 137,773 34,564 33,759 12,407 218,503

Accumulated depreciation ZETE (46,411) (11,718) (15,099) (6,336) (79,564)
Net book amount BREFE 91,362 22,846 18,660 6,071 138,939
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)  13. )% - BER %R (&)

Computer
Right-of use Leasehold and office Motor
assets  improvement equipment vehicles Total
HEME ER K
ERERE £ PRRE AE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETE AR%T:

At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H
Cost R 29,471 7,742 15,898 13,107 66,218
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (12,389) (1,892) (7,391) (8,542) (30,214)
Net book amount REFE 17,082 5,850 8,507 4,565 36,004
Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020F12831ALFE
Opening net book amount HREFE 17,082 5,850 8,507 4,565 36,004
Additions NE 31,948 4,422 12,586 5,491 54,447
Disposals HE (2,390) - (127) (290) (2,807)
Depreciation e (10,791) (3,716) (2,901) (2,261) (19,669)
Closing net book amount HRERmHE 35,849 6,556 18,065 7,505 67,975
At 31 December 2020 20205128318
Cost [D#N 58,172 11,364 25,987 13,804 109,327
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (22,323) (4,808) (7,922) (6,299) (41,352)
Net book amount FEFE 35,849 6,556 18,065 7,505 67,975
Depreciation expenses has been charged in the following WEEACAGEAEARFRIZATERT
categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive & -
income:
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILFE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Cost of sales SHERAR 53 1,264
Selling and marketing expenses HENMZHEMAT 597 655
Administrative expenses TR X 37,181 17,750
37,831 19,669
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

14. Leases 14. &
() Amount recognised in the consolidated () REEMBRRERAEINE
statement of financial position 28
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the AR N HEERE
following amounts relating to leases: B
As at 31 December
M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETFTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties LIES 91,362 35,849
Lease liabilities HEEE
- Non-current —3ERE 80,188 18,049
— Current — & 16,629 12,151
Total lease liabilities HEasesE 96,817 30,200

F #2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

14. Leases (Continued) 14. AE (48)
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated (i) REE2ERRRAEINE
statement of comprehensive income Zf
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows AR RN NI BB ERE
the following amounts relating to leases: B

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEFE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFIT
Depreciation charges of FREEETEER (KFE13)
right-of-use assets (Note 13) 24,088 10,791
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaENEERFE)
(Note 9) 6,305 1,249
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated (i) REEREREREINEE
statement of cash flows
During the year ended 31 December 2021, cash outflows HE2021F 12 AG1HILFE - BER
relating to leases, including short-term and low value leases, LHEAERR  REEBEEER
amounted to RMB22,008,000 (2020: RMB17,073,000). & B ARE22,008,0007T (20204 :
AR#17,073,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | # £20214£12 8310 ILEE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERASM -

15. Investment Properties

16.

SREVSARKE)

15. REWEE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Opening net book amount YRR 3 58 180,900 170,800
Fair value gains NREEKE 2,120 10,100
Closing net book amount HARBR M F 58 183,020 180,900

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contractual
obligations for repairs, maintenance or enhancements (2020:
same).

Investments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method
(@ Investments accounted for using the equity
method
() The amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as “Investments
accounted for using the equity method” are as
follows:

M2021F 128310 » AEBWEAHET
HEITHAS ~ RE N TR (20204 « 4
@) e
16. TR AR AV ERIVIRE
(a) LAREZREYIERNIRE
) REEHMBERREBIABIEHA

RmEARMNKRE HWEEN
T

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFT
Joint ventures BeE 868,812 834,380
Associates i /N 751,072 634,454
1,619,884 1,468,834

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)

(@ Investments accounted for using the equity

method (Continued)

() The amounts recognised in the consolidated (i)
statement of financial position as “Investments
accounted for using the equity method” are as

follows: (Continued)

Movement of investments in joint ventures:

™ ()

BARNSEDEHE

16. SRAERIESIBRAVIRE (&)
() LAEERIEERRYIRE ()

REGEMBRARERR A
EHEZASIRNRE IHBEN

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
At 1 January M1 HA1R 834,380 520,299
Additions NE 25,115 47,000
Addition upon deemed disposal of BIFEHERRSERNRE
Nanjing Jinjun (Note 29) (FF7E29) 11,885 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 28) U i& —RE B B A 7] (M 5E28) (26,948) (12,000)
Share of results FE(GZ4E 199,751 289,081
Dividend declared BEEIRRKRE (175,371) (10,000)
At 31 December »12A31H 868,812 834,380
Movement of investments in associates: BN E AR
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
At 1 January W1A1H 634,454 583,133
Additions INE 98,340 -
Share of results FEIG 24 193,258 114,355
Dividend declared BEEIRRE (174,980) (63,034)
At 31 December »12A31H 751,072 634,454
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method (Continued)
(@ Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as “Investments
accounted for using the equity method” are as
follows: (Continued)

The Group’s joint ventures and associates are principally
engaged in property development business. During
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain
projects of the joint ventures and associates were under
development, net losses were incurred and the Group
recognised share of losses of the joint ventures and
associates. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group has performed assessment on impairment of
the investments in joint ventures and associates taking
into account the pre-sales of the properties of the joint
venture and associates, the current and future market
condition for sales of properties and the budgeted
development cost and expenses, no impairment on
the investments in joint ventures and associates is
considered necessary.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income statements
as “Share of results of joint ventures and
associates” are as follows:

=

16. TR #E

RS BRAVIRE (&)

() LAEERIEERRYIRE ()

i)

(ii)

REGEMBRARERR A
EHEZATIRNRE [NBEN
™ (&)

REEMAEEPERBE QAR E
ENEEHERBER - HE
20214 202012 A31 H IEF
T AERERBEAFTNET
HRMERESR  BELEEBEF
B MASEERELEGEDE
Tt R AR E 1B - 72021 F &
2020F12A31H - AEEEHA
BEREREE R RNIEEETR
B BHERIBESED
ENBERRNME DEWE
KRB R AR R RTBE B EK
KEAZ  REGE AT REE
NRIRIEEDERE -

RiZE2ENERBERAIEWN
AELEHEBENTES NS
FEME -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12B3181LEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Joint ventures B 199,751 289,081
Associates i l/NE 193,258 114,355
393,009 403,436
F3{2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(b) set out below are the principal joint ventures and associates (b) T 3z#iFI AR & B R 2021 4F 20204 12
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The place ABIEHMEZEGERAI REE AT -
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of FEM AR S Srt Mt B T = 2 S 3t
business. 2o
(i) Joint ventures: i) &&RQT:

Place of Measurement Percentage of ownership
Name of company* incorporation Principal activities method  interest attributable to the Group
AEE ARRLHE IBERED HERE  AREEEFARERESM
2021 2020
BRBEEZERAA PRC Property development Equity method 30% 30%
Haimen Jinjia Property Co,, Ltd. HE MEER Bit
BECERNERTERAR PRC Property development Equity method 33.3% 33.3%
Halyan Jinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. HE mx%E Bt
FRARNREERHEREERAA PRC Property development Equity method 135% 135%
Zhangjagang Free Duty Zone Yaohui Real Estate hE mxEE Bt

Development Co., Lid.

HRsH(mRek ) RHERLERLA PRC Property development Equity method 125% 12.5%
Nantong Zhuosu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. mx%E Bt
("Nantong Znuosu’)

FENZE(EERE | RHERZERAR PRC Property development Equity method 20% 20%
Yixing Jayu Real Estate Co, Lid. (Ying Jayu) S NELE Bk

EAERERERAA PRC Property development Equity method 25% 25%
Changshu Zhuoyang Property Co., Ltd. HE MEER it

BREHERHERTEERLA PRC Property development Equity method 20% 20%
Nantong Fulteng Real Estate Co., Ltd. HE NEER it

HRRRERERAA PRC Property development Equity method 33% 33%
Nantong Chongtong Property Co., Ltd. HE MEER it

ENEERZEEERARAR PRC Property development Equity method 20.21% 2021%
Changzhou Jiahong Cailing Real Estate Co., Ltd. HE MEER i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(b) (Continued)

(i)

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)
16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)
(b) (&)
Joint ventures: (Continued) () &&AR: (HFE)
Place of Measurement Percentage of ownership
Name of company* incorporation Principal activities method  interest attributable to the Group
EL HRRIHE ITERED HEAE  ARBEEFEREREAM
2021 2020
RETRBAEFERAR(RERA ) PRC Property development Eauity method 33% 33%
Taixing Ronghe Property Co, Ltd. i ESE R
(Taixing Ronghe”)
MLEE([IEE)EXERAR PRC Property development Equity method 49% 49%
Zhejiang Gangdla Property Co,, Ltd, G VES BaE
(Zhejiang Gangda’)
BNATEZERLA PRC Property development Equity method 60% 60%
Huzhou Ganghong Property Co., Lid. i ESE R
BRRE( RAnE ] EHERRERAT PRC Property development Equity method 50% 50%
Changshu Maolong Real State Co,, Lid. i ESE R
(Changshu Maolong”)
BNEB(HNEE ) BHEREERAA PRC Property development Eauity method 33% 33%
Suzhou Zhengxi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, ES BRE
(*Suzhou Zhengxi')
nEAEELARLA PRC Property development Equity method 24,99% 24.99%
Rugao Ganghua Property Co,, Lid. i ESE R
Areh(Enck ) EHEREERLA PRC Property development Equity method 25% 5%
Nanjing Jinjun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. & NEEE Bak
(*Nanjing Jinjun”)
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
(i) Associates: iy BHEAT:
Place of Measurement Percentage of ownership
Name of company* incorporation Principal activities method  interest attributable to the Group
ARER HRRIHE ITERED HERE  AEEEGFAEERAAM
2021 2020

EATRILEERRHEREERAA PRC Property development Equity method 40% 40%
Changshu Yushan Country Garden Real Estate G VELHE BRE
Development Co., Ltd.

BENERRNREZARLA PRC Property development Equity method 15% 15%
Nantong Country Garden New District i VIELH BRE
Property Co., Ltd.

FRELERHERRERAT PRC Property development Equity method 15% 15%
Zhangjagang Jinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, IESE Rk

AR ERTEEERAT PRC Property development Equity method 30% 30%
Haimen Zhongnan Jinguan Property Co., Ltd. i YEL Bt

FRAAREERRHERYERAT PRC Property development Equity method 20% 20%
Zhangjiagang South City Country Garden Real Estate YEL B
Development Co., Ltd.

BN ERHERTERAR PRC Property development Equity method 30% 30%
Yancheng Xinbi Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. YEL EaE

EATRERHERSARAA PRC Property development Equity method 20% 20%
Yancheng Shunbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. & YEL B

IETaHIIETAH ) FHEREERAA PRC Property development Equity method 15% 15%
Jiangyin Hecheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. & YEL B
(" Jiangyin Hecheng’)

EATMUERNEREERAA PRC Property development Equity method 25% 25%
Changshu Bida Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. B YEL Bt

NETHERHERSERAT PRC Property development Equity method 30% 30%
Rugao Xinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. i NELR Bt

EATe TR (R RmL ThR] ) BHEREERAR PRC Property development Equity method 25% 25%
Changshu Jin'an Ruichen Real Estate Development NELR B

Co., Ltd. ("Changshu Jin an Ruichen’)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
(i) Associates: (Continued) (i) HEAT: (&)
Place of Measurement Percentage of ownership

Name of company* incorporation Principal activities method  interest attributable to the Group

EL HRRIHE ITERED HEAE  ARBEEFEREREAM

2021 2020

BN AER(ENHAEE ) EEERAR PRC Property development Equity method 24.5% 24.5%

Changzhou Mudan Jungang Real Estate Co, Ltd. ESE BRE
(Changzhou Mudan Jungang )
EEATARERARDA(E2AMAR)) PRC Property development Eauity method 20% 20%
Lianyungang Ganglong Property Co,, Lid. i ESE R
(‘Lianyungang Ganglong”)
Blims2E£ERAR ([ FMm5IE)) PRC Property development Eauity method 30% 30%
Changzhou Kaize Property Co,, Lid. G VES BaE
(Changzhou Kaize")
BMARENAA ) EERAT PRC Property development Equity method 24,5% NA
Yangzhou Jiuhe Property Co,, Lid. (Yangzhou Jiuhe”) NELR Rk TER
BNREREERAR PRC Property development Equity method 20% NA
Guangzhou Kewang Investment Co., Ltd. i NEER oy Bl
BNER(BNEE ) E£REAERAT PRC Property development Equity method 9.8% NA
Guangzhou Wangyuan Industrial Investment Co, Lid, & S ERA TEA
(Guangzhou Wangyuan”)

* The English names of PRC companies referred to * Z\KW%JZYFEQUP NSO
above in this note represents management’s best XBMAREERENE=EL
effort in translating the Chinese names of those EVNS)! Eli] s \S‘(%ﬁaﬁ - A A
companies as no English name have been registered R BHO M AT RE -
or available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for (c) BENAIREELENIKE
associates and joint ventures B E
None of the joint ventures and associates accounted for REAEREABRNAS BN ENEE N A
using the equity method is individually material to the Group. HAEEHEEATE - U NAEEE
Set out below are the summarised financial information REHAREBGAMERREAERS
for a selected group of joint ventures and associates that ENIRTFREACENBE N R EE/E
the Directors consider to be meaningful for users of the AR E

consolidated financial statements of the Group:

(i) Nantong Zhuosu, a joint venture to the Group. () MEEHRALAEENSELE)
Summarised statement of financial position MR R B E

As at 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARETF T
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, ZR$IIR S « B E Ef
cash and cash equivalents T e REEZEY 237,409 326,879
Other current assets Hitme&aE 31,547 36,317
Total assets EEHRE 268,956 363,196
Current liabilities REBAE
Other current liabilities HimEghaE 75,301 189,551
Total liabilities p=FEfct 75,301 189,551
Net assets BERE 193,655 173,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)
16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)

Equity Method (Continued)
() Summarised financial information for

) BMEARREELENIBE

associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)

() Nantong Zhuosu, a joint venture to the Group. () EEEHKREEEHEELHE)
(Continued) (4&)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEBNEZEFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRBIZEMEER o

interest.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Opening net assets HUNFEE 173,645 122,563
Profit for the year FREF 20,010 131,082
Dividend declared EEIRRKRE - (80,000)
Closing net assets HRFEE 193,655 173,645
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANE= B P B RELL A 12.5% 12.5%
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 24,207 21,706
Summarised statement of comprehensive income SEATHKEREE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETT
Revenue Wz 41,052 1,406,833
Expenses =53 (21,042) (1,275,751)
Net profit and total comprehensive FAF RN R ER N2
profit for the year 20,010 131,082
F3R2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR R M R (M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) B E (48)
(i) Yixing Jiayu, a joint venture to the Group. (i) EREEB(AELEENEED
%)
Summarised statement of financial position MR R B E

As at 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, ZR$IIR S « B E Ef
cash and cash equivalents FR B REBESEEM 57,977 78,577
Other current assets Hinsh&E 599,119 1,338,927
Total assets EEHRE 657,096 1,417,504
Current liabilities REBAE
Other current liabilities Hivm#hak 426,092 1,417,662
Total liabilities p=FEfct 426,092 1,417,662
Net assets/(liabilities) BEE/(8fF) 231,004 (158)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(i) Yixing Jiayu, a joint venture to the Group. (i) EREEB(RAEEENEED
(Continued) %) (8#|)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEBNEZEFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRBIZEMEER o
interest.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETFT
Opening net liabilities HFasE (158) (8,839
Profit for the year F s F 231,162 8,681
Closing net assets/(liabilities) HMRFEE/(Af) 231,004 (158)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEFTBRELLDI 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the investment REREE 46,201 -

Summarised statement of comprehensive income PENEREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREBFT

Revenue WS 952,009 366,024

Expenses X (720,847) (357,343)
Net profit and total comprehensive FRFR A N2 ia A B8

profit for the year 231,162 8,681

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16. SRAERIESIBRAVIRE (&)

) BMERQARREELENIBE

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)
() Summarised financial information for

associates and joint ventures (Continued) B E (48)
(i) Taixing Ronghe, a joint venture to the Group. (i) =EFMA(EEENESE L)
Summarised statement of financial position AR R E

As at 31 December

M2AMBLEEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFIT
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents SRRFIREE « EEAEH
TR BHEakBEEED 41,272 46,679
Other current assets HivmEh&EE 400,237 1,040,976
Total assets EERE 441,509 1,087,655
Current liabilities RBAE
Other current liabilities HimEgaE 471,352 1,081,201
Total liabilities BEHAE 471,352 1,081,201
Net (liabilities)/assets (Bl EBEFE (29,843) 6,454

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s

interest.

AEBMEERAEZINOMG

BER RO -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B31BLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBTT

Opening net assets HFEE 6,454 14,600
Loss for the year FAEE (36,297) (8,146)
Closing net (liabilities)/assets WARF(aE)BE (29,843) 6,454
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB ALY 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the investment KRERME - 1,201
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERASM -

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)
(c) Summarised financial information for (c)
associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(iii) Taixing Ronghe, a joint venture to the Group.

(iv)

(Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

SREVSARKE)

16. SRAERIESIBRAVIRE (&)

GENTAIREELENTKE
R ()
(i) EEBMA(NEEHNEELE)
()
EERSREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Revenue s 678,614 941,462

Expenses sk (714,911) (949,608)
Net loss and total comprehensive FRFEFBHER

loss for the year Z2HEERTE (36,297) (8,146)

Zhejiang Gangda, a joint venture to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

ivy WIBZE(BXEENEED
¥)
PR R E

As at 31 December

MA12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREEE 2,508 2,292
Current assets REEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, <RHIIES - DEFEH
cash and cash equivalents TR BekBeEED 53,650 126,777
Other current assets HEiREEE 172,506 609,348
226,156 736,125
Total assets BEERHE 228,664 738,417
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Other non-current liabilities HiIpmEadE - 1,704
Current liabilities REBAE
Other current liabilities HimeEhaE 95,681 337,317
Total liabilities BEHAE 95,681 339,021
Net assets EEFHE 132,983 399,396
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

16.Investments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method (Continued)
() Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(iv) Zhejiang Gangda, a joint venture to the Group.

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s

interest.

SEELBARK)
16. SRR ARV E (&)

) BMERQARREELENIBE

PHRE (48)

(v) WIEE(REEENSED
¥) ()
REEORERREEL 0B
BRI E 5 -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARETT

Opening net assets 399,396 104,276

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),HH (6,413) 295,120

Dividend declared (260,000) -

Closing net assets 132,983 399,396

Proportion of the Group’s ownership INEE B P A RE L 49% 49%

Carrying amount of the investment 65,162 195,704
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HENEEEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETF T

Revenue 229,609 2,108,586

Expenses (236,022) (1,813,466)
Net (loss)/profit and total comprehensive £ A% (E518), S Fl &%

(loss)/profit for the year 2HE(ER),/SEH a5 (6,413) 295,120

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(v) Changshu Maolong, a joint venture to the Group. vy EREE(RETEENEGEDL
%)
Summarised statement of financial position ISR R E

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Non-current assets FREEE 3,685 3,701
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, Z[R4IIR& - 2K IFEH
cash and cash equivalents TR OHERIRSEED 124,500 174,761
Other current assets HEimshEE 1,022,687 1,631,451
1,147,187 1,806,212
Total assets EEHAE 1,150,872 1,809,913
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings B - 490,000
Current liabilities mEAE
Other current liabilities HingaE 881,001 1,130,934
Total liabilities BEHAE 881,001 1,620,934
Net assets BEERE 269,871 188,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(v) Changshu Maolong, a joint venture to the Group.

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s

interest.

SEELBARK)
16. SRR ARV E (&)

) BMERQARREELENIBE

PHRE (48)

(v) EREE(RIEENSED
¥) ()
REEORERREEL 0B
BRI E 5 -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Opening net assets HFa’E 188,979 193,904

Profit/(loss) for the years FriEH(EE) 80,892 (4,925)

Closing net assets HRFEE 269,871 188,979

Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEE T ALY 50% 50%

Carrying amount of the investment REREAE 134,936 94,490
Summarised statement of comprehensive income PEWEREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Revenue Wz 1,085,882 -

Expenses =53 (1,004,990) (4,925)
Net profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRFEF R (EE) K&

profit/(loss) for the year wmF (B8 B 80,892 (4,925)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(vi) Suzhou Zhengxi, a joint venture to the Group. (vii BNEB(AEEENEE D
%¥)
Summarised statement of financial position R R E

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Non-current assets FREEE 20,264 51,489
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, Z[R4IIR& - 2K IFEH
cash and cash equivalents TR OHERIRSEED 126,085 298,945
Other current assets Hivmeh&E 769,748 2,557,792
895,833 2,856,737
Total assets EEHAE 916,097 2,908,226
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings B - 259,000
Current liabilities mEAE
Other current liabilities HingaE 215,487 2,286,915
Total liabilities BEHAE 215,487 2,545,915
Net assets BEERE 700,610 362,311
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(vi) Suzhou Zhengxi, a joint venture to the Group.

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s

interest.

SEELBARK)
16. SRR ARV E (&)

) BMERQARREELENIBE

PHRE (48)

v RHNEE(RF-EENEED
¥) ()
REEORERREEL 0B
BRI E 5 -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Opening net assets HUNFEE 362,311 379,718
Profit/(loss) for the year FriEH(EE) 338,299 (17,407)
Closing net assets HRFEE 700,610 362,311
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7N £ B B G RELL {5 33% 33%
Carrying amount of the investment REREE 231,201 119,563

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HEMZEEEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Revenue Wz 2,349,041 -

Expenses i3 (2,010,742) (17,407)
Net profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRFEF R (EE) K&

profit/(loss) for the year wmF (B8 B 338,299 (17,407)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(vii) Nanjing Jinjun, a joint venture to the Group. (vii FRER(AEEENEE D
%¥)
Summarised statement of financial position R R E

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE 7 NA i
Current assets REEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, Z[R4IIR& - 2K IFEH
cash and cash equivalents FR o BERBEEEED 156,091 NA  TNEH
Other current assets Himen&E 1,241,419 NA 7 iEmA
1,397,510 NA  TE A
Total assets EEHAE 1,397,517 NA i
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings TEE 1,000,000 NA  TEMA
Current liabilities REBEE
Other current liabilities HEwr#eas 0000 381,900 | NA NEA
Total liabilities EEHA%H 1,381,900 NA “FiEH
Net assets EEFHE 15,617 NA TEMA
Note: Mzt -
Nanjing Jinjun was a 25% subsidiary of the Group. On 10 R &8 D RN E B R AR 25% b
June 2021, the Group no longer be able to control but B AR - 20216 A10H » A&
retained a joint control over Nanjing Jinjun (Details set out in ETrHeAEHERETHRAS
Note 29). The investment in Nanjing Jinjun was recognised My FEREHI(FF R HI3E29) - ¥/
in the investment in joint venture in the consolidated REBRERR AELRE M ER
financial statements on the same date. RTERAHEEDERNRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR R M R (M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. BRI ETIBRIVIZE (&)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) B E (48)
(vii) Nanjing Jinjun, a joint venture to the Group. (vii FRER(AEEENEE D
(Continued) %) (#|)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEBNERFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRI ZEMEER o
interest.

For the period
from 10 June 2021
(date of deemed

disposal) to Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

2021%F6H10H

(RIELERE)
Z2021512A31H HZE2020F
WERE  12A31BLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Opening net assets HYFEE 47,540 NA A
Loss for the year FREE (13,730) NA i
Closing net assets HRFEE 33,810 NA @A
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB AL 25% NA TiEH
Share of net assets value held by the Group REBEFfFEEFENNE 8,452 NA “REF
Fair value gains (Note 29) DA EERE (F7E29) (4,548) NA TiEH
Carrying amount of the investment REKRMEAE 3,904 NA “RiEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERASM -

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for

associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(vii) Nanjing Jinjun, a joint venture to the Group.

(Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

(©

SREVSARKE)

16. SRAERIESIBRAVIRE (&)

HENTREEERNUHE
PHRE (48)
(vi) ERER(AFEENSE D
¥) ()
SENGIREEE

For the period
from 10 June 2021
(date of deemed
disposal) to Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

2021%F6H10H
(REHERH)
Z2021F12A31R B 220204
MERE  12AS1BLEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Revenue Wz - NA “TiEH
Expenses X (18,730) NA  NER
Net loss and total comprehensive FRNFEBEREHEBEEE
loss for the year (13,730) NA i

(viii) Jiangyin Hecheng, an associate to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

(viii) SIEHEB(BAEAEENEE A
a)
BB R E

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE 12,214 37,286
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, <RHIFR S « 2 EFEH
cash and cash equivalents T HERRESZEED 560,600 298,250
Other current assets Hing&E 1,401,340 2,280,479
1,961,940 2,578,729
Total assets EEHE 1,974,154 2,616,015
Current liabilities RBAE
Other current liabilities HinghaE 1,607,616 2,603,375
Net assets EEFH 366,538 12,640
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(viii) Jiangyin Hecheng, an associate to the Group.

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s

interest.

SEELBARK)
16. SRR ARV E (&)

) BMERQARREELENIBE

R (48)

(vii) IR E R (BEAEENBE D
7) ()
NREEWESRAEZINETE
BERBEZRER -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEFE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBTT

Opening net assets HUNFEE 12,640 33,927

Profit/(loss) for the year FriEH(EE) 353,898 (21,287)

Closing net assets HRFEE 366,538 12,640

Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANE= B P RE L A 15% 15%

Carrying amount of the investment REREE 54,981 1,896
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EREREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Revenue Wz 2,166,019 -

Expenses i3 (1,812,121) (21,287)
Net profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRFEF R (EE) K&

profit/(loss) for the year wmF (B8 B 353,898 (21,287)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(ix) Changshu Jin’an Ruichen, an associate to the (ix) ERATMERGER(BEAEENE
Group. =—FNED)
Summarised statement of financial position ISR R E

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE 18 1,040
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, Z[R4IIR& - 2K IFEH
cash and cash equivalents TR OHERIRSEED 160,768 200,702
Other current assets HEimshEE 330,309 605,561
491,077 806,263
Total assets EEHAE 491,095 807,303
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings B - 225,000
Current liabilities mEAE
Other current liabilities HingaE 38,065 112,065
Total liabilities BEHAE 38,065 337,065
Net assets BEERE 453,030 470,238

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) B E (48)
(ix) Changshu Jin’an Ruichen, an associate to the (ix) ERATERLER(BEIEENE
Group. (Continued) &nE)(8|)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEBNERFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRI ZEMEER o
interest.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARETT

Opening net assets HUNFEE 470,238 77,192

(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EE),H=F (17,208) 393,046

Closing net assets HRFEE 453,030 470,238

Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANE= B P RE L A 25% 25%

Carrying amount of the investment REREE 113,257 117,559
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HEMZEEEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Revenue Wz 283,275 896,173

Expenses =53 (300,483) (503,127)
Net (loss)/profit and total comprehensive F R (E18) & H K&

(loss)/profit for the year 2E(ER),SHH a5 (17,208) 393,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(x) Changzhou Mudan Jungang, an associate to the x) EMNHAEB(AEEENBEZ
Group. YNCTD)
Summarised statement of financial position ISR R E

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE 26,794 21,812
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, Z[R4IIR& - 2K IFEH
cash and cash equivalents TR OHERIRSEED 119,821 146,528
Other current assets HEtmEn&EE 1,072,392 2,172,715
1,192,213 2,319,243
Total assets EEHAE 1,219,007 2.341,055
Current liabilities mEAE
Other current liabilities HingaE 316,001 1,573,498
Total liabilities BEHAE 316,001 1,673,498
Net assets EEFE 903,006 767,557
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

16.Investments Accounted for Using the

Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Changzhou Mudan Jungang, an associate to the

(x)

Group. (Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s

interest.

SEELBARK)
16. SRR ARV E (&)

) BMERQARREELENIBE

PHRE (48)
() EMHSEE(RREE NS
D) (M)

AEBMNEERAEZIINITG
BRI -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEFE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARETT

Opening net assets HUNFEE 767,557 543,678

Profit for the year FEREF 275,449 223,879

Dividend declared EEIRRERE (140,000) -

Closing net assets HRFEE 903,006 767,557

Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANE= B BB RE L A 24.5% 24.5%

Carrying amount of the investment KERME 221,236 188,051
Summarised statement of comprehensive income PENEREE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETF T

Revenue Wzs 1,614,162 1,829,488

Expenses s (1,338,713) (1,605,609)
Net profit and total comprehensive FRFEMN R

profit for the years SR F4BEE 275,449 223,879
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(xi) Lianyungang Ganglong, an associate to the xi) EEBWBE(ALEENEZ
Group. YNCTD)
Summarised statement of financial position R R E

As at 31 December

A12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current assets REEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, ZR$IIR S « B E Ef
cash and cash equivalents FaH - WERIESZEEY 14,455 145,613
Other current assets HithmEh & e 144,166 1,114,923
Total assets EEHAR 158,621 1,260,536
Current liabilities RENAE
Other current liabilities HipmeEh & & 88,692 1,259,761
Net assets EEFHE 69,929 775
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEENEREEEZY OB
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRI E B $BE o
interest.
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Opening net assets HFEE 775 4,244
Profit/(loss) for the year FriEH(EE) 69,154 (3,469)
Closing net assets HRFEE 69,929 775
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANE= B P RELL B 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the investment REBREE 13,985 155

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR R M R (M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) B E (48)
(xi) Lianyungang Ganglong, an associate to the xi) EEBWBE(ALAEENEZ
Group. (Continued) AT (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2ERRGEERHME

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREBFT
Revenue Wz 1,202,691 -
Expenses Fs (1,133,537) (3,469)
Net profit/(loss) and total comprehensive £ PRE&F] (BB RE2H
profit/(loss) for the year smAl/ (B8 1 sa 69,154 (3,469)
(xii) Changzhou Kaize, an associate to the Group. (i) EMTHB(AEREEBNEEQ
a)
Summarised statement of financial position B F AR R R 2

As at 31 December

A12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE 15 22
Current assets REBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, Z[R&IRE - 2 IFEH
cash and cash equivalents GR - BekBEeEFED 22,550 73,605
Other current assets HivmEh&EE 325,897 822,515
348,447 896,120
Total assets BEEHAT 348,462 896,142
Current liabilities REBEE
Other current liabilities HiwrgpasE 000 245,042 ¢ 898,827
Net assets/(liabilities) BE (8T8 103,420 (2,685)
236 Annual Report 2021

Ganglong China Property Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKTE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(xii) Changzhou Kaize, an associate to the Group. (xii) EMNTIZR(AEEENBEE A
(Continued) 7)) (&)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEBNEZEFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRBIZEMEER o
interest.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Opening net (liabilities)/assets HyE(a®)  EE (2,685) 15,045
Profit/(loss) for the year FriEH(EE) 106,105 (17,730)
Closing net assets/(liabilities) HMRFEE/(Af) 103,420 (2,689)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEFTBRELLBI 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the investment REREE 31,026 -

Summarised statement of comprehensive income PEINEREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Revenue Wz 1,095,781 -

Expenses G (989,676) (17,730)
Net profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRFEF A (EE) K& H

profit/(loss) for the year wmFl (B8 B 106,105 (17,730)

F 352021
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16.Investments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method (Continued)
() Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (Continued)
(xiii) Guangzhou Wangyuan, an associate to the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERAS

TREU/ARKE)

16. SRAERIESIBRAVIRE (&)

(c) BtE LT
PHEE (1)

BELENGBE

xii) EMER(ATEENEE Q

Group. 7))
Summarised statement of financial position B AROR R I E
As at
31 December
2021
720214
12A831H
RMB’000
AR®T T
Current assets RBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, cash and cash 2[R #IIRE - 2R EEHFR
equivalents ReERREEEY 23,726
Other current assets HitvnE&EE 1,679,797
Total assets BEEHAEE 1,703,523
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings fa 397,200
Current liabilities ik =R
Other current liabilities Hnpmgpate 0 1,324,869
Total liabilities BEERHE 1,722,069
Net liabilities BEFHE (18,546)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | # £20214£12 8310 ILEE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERASM -

16.Investments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method (Continued)
() Summarised financial information for

SEEMAARNE)
16. SRR ARV E (&)

) BMEARREELENIBE

associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(xiii) Guangzhou Wangyuan, an associate to the xii) EMNEE(BEAEENEE A
Group. (Continued) 7)) (&)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AEBNEZEFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRBIZEMEER o
interest.
For the period
from 2 February
2021
(date of
cooperation)
to 31 December
2021
202152828
(&ERZE
2021%12A31H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Opening net assets BFEE -
Loss for the year FAEE (18,546)
Closing net liabilities HARFBE (18,546)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE FT AL 9.8%
Carrying amount of the investment REREE -
Summarised statement of comprehensive income TN G g A
For the period
from 2 February
2021
(date of
cooperation)
to 31 December
2021
H2021%F2H2H
(&ER)ZE
20215F12H831H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Revenue gz -
Expenses X (18,546)
Net loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRFEEENEEEEARE (18,546)
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR R M R (M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. SRS ETIBENIRE (E)
Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for ) BENTREELENNKE
associates and joint ventures (Continued) B E (48)
(xiv) Yangzhou Jiuhe, an associate to the Group. XVVEMNAM(BEAEENEE
YNCTD)
Summarised statement of financial position B AROR R I E
As at
31 December
2021
20214
12A831H
RMB’000
ARET T
Non-current assets IREBEE 120
Current assets REBEE
Restricted cash, pledged time deposits, R[S - BIWETHTR
cash and cash equivalents Re MRS FEEY 274,738
Other current assets HitvmEh&EE 361,756
636,494
Total assets EEHE 636,614
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings &3 335,000
Current liabilities RBARE
Other current liabilities HivmEhasE 288,258
Total liabilities BEHAE 623,258
Net assets BEEFHE 13,356
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RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | # £20214£12 8310 ILEE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERASM -

SREVSARKE)

16.Investments Accounted for Using the 16. BRI ETIBRIVIZE (&)

Equity Method (Continued)

() Summarised financial information for

) BMEARREELENIBE

associates and joint ventures (Continued) BB E (48)
(xiv) Yangzhou Jiuhe, an associate to the Group. XVVEMNAFM(BEEENEE
(Continued) AT (&)
Reconciliation of the summarized financial information AEBNEZEFEOEZNNT B
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BRBIZEMEER o
interest.
For the period
from 11 March
2021 (date of
cooperation)
to 31 December
2021
202145
3A11B(&4ER)
20215
12831H
RMB’000
ARET T
Capital injection FE 20,000
Loss for the year FNEE (6,644)
Closing net assets HRFEE 13,356
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE FT ARG 24.5%
Carrying amount of the investment HERMEIE 3,272
Summarised statement of comprehensive income el ERE Y
For the period
from 11 March
2021 (date of
cooperation)
to 31 December
2021
202145
3A118(&4ER)
20216
12A31H
RMB’000
ARET T
Revenue Uz -
Expenses Az (6,644)
Net loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRFEEREEEEEE (6,644)
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

17. Deferred Income Tax 17 IRAEFT1SH
(a) Deferred income tax assets (a) EEMSHEE
As at 31 December
M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
The balance comprises temporary ERBIEATSENE R
differences attributable to: =5
—Tax losses — I E R 338,283 269,581
— Deferred land appreciation tax — JRAE 4 3B (E T 82,878 79,897
Total deferred income tax assets REFSR B EBRE 421,161 349,478
Set-off with deferred tax liabilities TR IR S E B SR T
pursuant to set-off provisions FristiEa & (11,665) (1,642)
Net deferred income tax assets BIEFMBHEEFE 409,496 347,836

Movements of deferred income tax assets without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred land
appreciation

AL AR A R B B (L at R A — B
BB PO A B OIESE) I

Movements Tax losses tax Total
BE BEEE BEEI#iZER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREF T AREF T
At 1 January 2020 720201 B1R 119,540 36,955 156,495
Credited to the consolidated SAGEEEMER
statement of comprehensive (M$3E10)
income (Note 10) 150,041 42,942 192,983
At 31 December 2020 and M2020F12A318 K&
1 January 2021 20211 H1H 269,581 79,897 349,478
Credited to the consolidated FAGEEERER
statement of comprehensive (FfzE10)
income (Note 10) 68,702 2,981 71,683
At 31 December 2021 72021%F12831H 338,283 82,878 421,161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

17. Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

(@) Deferred income tax assets (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of RMB83,789,000 (2020:
RMB38,613,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to
RMB335,156,000 (2020: RMB154,453,000), that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses will expire up to and including 2025.

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

17 IRIEFRISHL(E)
(a) EEMSHEE(E)

EEFTS I E E YA FEMRRE T 1A T &
B 0] 8 iE 1A B 18 FERR B m A1) 38 5t
Frses 2 BB E B 1ERERR o 120214
12A31H » REBEIWEFL A TAAE L
HIERRERRBANTEBEAR
"% 335,156,000 7T (2020 F : A R ¥&
154,453,0007T ) ERIELEFTIS TR E BE
A R 83,789,000 7T (2020F : AR
#£38,613,0007T) ° ZEHIEBEKR
20255 (RIEHBFE ) AlfEm °

(b) ELFFEBERE

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
The balance comprises temporary EHREREATEIEN
differences attributable to: R
— Withholding tax on dividends for — KD IR AT ETE
undistributed profits G (109,328) (80,350)
— Fair value gains on investment properties — 3% &A1 BEWES (26,736) (26,200)
- Deferred land appreciation tax — IR+ IR (ERR (32,725) (6,488)
Total deferred income tax liabilities RIEAET B ER (168,789) (112,044)
Set-off with deferred income tax assets IR SR AR SR T
pursuant to set-off provisions FriSHiEE 11,665 1,642
Net deferred income tax liabilities BEAMSH B EFEE (157,124) (110,402)
F3{2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

17. Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 17 EEEFTEH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued) (b) EEMEHEEE)
Movements of deferred income tax liabilities without taking B EHAaEEes(WET RE—FH
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same TN ARSI T -

tax jurisdiction is as follows:

Withholding
tax on Fair value
dividends for gainson Deferred land
undistributed investment properties
profits properties tax Total
Movements RoTKEF BREME EZ
) NREENH AAEEKRS T IEED @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFL AREFIL
At 1 January 2020 #2020%1A1A (70,829) (23,681) (5,492 (100,002)
(Charged)/credited to the REA2ERER
consolidated statement of (FF ),/ 0B (B3E10)
comprehensive income (Note 10) (9,521) (2,525) 4 (12,042)
At 31 December 2020 and R202012H31B K
1 January 2021 2021%1H1H (80,350) (26,2006) (5,488) (112,044)
Charged to the consolidated Rz 2ENER
statement of comprehensive Mz (HIEE10)
income (Note 10) (28,978) (530) (27,237) (56,745)
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12A31H (109,328) (26,736) (32,725) (168,789)
The analysis of deferred income tax accounts are as follows: BEEFMBHERE DT -
As at 31 December
M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFTT
Deferred income tax assets: ELEFISBEE :
Recoverable after 12 months AP 21E A 12U [El 409,496 347,836
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFTEREME
Recoverable after 12 months AR 216 A 12U [El (157,124) (110,402
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

18.Properties Under Development and 18. BB ERFHEHENDE

Completed Properties Held for Sale R/
As at 31 December
M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Properties under development I 36,670,782 32,108,351
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEND BT YE 2,375,337 295,960
39,046,119 32,404,311
Properties under development and completed properties held for AREBRERYERFELEND R T YE
sale of the Group are all located in the PRC and expected to be BRARE - BEREFES BRI N
completed and available for sale within normal operating cycle. AJHEHE o
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the capitalisation rate of HZE2021F12A31HILFENERHER
borrowings is 9.6% (2020: 7.7%). (B3R 59.6% (20204 : 7.7%) °
The carrying amounts of Group’s properties held for sales and KIREAREBERNER RN AEE S E
properties under development pledged as collateral for the HENYELFEPOMENREME®DT :

Group’s borrowings are set out as follows:

As at 31 December

A12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Carrying amounts of completed properties held  FS{EHER 2L TR
for sale and properties under development: GRS EREREE -
- Pledged as collateral for Group’s borrowings — — K {E AN = B & R KR @ 17,308,747 14,392,717

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

19.Trade and Other Receivables and 19. %5 & HttEWFIER AR

Prepayments 15
As at 31 December
M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Trade receivables from third parties REF=FNE ZEKRE
(Note (a)) (Ffz£(a)) 46,984 8,071
Other receivables HnfE R IE
— Deposits for property development projects —VMEHRBIBRES 470,868 562,287
- Receivables from banks and bank card — FEUERTT R ARTT R ARTS
service providers HRE R RIE 238,574 68,901
— Refundable deposits for property —MERFIBENRELRS
development projects (Note (b)) (FaEb)) 265,092 -
— Others —Hi 35,931 26,511
1,010,465 657,699
Prepayments FEARE
— Prepayments for property development — Y EEFEIE B AN EIR
projects 82,419 99,264
— Prepaid value added tax and other taxes — TR ER R E MBI 514,640 308,645
— Contract acquisition costs (Note (c)) — B HERR AR (3E () 136,267 40,759
— Others —HApb 13,702 13,703
747,028 462,371
Total trade and other receivables and B RHEHMEWRFIEBUR
prepayments FENRE 1,804,477 1,128,141
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR45RIEEBASN - £EEERI A A REE)

19.Trade and Other Receivables and 19.B5 Rk EiEWEIERFE =R
Prepayments (Continued) T8 (#8)
(@) Trade receivables from third parties (@) REE=AFNEZEWK

Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and mainly arise
from sales of properties and construction services. Proceeds
in respect of sales of properties and construction services
are generally received in accordance with the terms stipulated
in the sale and purchase agreements. This is generally no
credit period granted to the property purchasers.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the
consolidated statement of financial position date based on
invoice dates is as follows:

B 5 RUGRIAUAREEHE - I;IPKQ
HEMRLZERTS - HEVRKEE
RIS SR —RIRIBE BTN
FRUER - BETARTUEEREER

B 5 RUGRIAN G A MR R B #iR
%;%}‘—?E,Hﬁiwﬁﬂﬁ BRECDITIAT -

;

As at 31 December

M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBETT
0 - 30 days 0-30H 46,984 8,071

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of
RMB46,984,000 (2020: RMB8,071,000) were overdue but
not impaired and fully relate to certain customers that have
good settlement record with the Group.

For these past due trade receivables, the Group has assessed
the expected credit losses by considering historical loss
experiences, existing market conditions and forward-looking
information. Based on the assessment, expected credit loss
rate of trade receivables is close to zero. Therefore, the loss
allowance provision for these receivables balances was not
material.

M2021F12A318 * EZEURFIBA
R ¥ 46,984,0007T (2020 4F : AR
8,071,0007T) B 3@ EA{B W ARm(E © T2
MIRAEEE R FEELENETRP
faE -

HERBHEZRKTIR - AEEES
EERBEEELR BEMRRATEL
BERFHETEIEERE - RIES - B
HEFRESENEEBEREIT -
At - ZFE 5 RBGIAGHRNERE
BALTERX -

F #2021
BRETEMEREERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

19.Trade and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

(b)

Refundable deposits for property development projects
represent the amounts advanced to other property
developers in the PRC for the funding of property
development projects. As at 31 December 2021, the balance
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Management considers the contract acquisition costs, which
represents sales commission paid for obtaining property
sale contracts, to be recoverable. The Group has deferred
the amounts paid and will charge them to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the related
revenue is recognised. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the amount charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income was RMB50,326,000 (2020:
RMB34,414,000) and there were no impairment loss in
relation to the remaining balances.

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables and
prepayments approximate their fair values and are denominated in
RMB.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 was the carrying value of receivables. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.

Annual Report 2021
Ganglong China Property Group Limited

TREU/ARKE)

19. B 5 R H M IFIR R R K

18 (48)

(b) YEMBEEEHWMARERSEEMNTF
BEMMEREFINOMERLEEE
© ° R2021F12A318 - &% AEE
R REWBERERTLAMEE -

© EEABRABEHIIERARATFUE -
ZERNIERERMERSA M
MIEERE - AEBEREZNNS
R WA ERARRAREESGRTA
AR - HE2021F12A318 1E
FE - BEAREEARSRNSEA
AR #50,326,0007T (2020%F : AREE
34,414,0007T) * #RFEARERSIE o

5 I oAl R MR IR K FE AN SRR A BR T {E £
ERARBERE  LAAREE-

\

R20214 R20205F12 A1 A& a5 ERE R
AL ERGIEZREE - AEBT EES
TR RIERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | & ZF 2021412 A31H IFEE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR45RIEEBASN - £EEERI A A REE)

20. Cash and Bank Balances 20. HE RIRITEER
As at 31 December
M12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Restricted cash (Note a) SR HIIRE (H7ta) 4,608,272 2,211,490

Pledged time deposits B E HFER 71,657 37,727

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEED 2,304,919 4,547,628

6,984,848 6,796,845

Note: BIRE -

(a) The Group’s restricted cash mainly comprise of (1) Supervision @ AEENXREBEFIZEENEEDE
accounts for construction of pre-sold properties; (2) Guarantee ERMEERF  QLIRES  RO)E
deposits for construction; and (3) Supervision accounts for HREREERR -
mortgage guarantee.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign 15 A RESHER A RSB INE LA K 8 SNEE

currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies out of M2 AR ERAN - B ST BT B

the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign SNEE B B B AR EE AR Rl KRR o

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

The above balances as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 i 22021 FF 2 20204F 12 A 31 B A 4 4 £

approximate their fair values and are denominated in the following HERREERS - WE T EEHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Denominated in: BTy ERHE
- RMB — AR 6,906,543 6,638,199
-uUsD — 5T 58,796 66
- HKD — B 19,509 158,580

6,984,848 6,796,845

F 352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)
21. Share Capital 21. Ig7<
Number of Share
shares capital
gk 2 E| [N
HK$
ot
Authorised: SERE -
1 January 2020 72021F1A1H 38,000,000 380,000
Changes EaE) 9,962,000,000 99,620,000
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 720204 K 2021412 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
Number of Share
shares capital
KGR [N
RMB’000
AREETFTT
Issued: BT :
At 1 January 2020 720201 A1H 1,000 -
Shares issued pursuant to the RARE AR (L3I TR TN (HFEG)
capitalisation issue (Note (i) 1,199,999,000 10,979
Share issued under global offering (Note (i) AR 4% 2 ¥k 3 & TR (P RE() 430,618,000 3,940
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 12020412 A31H &202141H1H 1,630,618,000 14,919
Cancellation of shares (Note (i) FESEAR 17 (PR = (i) (2,077,000) (19)
At 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H 1,628,541,000 14,900

The Company was incorporated on 8 October 2018 with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000, divided into 38,000,000

shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company dated 20 June 2020, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 divided
into 38,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each to
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an additional 9,962,000,000

shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.
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AARIFHR2018F10 A8 H AL » JEAE MK
7K 380,000/ 7T * 9 438,000,000 0% & %
E{EO.01B TR »

BB A TR E RN 202096 A20 B EH I E
R  ZRQ B EAE AN B1.380,00055 7T
LA A% E{E0.017% 7T 2 38,000,0008% ©
100,000,000 7T JA & I% I {E0.01 8 T =
10,000,000,000 f% * 5 & H09,962,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

21. Share Capital (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Capitalisation issue

On 15 July 2020, the capitalisation issue pursuant to the
Shareholders’ resolution dated 20 June 2020 was effected.
The Company issued 1,199,999,000 shares at par value
of HK$0.01 each to holders of shares on the register of
members of the Company on 15 July 2020, by way of
capitalisation of an amount of HK$11,999,990 to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company.

Global offering

On 15 July 2020, the Company issued a total of 400,000,000
ordinary shares at a price of HK$3,93 per share as a result of
the completion of the global offering.

30,618,000 shares were issued upon the partially exercise
of the over-allotment option on 5 August 2020 at a price of
HK$3.93 per share.

Number of total issued shares of the Company was
increased to 1,630,618,000 shares upon completion of the
capitalisation issue, the global offering and the exercise of
over-allotment option.

Cancellation of shares

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
acquired 3,914,000 of the Company’s shares through
purchases from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
November and December 2021. The total amount paid
to acquire shares was RMB13,147,000 (equivalent to
HK$16,032,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021,
2,077,000 shares were cancelled and deducted from share
capital and share premium amounting to RMB19,000 and
RMB6,997,000 respectively.

21. iz
(i)

(i)

K(#8)

BT

R2020%7 4158 » BARILEITIRE
20206 A20 A WM BRFEFAER » A
REVAER BT RAEARABR
20207 A15 AR A M LRk mIFE
AZ171,199,999,0008% f% 17 » FAXE
EA0.01%8 7T * £ % /411,999,9007%
JC B AR R ERD R E R 2 #EIREE o

2IRBE

K2020F7 A158 - ARRIAZKEBK
BE - RERARMN3.93BITERETE
$£400,000,000P% & 38 A% °

FREEAC AR BB DT TIER - FR20204F
8 A5 H IR B /1 3.93 B L EKEETT
30,618,000/ %17 °

RIEREACETT - RIREERITHER
HECRHER - ARRIDHITID A BUE
HNZ1,630,618,0000% °

RS
HZE2021F12A31BILFE - A£E
R2021F 11 ARI1I2ABEBELERS
FT88 E 3,914,000 AR B (D - Ui
Bz e EE A ARE13,147,000
7t (#8 & R 16,032,000 # 7T ) ° &
E2021F12 A1 HWMFEE » T8
2,077,000 /%15 I B A &I 15 4
BRI - 2855 AARM19,000
LM AR #6,997,0007T °

F3R2021
BETEBEEEERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Bx4F55E8RSN -

21. Share Capital (Continued)

22.

TREU/ARKE)

21. R (48)

Highest Lowest
Number of purchase purchase
ordinary price per price per
shares ordinary ordinary
repurchased share share
BEERER BREBARN BREBERN
E4= BEBEE BIEBEE
Month of repurchase e A5 (Thousand shares) (HK$) (HK$)
(Fi) (&) (B7T)
November 2021 202111 A 2,027 4.2700 4.0000
December 2021 2021412 1,887 4.1500 4.0400
Share Premium and Reserves 22. R anBRfEE
Share Statutory Other
premium reserves reserves Total
B HRE EERE Hitf& & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARBFT ARETFT
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(P &E) (P ()
At 1 January 2020 2020F181H - 136,121 315,515 451,636
Shares issued pursuant to the RIBE A BTG

capitalisation issue (10,979) - - (10,979)
Shares issued under the global BIEERBERITRG

offering 1,544,394 - - 1,544,394
Share issuance costs (Note (iii) PRt A TR AR (BT (i) (58,599) - - (58,599)
Appropriation to statutory reserves Bk E R - 91,712 - 91,712
At 31 December 2020 and 72020F 12 A31H &

1 January 2021 2021F1R1H 1,474,816 227,833 315,515 2,018,164
Cancellation of shares (Note 21) TESERR D (BTRE21) (6,997) - 7,016 19
Buy back of shares (Note 21) BRI tn (FifEE21) - - (13,147) (13,147)
Acquisition of additional interests  UgBBHTE A RIHIEEIMES

in subsidiaries (Note 27) (B¥sE27) - - (26,420) (26,420)
Appropriation to statutory reserves R Z X F A - 4,955 - 4,955
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H 1,467,819 232,788 282,964 1,983,571
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

22. Share Premium and Reserves (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly foreign owned enterprises, the PRC subsidiary is
required to appropriate to reserve fund an amount of not less
than 10% of the profit after income tax, calculated based
on the PRC accounting standards. Should the accumulated
total of this reserve fund reach 50% of the registered capital
of the PRC subsidiary, the subsidiary will not be required to
make any further appropriation. The reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserves

Other reserves mainly represented the reserves derived from
acquisition of non-controlling interests, the share premium
and the accumulated capital contribution from the then
equity holders of the group companies in excess of the
consideration given in relation to the reorganisation.

Share issuance costs

Share issuance costs mainly include share underwriting
commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and
other related costs that are directly attributable to the global
offering.

20, /19 VAR B4R ()

(i)

(i)

SEEE R
RIEFBERANINIRE LR 2 BE
B PEBARAR T DRER
BRENE10% (R EEHERE)
ZHEBARRED - MtREEESZ
REtRFEETEMB AR ZEMERZ
50% + RIFZ %M 8 12 )% B 78 15 1E 3
AR o FBBR KRG AR B HLE -
IR EEDE A BN R BRSO
MEZ -

Hitbf# 1

ot 90 B MRS R 2
1 I R A ) 2 AR R B E AR L
(B MR ID 5B R R5H5EH -

BAD BT PR

RO BITRAEEBHERN 2HME -
BEE  PREHADEARMEER
BEREENEREA -

F3R2021
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R E PR Rk MY e ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

23. Borrowings

TRBURARE)

23. &5k

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Non-current JEENHR -
Bank borrowings HRITIE
- Secured and guaranteed — B RER 4,502,508 2,064,527
Other borrowings g
— Secured — B 2,234,066 516,440
— Unsecured — A - 10,000
6,736,574 2,590,967
Current BOER :
Bank borrowings RITHER
— Secured and guaranteed —BHEARER 393,747 2,860,765
Other borrowings EAfER
— Secured — B 1,157,698 1,731,800
— Unsecured — 196,000 471,060
Senior notes EBEERE 1,010,568 987,015
2,758,013 6,050,640
Total borrowings [P 9,494,587 8,641,607

On 15 November 2021, the Group issued another short-term
notes with principal amount of USD158,000,000 at par value, at an
interest rate of 13.5% per annum and with maturity in 2022 (“2022
Senior Notes”).

On 25 November 2020, the Group issued short-term senior
notes with principal amount of USD150,000,000 (“2021 Senior
Notes”) at par value, at an interest rate of 13.5% per annum and
with maturity in 2021. During year ended 31 December 2021,
the 2021 Senior Notes in principal amount of USD126,700,000
was cancelled by the Company pursuant to an exchange offer
conducted in November 2021, and the balance of USD23,300,000
was fully redeemed by the Company at maturity date.

As at 31 December 2021, bank and other borrowings of
RMB8,288,019,000 (2020: RMB7,173,532,000) were secured by
certain pledged time deposit, receivables, equity interests of group
companies, properties under development, completed properties
held for sales and investment properties with total carrying values
of RMB18,082,384,000 (2020: RMB14,879,716,000).
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R2021F11 B15H » REBEITAEEE
#%158,000,000 % JT &) 5 — 52 Bi (B St R &
([2022F BEEE]) - FFER13.5%  Z
HiH A20224F -

M2020F 11 A25H + AEBHEHTUREE
{BEEt A€ A150,000,000F TR ELE
B([2021FBEEE]) - FHEE13.5%I1
HR2021FEIH - EHZE2021F12A31HILF
€ - AQEIRIE2021F 11 AETTHRBREY
BUH R4 5126,700,0003 7T 892021 £18 58
E¥E 0 ANARAEIHR B B E [2123,300,000
ETLMEER -

R2021F12 8318 » AEEMRTREE
fth £5 2% A R % 8,288,019,000 7T (2020 4F
AR #7,173,582,0007T) AR EAE A A
R #18,082,384,000 7t (2020 F : A R ¥
14,879,716,0007T ) K& T & 1 & HAF 3K -
FEUEE « SEARMWBRAER  FETY
¥ BERENDRIYE MR EYERE
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RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

23. Borrowings (Continued) 23. fEFK(#8)

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank and other borrowings
amounted to RMB17,308,747,000 required guaranteed by
subsidiaries of the Group (2020: RMB7,161,957,000).

Certain group companies in the PRC have entered into fund
arrangements with trust companies and assets management
companies, respectively, pursuant to which these financial
institutions raised funds and injected them to the group
companies. Certain equity interests of the group companies were
held by the financial institutions as collateral of which the Group
is obligated to redeem at predetermined prices. The funds bear
fixed interest rates and have fixed repayment terms. Thus, the
Group did not derecognise its equity interests in the subject group
companies but treated the fund arrangements as other borrowings
in the consolidated financial statements.

(@ The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates or maturity date
whichever is earlier are as follows:

R2021F 12 A31H - SEME AR EXRX
EROETHRTEBERREMERAEAR
¥ 17,308,747,000 7t (2020 F : A R ¥&
7,161,957,0007T) °

ETHEEERRC O REERARNREE
BENRRIVESTH Bt - ZF SR
BEEESINEERRLIE - EERFH
ETRERSREERSE  ARERAEER
BEERBLONEMRR - ZFERIEEE
RS - RRE EHRER - Eit -
AR B AR ERE TR E QRS
% MENGERBHERRAGES LGRS
HAb &K -

@ AEEEFENEZHNERLEHNE
MEBBHIINBMB(ABREERE)W
T

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Variable rate borrowings FBER 3,160,168 3,993,680
Other borrowings — repricing date: HEmEE-EHEEEH
6 months or less 6fEA A AT - 320,000
6 — 12 months 6-12{8H 1,710,933 3,317,374
1 -2 years 1-2% 2,160,317 496,940
2 -5 years 2 -5 2,463,169 513,613
Total =t 9,494,587 8,641,607
F352021

BEPEGEREERAR
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RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

23. Borrowings (Continued) 23.fBFK(#8)
(b) The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 (o) F20214F 202012 A31 B W iniEF
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: HEBEMELT -
As at 31 December
M12831H
2021 2020
Bank borrowings RITEE 6.36% 6.70%
Other borrowings HibfgE 11.94% 11.93%
Weighted average effective interest rates  JiE 19 BB F| &= 9.02% 7.67%
()  The repayment terms of the borrowings are as follows: ) fEREVEFREAT -
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Within 1 year 1R 2,758,013 6,050,640
1 -2 years 1-2%F 2,165,317 1,691,791
2 -5 years 2 — 5% 4,571,257 899,176
Total Bt 9,494,587 8,641,607
(d) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in o) fEBFXAEmER NBEEGHE -

the following currencies.

As at 31 December

MA12A31H

2021 2020
RMB AR 8,42,272 7,654,592
HKD BT 63,747 -
USsb =TT 1,010,568 987,015
Total 4=t 9,494,587 8,641,607

() The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their (€) TFA20214F &2020F 124318 -+ fEER
fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 as either the EEERIEAAEBE  TIHREER
impact of discounting of borrowings with fixed interest rates REERBLIRFETK » SERLUEH
was not significant, or the borrowings bear interest at floating FZEEt 2 o
rates.
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RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

24. Trade Payables, Bills Payables and Other 24 BZENFIE ENEERE

Payables ftt B TR I8
As at 31 December
M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Trade payables (Note (a)) B 5 B E (K3 (a)) 4,437,831 4,665,565
Bills payables (Note (b)) LN EEAGIET V) 22,990 65,659
Other payables: HthfE{RRIE -
Other taxes payable HAvfERIIA 195,017 279,221
Payroll payable ERTEE 82,014 102,518
Amounts due to third parties ERE=53E 139,812 139,812
Deposits received from potential property BEEEREE W NES
purchasers 49,760 472,970
Deposits from contractors and suppliers AER R EEEES 144,305 81,116
Interests payable FERF B - 11,848
Others Hib 5,253 17,561
Total trade payables, bills payables ESENRE ENEER
and other payables Hib B FE 5,076,982 5,836,270

(@ The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice @ TERHEIIRBEZAHNEOEREDH
dates or contractual terms is as follows: B 5 R RIERNBRER DT -

As at 31 December

A12831H

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFIT
0-30 days 0-30H 3,849,597 4,279,766
31-60 days 31-60H 251,814 120,017
61-90 days 61-90H 294,878 22,810
Over 91 days 91HA £ 41,542 242,972
4,437,831 4,665,565

F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR R M R (M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

24.Trade Payables, Bills Payables and Other 24 ZEZFEMZIE BN EERE

Payables (Continued) ftt FEAS FRIE (48)
(b) The ageing analysis of the bills payables based on invoice (b) TRIIIREZAHNADEZRE D
dates or contractual terms is as follows: BT EENERER DT
As at 31 December
#W12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
0-30 days 0-30H 10,089 18,124
31-60 days 31-60H 8,531 16,176
61-90 days 61-90H 1,743 9,849
Over 91 days 91BAE 2,627 21,510
22,990 65,659
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

25. & & (FA) PhisR <

(@) FREHANGREZE (FrA),~

25. Cash (Used in)/Generated from Operations
(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to

cash (used in)/generated from operations

PSR & 2 BV AR

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Profit before income tax R PR T A& A1 1,503,803 1,023,623
Adjustments for: AT SIBEEL A
- Depreciation of property, plant and —E - BELRRETE
equipment (Note 13) (FFE13) 37,831 19,669
- Finance costs (Note 9) — AR A (F3E9) 281,605 121,702
- Finance income (Note 9) = ONC ) (43,575) (38,735)
— Share of results of joint ventures and —E(hE e EEBE AR
associates (Note 16) 45 (Fsx16) (393,009) (403,436)
— Fair value gains on deemed disposal —BIEENEERESERN
of Nanjing Jinjun (Note 8) A EEWE(FEES) (4,548) -
— Gain on disposal of financial assets at —REZRAREEFNER
fair value through profit or loss HEHTABREN
(Note 8) S EE ER U (FT5E8) (44,010) -
— Fair value gains on investment —EHEMED M EERE
properties (Note 15) (FFE15) (2,120) (10,100)
— (Gains)/Losses on disposals of property, — HEWZE - HE RKFEHD
plant and equipment (Note 8) (W) 18k (HizEs) (801) 193
— Dividend income from financial assets —RAanEEGFEEEZEH
at fair value through profit or loss ANEZHERMEEMRE
(Note 8) U zs (FisEs) (4,100) -
— Interest income from amounts due from  — R EBE AT - A &%
associates, joint ventures and other MEME = MRS
third parties (Note 8) HIF S (FTEES) (10,187) (8,547)
Operating profit before changes in LIEE B E R SR
working capital 1,320,889 704,369
Changes in working capital: LEEHE
- Properties under development and —FAEPMERBFELED
completed properties held for sale BT (5,996,584) (15,106,374)
- Contract liabilities —ARaE 5,932,721 12,568,637
— Trade and other receivables and — B 5 RhEMEKRIER
prepayments SENEOE (506,948) 172,675
— Trade payables, bill payables and —EHRNFIE  BRNEEK
other payables H A fES 58 (1,022,488) 3,193,433
— Changes in pledged time deposits —BERETHERED) (33,930) 8,193
— Changes in restricted cash —XRHIREE (2,396,782) (796,746)
— Amounts due from associates, joint —EE AR - BEBEM
ventures and non-controlling interests IR A ERT SR (21,036) 16,418
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (Fi ),/ FiSIR & (2,682,086) 755,606
F352021
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e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

25. Cash (Used in)/Generated from Operations 5.4 (FrF) FrBIRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of proceeds from disposals of (b) HEWE - BERRERERK
property, plant and equipment IHWEER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BILEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Net book amount (Note 13) IR FE(HFE13) 5,090 417
Gains/(losses) on disposals of property, HEME - BEMEREDN
plant and equipment Uz, (18%) 801 (193)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEDE - BELERE
plant and equipment Frig 08 5,891 224
(c) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (©) HQEEEJJ?EE’J SENREEN
from financing activities AR
Amounts Amounts
Amounts dueto Amounts due to non- Amounts
Lease due to Controlling due to joint controlling due to
liabilities associates  Shareholders ventures interest third parties Borrowings Total
EfiBE EfER EfAE EfFER FEfF
fEsk NARE KRR t¥5E BRI FZRRE [ it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR AR%TR

Asat 1 January 2020 H00F1A1R 1,970 1497735 23539 869,944 4,682,599 130812 2,853,299 10078898
Non-cash movement e 30,794 (63,034) - 1,281 196,745 - - 165,786
Cashinflows BERA - 104,85 - 1,257,156 6,967,702 - 9,511,850 17,841,563
Cash outflows B (12,564) (379940) (23539) (1,214,190) (8,085,120) - (3723542)  (13,438,8%)
As at 31 December 2020 and H00E12A318 R

1 January 2021 AN21F1A1R 30200 1159616 - 914,191 3,761,926 130812 8,641,607 14,647,352
Non-cash movement IHReEY 85,906 (174,980) - (230,268) (1,048,006) - (550,000) (2,817,348)
Cash inflows BERA - 53,881 - 148,230 1,039,675 - 7,680,895 8,022,681
Cash outfows Reiit (19,289) (332,690) - (27,665) (995,000) - (6,277,915) (7,652,568)
As at 31 December 2021 R0 E12A31H 96,817 705,827 - 804,488 1,858,586 139,812 9,494,567 13,100,117
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RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (45 RIFERRSN -

26. Amounts Due from/(to) Non-Controlling

Interests

TREVSARKE)

26. FEUR () FE 1 IR TR IA

As at 31 December

M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETTT
Amounts due from non-controlling interests FEUSFETE B i 5B (T 5 (a))
(Note (a)) 3,960,807 2,578,961
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE{ IR B A 25 5k TE (PR (D))
(Note (b)) (1,858,586) (3,761,926)
Notes: FfsE -
(@ Amounts due from non-controlling interests mainly represented @@ EUSHZEREmZIBEEERRNETHER

cash advances to the non-controlling interest of certain
subsidiaries. They are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

(b)  Amounts due to non-controlling interests mainly represented
cash advances provided by the non-controlling interests of
certain subsidiaries. All of the amounts due to non-controlling
interests are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2020, amounts due to non-controlling
interests were interest-free, except for amounts of
RMB2,047,248,000 which bears interest ranging from 8.0%-
12.0% per annum. Within these interest-bearing balances,
interest in respect of balance amounted to RMB1,371,832,000
were waived during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BMEIERE SR NRE - ZEFER
B RS RIREREE -

e R R R T EiRE THE AR
HSEIERE S PTIR L RIR S BN - FRB TR
IR R TR R EE - R EWA

ERMEE -

202012 B31H @ [EN IEIERREZS X
BARE HEEMENF8.0%E12.0%
% % B A R 2,047,248,000 7T H) 7% 18
BRoh o REZERT BT - H 22020
FI2AALFERRCEAARE
1,371,832,000 T H) 4564 2 I B ©

F #2021
BRETEMEREERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

)

PR R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Bx4F55E8RSN -

27.

28.

Transaction with Non-controlling Interests
During the year, the Group acquired additional equity interests of
certain subsidiaries from the respective non-controlling interests
for a total cash consideration of RMB148,492,000.

The following table summarises the effect of these acquisitions:

TREU/ARKE)

27 . FEIERER R F

0 AR E SRR E T
B2 TR - RASREBARS
148,492,0007T °

TREMZ SRS

As at 31 December

#W12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Total carrying amounts of non-controlling interest JE¥ZE A E S Y AL BRI (B 122,072 -
Less: total consideration paid to non-controling 38 : Sz F3EIE AR RER A
interests BB (148,492) -
Total difference recognised within equity RIERANEREEEE 26,420 -

Business Combination

Acquisition of Shanghai Gangxuan Property Co.,
Ltd (“Shanghai Gangxuan”)

Prior to 27 August 2021, the Group has accounted for Shanghai
Gangxuan as a joint venture, pursuant to the co-operative
development agreement signed on 1 June 2020. On 27 August
2021, to facilitate the project management and speed up the
progress of the property development project, Jiangsu Ganglong
Huayang Real Estate Co., Limited (“Ganglong Huayang”), the
Group’s subsidiary and shareholder of Shanghai Gangxuan,
entered into a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) with the other shareholders of Shanghai Gangxuan,
pursuant to which the Group was able to appoint 2 additional
directors to the board of directors of Shanghai Gangxuan, thereby
establishing control over the board of directors. As a result, the
Group has accounted for Shanghai Gangxuan as a subsidiary from
27 August 2021 onwards.
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RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

28. EB A0 (&)
Wis EBRHERRRAR (N L
B E 1) (&)
EESENEEAEARRTNE(EZEE
ELEARE) Bl EEXSEERE
T INCE

28. Business Combination (Continued)
Acquisition of Shanghai Gangxuan Property Co.,
Ltd (“Shanghai Gangxuan”) (Continued)

The principal assets of Shanghai Gangxuan are properties under
development (mainly consist of land use rights) and accordingly,
the transaction has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets.

The fair value of assets and liabilities of Shanghai Gangxuan on WEEHE EBEEMEEREENARE
acquisition date were valued by an independent professionally B BB EESRGEMEERITRER
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield, through application of TS ESRETHE TR ERETIR
market comparison method and the key assumptions of the SETEA FHEITHH R R(EE -

valuation is the development value for comparison in completion

basis.

WERH LM EERBBENTERS

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Shanghai Gangxuan as

at the date of acquisition were as follows: PN
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Fair value of 35% equity interests of Shanghai Ui BE B B 8 BE35% RN AR EBE
Gangxuan as at acquisition date 26,948
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and & UsBE Al S5 & & R D AE A &R
liabilities assumed: EHERTE
Property under development EEEGEEES 920,065
Prepayments and other receivables TERTRRIA J HoAth fE Us FRIE 193,359
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&EED 37,481
Trade and other payables B R EMEN A (146,209)
Contract liabilities AHEF (477,701)
Borrowings B (450,000)
Net identifiable assets acquired ERE BRI EEFE 76,995
Less: net assets attributable to non-controlling interests & : JEIEAR RS FE(G B B T A (50,047)
Net assets attributable to the Group AEEELEEFE 26,948
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition: WEEEAME SR AFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BUWEIRS MRS EEY 37,481

F 352021
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RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

29. Deemed Disposal of A Subsidiary — Nanjing 29. {EHE—RMB AT —BR

Jinjun Real Estate Development Co.,
Limited (“Nanjing Jinjun”)

Prior to 10 June 2021, the Group has accounted for Nanjing
Jinjun as a subsidiary, pursuant to the original co-operative
development agreement signed on 20 May 2020. On 10 June
2021, to better facilitate the financing of the project, Jiangsu
Ganglong Realty Co., Limited (“Jiangsu Ganglong”), the Group’s
subsidiary and shareholder of Nanjing Jinjun, entered into a
supplement agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with the other
shareholders of Nanjing Jinjun, pursuant to which the resolution
passing mechanism in the shareholders’ meeting and board
of directors meeting of Nanjing Jinjun was amended to require
unanimous consent from all shareholders and directors to pass
any resolution in shareholders’” meeting and board of directors’
meeting. As a result, the Group has accounted for Nanjing Jinjun as
a joint venture from 10 June 2021 onwards.

The fair value of assets and liabilities of Nanjing Jinjun were valued
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, Cushman &
Wakefield, through application of market comparison method
and the key assumptions of the valuation is the development
value for comparison in completion basis. A fair value gains on
deemed disposal of Nanjing Jinjun amounting to RMB4,548,000
was recognised as “Other income and other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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29. Deemed Disposal of A Subsidiary - Nanjing 29. {EHE—RMB AT —BER

Jinjun Real Estate Development Co., SREMERZREELAT(E
Limited (“Nanjing Jinjun”) (Continued) mnef’l) (&)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Nanjing Jinjun as at HREeERNRIEHEREMEERABENT
the date of deemed disposal were as follows: TR
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB LR 10
Property under development ki daskYES 987,506
Prepayments and other receivables TR I8 R E b U IR 121,899
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY 81,669
Trade and other payables B 5 RHMPERFRIE (11,741)
Contract liabilities GREE (149,996)
Borrowings E (1,000,000)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 29,347
Less: net assets attributable to non-controlling interests 7 : FEIERR S E(L B B R A (22,010)
Net assets attributable to the Group AEEELEETFE 7,337
RMB’000
AREETFTT
Net gain on deemed disposal: RIEHEREETE
Fair value of the 25% equity interests retained EREEEREMAERESEMRERN
in Nanjing Jinjun as investment in joint venture 25% A= N BB 11,885
Less: net assets attributable to the Group disposed of & : AEBELE D HEEEFE (7,337)
Fair value gains on deemed disposal of BREHERRSENAREERKS
Nanjing Jinjun (Note 8) (MIzE8) 4,548
Net cash outflow arising from deemed disposal: RIEREREAMIRES R F5
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEREG MRS EEY 81,669
F352021
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RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E885)

30. Financial Guarantee

TREU/ARKE)

30. IR

As at 31 December

#M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for BETHEEENZBERE

certain purchasers (note (a)) YEH B R (FiiE(a) 11,470,684 7,913,296

Guarantee provided for the borrowings of joint A S EETURHAER
ventures (note (b) and Note 33(d)) (B3 (o) 2 M45E33(d)) 288,926 615,000
11,759,610 8,528,296

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of the Group’s property units and provided guarantees to
secure obligation of such purchasers for repayments. Such
guarantees terminate upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which will generally be available within an
average period of two to three years upon the completion of
guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan
by purchasers of properties. The directors consider that the
likelihood of default in payments by purchasers is minimal as
the Group is entitled to retain the ownership of the properties,
the valuation of which is significantly higher than the guaranteed
amounts. Therefore, the financial guarantees measured at fair
value is immaterial and no liabilities was recognised.

Amounts represented the maximum exposure of the guarantees
provided for the borrowings of the joint ventures and associates
at the year-end date. The directors consider that the likelihood
of default in payments by the joint ventures and associates is
minimal and therefore the financial guarantee measured at fair
value is immaterial and no liabilities was recognised.
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31. Financial instruments by category 31. ZEAEsNE/MITE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETFTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: R E A BRI S RS EE ¢
— Trade and other receivables - B9 REAERGRIE 1,057,449 665,770
— Amounts due from associates - FEUNES &R A TAIE 129,850 175,789
— Amounts due from joint ventures - JEIRA S EDR 253,761 426,390
— Amount due from non-controlling interests — FEUR IS Hﬂr@éﬁ,ﬂﬁ 3,960,807 2,578,961
— Restricted cash - ZBRHRE 4,608,272 2,211,490
- Pledged time deposits - BT BER 71,657 37,727
— Cash and cash equivalents -RERHEEEY 2,304,919 4,547,628
Total st 12,386,715 10,643,755
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFIT
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEKATIERENEREE:
— Trade payables, bills payables -BSRNHIE  BNEER
and other payables Hh e IE 4,799,951 5,454,531
— Lease liabilities -HEaE 96,817 30,200
- Amounts due to associates - FEfEE & A RIFIA 705,827 1,159,616
— Amounts due to joint ventures - ENE %’?fﬁ%m 804,488 914,191
— Amount due to non-controlling interests - IR R IE 1,858,586 3,761,926
- Borrowings - BxR 9,494,587 8,641,607
Total Bt 17,760,256 19,962,071

F 352021
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e TSR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

32. Commitments 32. EKGE

(@ Commitments for property development
expenditures

(@)

eSS

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for BRI AMEREE 8,101,524 15,725,006

The amount represented capital commitment for construction
contracts and agreed proposed development contracts
determined based on current estimated budgets.

(b) Operating leases rental receivables — a group
company as lessor
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

ZEBEREE G EEETER
BH N IE R A B ARG

REHERKES -KEAF
RHHBA

R AT A T B 0 R SRR
BERKWT

As at 31 December

A12831H

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBFT

Within one year —FR 6,591 5,027
Later than one year but no Bl —FE T ERRE

later than five years 16,716 12,749

23,307 17,776
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33. Related Party Transactions

3. RS
RABRBIER AR AEEERE AR

(a) The ultimate holding company of the Company are Huaxing (a)
Development Co., Ltd, Hualian Development Co., Ltd and
Hualong Development Co., Ltd and the ultimate controlling
shareholders of the Company are Mr. Lui Ming, Mr. Lui Wing
Nam, Mr. Lui Chi Chung Jimmy, Mr. Lui Jin Ling and Mr. Lui

Wing Mau.

(b) Transaction with related parties

A -

EMBERERATINERERE

[RAF] o RRBMREZIZEBRBERS DS

Vi

AKELE  AFREL  RE

SRERBKETE

(b) EREAEEF VRS

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBETT

Lease payments to Mr. Xie Jian Qing
in respect of the leased
office premises (Note)
Interest expense to a joint venture
Interest expense to associates
Interest income from associates
Income for rendering of management and
consulting services to joint ventures
Income for rendering of management and
consulting services to associates

SEARNEYER
AR EF L NES (HEE)

BEMENNSHAX

FETRE N R B R

KEBE R BN EMA

AR EMREHEER
R AR E A

Al N AR B e
RIS A

(664) (1,034)
(20,762) (12,539)
(19,377) (4,690)

948 3,680

10,721 2,075
9,367 889

Note: Mr. Xie Jian Qing is a senior managements of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

BiE -

HZE2021F12 A1 B ILEE -
HELERAEENSREREA
8 (20204 : H[) -
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BRETEMEREERAR

269



270

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 33.E8E R 7 (4
(c) Balances with associates and joint ventures

==
=)
=)

==

As at 31 December

() EREENTREELENEER

A12831H
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 Nature
AR®TF T AREEFIT (=
Amounts due from joint ventures  JEIRA &> 2 FIH Non-trade
(Note () (P &EG) 253,761 426,390 B 5
Amounts due to joint ventures BN A EhERIE Non-trade
(Note (ii)) (B =EG) (804,488) (914,191) FES
Amounts due from associates iR/ NETE /O] Non-trade
(Note (i) (B &%) 129,850 175,789 FEH
Amounts due to associates R EAYNCIE O Non-trade
(Note () (B EEGv)) (705,827) (1,159,616) B 5
Notes: MzE -

()  Amounts due from joint ventures represents the cash
advances for project development. The balances bear
interest at rates ranging from 6.0% to 8.0% per annum,
and are unsecured and repayable on demand.

(i)  Amounts due to joint ventures represents the cash
advances for project development. The balances were
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

@iy  Amounts due from associates represents the cash
advances for project development. The balances bear
interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to 12.0% per annum,
and are unsecured and repayable on demand.

(iv)  Amounts due to associates represents the cash advances
for project development. The balances were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 3B.FEH A RS ()
(d) Guarantee provided by the Group for related (d) XEEABEBESRRENER
parties

As at 31 December

M12A318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT AREET T

Carrying values of the borrowings of joint EREZEDLEEZRNERE

ventures guaranteed (Note 30(b)) (B3E30(b)) 288,926 615,000
(e) Key management compensation ) FEEEAEHMH
Key management compensation are set out below: FEFEABHMEINNAT :

Year ended 31 December

HZ12B31HILEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFTT

Key management compensation FTEEE A BF
— Salaries and other employee benefits — & REMIEE R 10,050 7,628
- Pension costs —RIRE AR 645 556
10,695 8,184
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #ZE2021512 A31H ILFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFTERSN - ©£FEBLL A ARK)

34.Statement of Financial Position and 34. KA TBIERRARE ZiEE
Reserve Movement of the Company
(@) Statement of financial position of the

(@) AEEIFIRILER

Company
As at 31 December
A128318
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment in subsidiaries WEBARIEE 1,753,548 1,753,548
1,753,548 1,753,548
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FEfF 0B 7,115 15,736
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A RF A 1,054,766 1,220,213
Cash and cash equivalents Re RHEEEEY 9,177 118,860
1,071,058 1,354,809
Total assets BEHAEE 2,824,606 3,108,357
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves EERkF#E
Share capital &7 14,900 14,919
Reserves i 1,556,558 2,067,037
Total equity BEEAEE 1,571,458 2,081,956
LIABILITIES =
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAb B FRIA 18,733 14,108
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERB B AT RIA 160,100 25,278
Borrowings N 1,074,315 987,015
Total liabilities =REt b 1,253,148 1,026,401
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAR 2,824,606 3,108,357

Mr. Lui Ming

Mr. Lui Jin Ling

BHEE BERELE
Director Director
EFE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)
34.Statement of Financial Position and 34. &AQ TR RAER EEEE
Reserve Movement of the Company (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AT EEE
Share Other  Accumulated
premium reserves loss Total
RADEE Hitvfi e 2T EE “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL AREFIL AREFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H - 656,864 (21,153) 635,711
Loss for the year FREE - - (43,490) (43,490)
Transaction with owners: HEEANRS
Shares issued pursuant to the BIEE R BITRITRG
capitalisation issue (10,979 - - (10,979)
Shares issued under the global BEEHREEETRG
offering 1,544,394 - - 1,544,394
Share issuance costs BRAABITRA (68,599) - - (68,599)
Total transactions with owners ~ S2A A (LUHEAEEEA
in their capacity as owners WEMNRZEHE 1,474,816 - - 1,474,816
At 31 December 2020 and 20205128318 %
1 January 2021 2021F1A1AH 1,474,816 656,864 (64,643) 2,067,037
Loss for the year FRER - - (216,987) (216,987)
Transaction with owners: HEBANRS
Cancellation of shares FHIRAR D (6,997) 7,016 - 19
Buy back of shares BRRMR - - - -
Dividend for the year ended HE2020512A31H
31 December 2020 HEEEHRE - - (293,511) (293,511)
Total transactions with owners ~ SZEA A (LLHEAREEA
in their capacity as owners ELEEE L (6,997) 7,016 (293,511) (293,492)
As at 31 December 2021 N2021F12A318 1,467,819 663,880 (575,141) 1,556,558
F352021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IEFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br45RI5FRESN © £ 5B A ARE)

35. Particulars of Subsidiaries 35. fifEB A REF1E
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 REBEM2021F K2020F 12 A3THNEE
December 2021 and 2020 are set out as below. B ATMEERIT -
Date of
incorporation/ Place of
establishment Type of operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up Proportion of
Name of company* HRL/ legal status establishment  activities Issued capital capital ownership interest
G RIAH HEMAEE  EE/AINE  1EE iHh/ERARE B&Es it L 3]
2021 2020
Directly owned:
EREA:
AEEERERAA 9 October 2018 Limited fabiity ~~ Bitish Virgin Investment holdings US$30,000 US$100 100% 100%
Ganglong Huayang Development Limited company Islands
2018510A9R BRAT ZBRANE  REER 50,000%7C 100£7
Indirectly owned:
HREE
ARAREEARAA 190ctober 2018~ Limited labilty ~ Hong Kong Investment holdings HKS 100 HK$100 100% 100%
Ganglong Development Group Limited company
0185107198 ARAA i RERR 10087 10087
THEREERERAT 13 August 2007 Limited fabiity ~ PRO Property development US842,857,000 RVIB152,643,265 100% 100%
Jiangsu Ganglong Reatty Group Co., Ltd. company
2007587138 BRAA hE I LBTO0ET  ARH152643,2657
THEELREEERAA OFebuay2010  Limiedlabiity ~ PRC Property development /386,800,000 385,000,000 100% 100%
Jlengsu Ganglong Mingyang Real Estate company
Co, Ltd.
201052198 BRLT i UELES 6,800 00050 5,000 00050
EAEEREZERAT 20November 2012 Limtedfablty ~ PRC Property development S853,061,000 3822,585,500 100% 100%
Jiangsu Ganglong Huayang Real Estate company
Co., Lid.
N1F11508  BRAF G UESTE 53,061, 000£7 5BH0ET
ERERERRARLT 17 August 2010 Limited fabiity ~ PRO Property development RVB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 100% 100%
Yancheng Ganglong Real Estate company
Development Co,, Ltd.
010687178 BRAF e IS ARE200000000  ARE200,000,0007
IEREEERRAT 9 August 2013 Limted ity PRC Property development RMB100,000,000 RVB100,000,000 100% 100%
Jiangsu Ganghua Property Co,, Lid. company
2013E8/9R BRLT e UELES ARH1000000007C  AE%100,000,0007C
EREEELERAA 4 January 2016 Limtedliabilty ~ PRC Property development RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000 100% 100%
Changshu Ganghua Property Co,, Ltd. company
201651748 BRAR e nER% ARE1000000007  AR100,000,0007
BEEMAEEZARLA 16 May 2016 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB75,000,000 RMB75,000,000 100% 100%
Lianyungang Ganghua Property Co,, Lid. company
2016554168 BRAT s ESES ARET50000  ARET50000007
ARERELERAA(MY) 24 June 2019 Limited fabiity ~ PRC Property development RVIB100,000,000 RNB100,000,000 0% 70%
Shaoxing Gangxing Property Co., Lid. company
(Note (0)
201956A24R ARAT i ESES ARE1000000007  AR100,000,0007C
274 Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (BR4ERIFEERSN - £FEEL A ARK)

35. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 35. B AREEIE(E)
Date of
incorporation/ Place of
establishment Type of operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up Proportion of
Name of company* BT/ legal status establishment ~ activities Issued capital capital ownership interest
kLY AIAH RN 85/HunYy  IEEE #/BRAKA BiER fragERLA
2021 2020
NREREEERAT i) 28.June 2019 Limted labllty ~ PRC Property development RMB51,000,000 RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Rudong Gangrui Property Co., Ltd. company
(Note o))
2019%6728R BRAT e VI ARE51000000T  AR%50000,0007
HRELEHERLARLA(EE)  4Decomber209  Limitedliblty  PRC Property development RMB100,000,000 RVB100,000,000 50% 50%
Nanjng Ganghong Real Estate company
Development Co., Lid. (Note (a)
2019%12A4R BRAT e VI ARH1000000007  AEH100,000,0007C
BMEEEEERAA M) 6 August 2019 Limtedliabliy ~ PRC Property development RVB350,000,000 RMB330,000,000 40% 40%
Changzhou Gangja Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
(Note (a)
2019%876H BRAT e VIS ARH3500000007T  AEH350000,0007C
BNEEEHERRERARME)  4September2019  Limiediablty  PRC Property development RMB100,000,000 RVB100,000,000 3% 3%
Suzhou Ruixing Real Estate Development company
Co., Ltd. (Note (a)
20199748 BRAT e VIS ARH1000000007  AEH100,000,0007C
DEERZZARAT(Ma) (E0)  19Seplember 2019 Limited el PRC Property development RVB20,000,000 RMB20,000,000 50% 50%
Shaoxing Gangtong Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
(Note (g) (Note (b)
2019%97 19A BRAT i Vi ARE0000000T  AR%20000,0007T
BATAZZERL (M) 26 September 2019 Limted labilty ~~ PRC Praperty development RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 28% 2%
Nantong Xinhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
(Note (a)
2019%97 267 BRLE e I AREE0000000T  AR%50,000,0007
FMEHEERERAA 9Decomber 2019 Limtediablty ~ PRC Praperty development RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 60% 60%
Taizhou Gangxinzheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
2019%F12A9A BRLE e S ARH2000000007T  AE200,000,0007C
RAGEELERAT 5November 2019 Limited liabitty PRC Property development USD15,000,000 Ni 51% 51%
Dongtal Jinteng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company
2019511 A5R BRLE 2 EES 15,000,000%7C £
ERMEEERARAA 7 August 2020 Limtediabilty ~ PRC Property development USDE6,730,000 RMB248,710,920 100% 100%
Hual'an Ganghua Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
200%58ATH BRLE e VIS 667300005 ARH2487109207C
ELEEERERAA 4 August 2020 Limtediabilty ~ PRC Property development RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 0% 50%
Huangshan Ganglong Real Estate Co., Lid. company
20005848 BRLE hE UEGE ARH50000000  AR50,0000007
SHAREXERAN (M) 13Mugust2020  Limiedliabily ~ PRO Property development RMB149,253,731 RVB149,253,731 57% 57%
Fuyang Ganglong Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
(Note (o)
2020%8A 18R BRAE ol nERE ARE14923 731 ARH149,283 731

F 352021
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RE R R MY ()
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35. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

TREU/ARKE)

35. i A R =15 (&)

Date of

incorporation/ Place of

establishment Type of operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up Proportion of
Name of company* BT/ legal status establishment ~ activities Issued capital capital ownership interest
TR AR EMGEE  EE/HUNE  IEER #/BRAKA BiEs FraRRRNA

2021 2020

EEEREPFEBTNERLE 19 May 2020 Limted labilty ~ PRC Praperty development R\B20,000,000 Ni 100% 100%
Wuhu County Gangsheng Enterprise company
Management Consutting Co, Lid.

20F57198 BRAA i ER% AE20,0000007 z
EMEEERERAA 19.June 2020 Limted lablty ~ PRC Property development RB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 60% 60%
Wuhu Gangchun Real Estate Co., Ltd. company

2020F67198 BRAF hE nER% ARB60000000  AR60,000,0007
A% EHEREARLR 130ctober 2020 Limitedlabilty ~ PRC Praperty development RMB300,000,000 RMB300,000,000 55% 5%
Chengdu Mingyang Meichuan Real Estate company
Development Co., Lid.

ANEI0EBE BRAT i VELEY ARE3000000007  AR300,000,0007
BRANERERAT INovember 2020 Limitediabliy ~ PRC Property development RVIB191,666,700 RVB191,666,700 60% 60%
Nanjng Gangi Real Estate Co, Ltd. company

000511 A2R BRAT i VELE AEH191666,7007T  AKH191,666,7007
EEEEEELERN 19.June 2020 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development R\B70,000,000 RMB70,000,000 65% 65%
Wuhu County Gangda Real Estate company
Co., Ltd.

2020F67198 BRAF hE nER% ARE0000000T  ARE70,000,0007
ZEMAREZERAA 4September 2020 Limited labllty ~~ PRC Praperty development R\B10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 60% 60%
Yiwu Ganghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company

202059848 BRAF e nER% ARE10000000T  ARE10,000,0007
B EEENERLERAA 8September 2020 Limitedlabilty ~ PRC Praperty development RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 51% 51%
Yancheng Gangda Real Estate company
Development Co., Lid.

202059788 BRAF hE nER% ARB200000000T  ARR%200,000,0007
BIMEERRERLERAT 7 July 2020 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Huizhou Puyu Real Estate Development company
Co., Ltd.

2057478 BRAR e nER% ARB0000000T  AR50,000,0007
EMERESERAR (Mik) 140ctober 2020 Limitedlabilty ~ PRC Property development ~~ RMB2,000,000000  RMB2,000,000,000 60% 60%
Guangzhou Gangke Real Estate company
Co., Ltd. (Note (o))

NNE0ANUE  ARAT e nER% AR¥2,000,0000007T  AR2,000,000,0007
THEEERERLA 2 November 2020 Limitediabliy RO Property development RVB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 60% 60%
Anhui Gangfeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. company

NOEMANVE  ARAH e nER% ARB200000000  ARE200,000,0007
HRANEZERAA ) 18November 2020 Limtedlabilty ~ PRC Property development RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 3% 3%
Nantong Jiuhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
(Note (a)

NMOEMABE ARAH e nER% ARB50000000T  AR50,000,0007
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35. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 35. B~ RIFFE (1)
Date of
incorporation/ Place of
establishment Type of operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up Proportion of
Name of company* BT/ legal status establishment ~ activities Issued capital capital ownership interest
G2 AIAH EEMUEE  EE/AUNE  IEER #/BRAKA BiER fragERLA
2021 2020
EEREEZARLA (M) 13Janvay 2020 Limfedfiablity ~ PRC Property development RMB200,000,000 RMB141,070,000 100% 100%
Yixing Gangheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company
(Note (o))
2020F17138 BRAF e nER% ARB200000000T  ARE141,070,0007
AR REEERAT 10 Apr 2018 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB112,562.200 RMB112,562,165 100% 100%
Jiangsu Ganglong Zhongyang Property company
Co., Ltd.
2018F43108 BRAR e nER% ARB125600T  ARE112,562,1657
BMEEERERAA 21 May 2018 Limited lablty ~ PRC Property development RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000 100% 100%
Guizhou Ganghua Property Co,, Ltd. company
018F57218 BRAA e nER% ARE100000000T  ARR%100,000,0007
BEAEERERAA 2%6Novemoer 2013 Limted by~ PRC Property development RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 100% 90%
Luoyang Ganglong Property Co,, Ltd. company
NYENAXE  ARAH e nER% ARE10000000T  ARE10,000,0007
B DL ERLERAT 17December 2018 Limited labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB20,000,000 RVB20,000,000 100% 100%
Yancheng Xiangshui Ganglong Real Estate company
Development Co., Ltd.
NIBERATE  ARAH e nER% ARB20000000T  AR20,000,0007
BIAZERERA (i) 16Janvary 2020 Limfedfiablity ~ PRC Property development RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 2% 26%
Haimen Ganghua Real Estate Co, Lid. company
(Note (a)
2020F17168 BRAF e nER% ARB200000000T  AR%200,000,0007
FEMBMEZARAT (i) 10 Apri 2018 Limtedliablty ~ PRC Property development RMB20,000,000 RVB20,000,000 3% 3%%
Taixing Chuanghe Property Co,, Ltd. company
(Note (3)
2018F43108 BRAF e nER% ARB20000000T  AR20,000,0007
ANSTRUNESERRAA (ta)  SFebuay2018  Limtediabity  PRC Property development RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 25% %%
Huzhou Hai Wang Kang Shan Real Estate company
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)
201852758 BRAR e nER% ARE10000000T  ARE10,000,0007
ANSTRUESSEARAA (i) 2 0ctober2017  Limtedliabity  PRC Property development RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 5% 25%
Huzhou Haiwang Kangshan Property company
Development Co, Lid. (Note (3)
NITEANE  ARAH hE nER% ARB200000000  AR%200,000,0007
NFEEEERAA (i) 10 August 2018 Limted lebilty ~ PRC Property development RMBL0,000,000 RMBA0,000,000 25% %%
Hangzhou Chenrui Property Co., Ltd. company
(Note (3)
201887108 BRAR HE nER% ARB40000000T  ARE40,000,0007
HEEHEERERSERAA (i) 28May 2014 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development R\B150,000,000 RMB159,000,000 50% 50%
Shanghai Chongming Yushang Real Estate company
Development Co, Lid. (Note (a)
201457288 BRAR i nER% AR¥150000000 AR 159,000,0007

F 352021
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35. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

TREU/ARKE)

35. ffE A R =15 (&)

Date of
incorporation/ Place of
establishment Type of operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up Proportion of
Name of company* BT/ legal status establishment ~ activities Issued capital capital ownership interest
TR RIAS EMGEE  EE/HUNE  IEER #/BRAKA BiEs FraRRRNA
2021 2020
ERTARNERSARAA (A 290ctober2018  Limtedlabity  PRC Praperty development R\B20,000,000 RMB20,000,000 25% %%
Huai'an Guochuang Real Estate company
Development Co, Lid. (Note (a)
NIBEINANE  ARAH hE nER% ARB20000000T  AR20,000,0007
TREELEZERAF (i) Brebuay2019  Limiedlablty  PRC Praperty development RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000 3% 3%
Jiangsu Tongganghong Property Co., Lid. company
(Note (a)
01927258 BRAF hE nER% ARE100000000T  AR%100,000,0007
BREEERERLT 11Febuay2019  Limitedlabilty ~ PRC Property development RMB71,428,500 RMBT1 428,500 0% 70%
Nantong Ganghua Enterprise Lid company
01927118 BRAF e nER% ARETI48500m  ARET,4285007
EHTEEERAA 30 Aprl 2019 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development R\B20,000,000 RMB20,000,000 51% 51%
Changzhou Kaiyang Property Co,, Ltd. company
201947308 BRAF e nER% ARB20000000T  AR20,000,0007
NREEERERLT 2 .July 2019 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Rudong Gangda Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company
2019%7 4258 BRAF e nER% ARB0000000  AR50,000,0007
EEATERERAA 2.0y 200 Limtedliablty ~ PRC Property development RVB240,000,000 RMB240,000,000 5% %%
Li'Yang Gang Zheng Real Estate Co., Lid. company
2020F7 3248 BRAF hE nER% ARB240000000T  ARE240,000,0007
BRERERERAA SFebay202t  Limtedliablty  PRC Property development RVB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000 4% Ni
Hai An Hai Tai Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company
20215238 BRAF e nER% ARE100000000T  AR%100,000,0007 e
BR2TPHERSERAA 10 March 2021 Limtedliablty ~ PRC Property development RVB150,000,000 RMB150,000,000 40% i
Nan Tong Liang Cai Real Estate company
Development Co., Ltd.
21F37108 BRAA hE nER% ARE150000000T  ARR%150,000,0007 z
BIEZEERERLA 16 April 2021 Limted labiity ~ PRC Property development R\B540,000,000 RMB540,000,000 34% Ni
Jing Jiang Gang Hua Real Estate Co., Ltd. company
2021F47168 BRAR e nER% ARE540000000T  ARE540,000,0007 e
FNEEERERAA 17 May 2021 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB700,000,000 RMB700,000,000 3% Ni
Tai Zhou Gang Hua Real Estate Co., Lid. company
AE5A178 BRAR e nER% ARE700000000  AR%700,000,0007 e
EHEREERSERAT 25 May 2021 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMB241,000,000 RMB241,000,000 50% Ni
Chang Zhou Heng Xu Real Estate company
Development Co., Ltd.
A21F57258 BRAR e nER% ARB241,000000  ARE241,000,0007 z
ANEEERERAA 16.June 2021 Limted labilty ~ PRC Property development RMBA00,000,000 RMBX00,000,000 60% Ni
Yang Zhou Gang Hua Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company
21F67168 BRAR e nER% ARB4000000007  ARE400,000,0007 e

Annual Report 2021

Ganglong China Property Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 | #Z£2021F12 A31H IFFE
(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (Br455I5E884) -

TREVSARKE)

35. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 35. B~ RIFFE (1)
Date of
incorporation/ Place of
establishment Type of operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up Proportion of
Name of company* BT/ legal status establishment ~ activities Issued capital capital ownership interest
kLY HIAH RN 88 /Huny  IEER #/BRAKA gHEs fragERLA
2021 2020
LIMETAEIRNEREERAT 1T e 2020 Limited fiability PRC Property development RMB400,000,000 RMB400,000,000 40% Ni
Yan Cheng Shi FuNing Gang Tong Hui Real company
Estate Development Co,, Ltd.
2001564178 BRLE i UESES ARH4000000007T  A%400,000,0007C z
BUEEEZERAA 26 August 2021 Limited fabiity ~ PRO Property development RVIB300,000,000 Ni 100% i
Fo Shan Gang Long Real Estate Co,, Ltd. company
2001587268 BRLE i UES ARH800,000,0007C g z
EEMARERERAA 1September 2021 Limfedliablity ~ PRC Praperty development RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 100% i
Guang De Shi Gang Xing Real Estate Co., company
Ltd.
0219717 BRLT e UESE ARH50000000T  ARH50,0000007 z

*  The English names of PRC companies referred to above in this note O AWEENAPEARNEXEBRKRERE
represents management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names EENBZEZSAANFRXEE  AAl MK
of those companies as no English name have been registered or NAWE M AR -
available.

Notes: B

(@ The Group has controlled these companies through agreements @ AEEBBEETIEERRERR S BEEGZ
entered into with certain non-controlling shareholders pursuant to ERF  REWRE - AEBEBERAEESE
which the Group has the right to make decision on relevant activities HORTE @ BIEETRRZEAREE EER
including but not limited to budget, pricing and promotion strategies (RSHRBEMAERES) - REBRES RZE AT
of these companies. As the Group has exposure or rights to variable MAZ AT ORI RSB REMNESREZE
returns from its involvement with those companies, and has the ability ARIREB) O - WHRE N BREZHRRE
to affect those returns through its majority voting position and the MIEBEEREN IR ARFREEZEOR -
existing rights to direct the relevant activities, these companies are thus WZERN R AEANEBNB AR -
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.

() The percentage of attributable equity interests presented is the () FE2IELBREBS AT EERENERE
beneficiary interests held by the Group. The equity interests in entities #@wo ARTFEF_HEERERY A&EE
legally held by the Group are lower than the beneficiary interests ERANEBRERNERER
because of the existence of Type Il trust financing arrangements.

36. Subsequent Events 36. B2 =18

After another wave of outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2022, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the PRC. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group. As at the
date of which this set of financial statements were authorised for
issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects on
the financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

R2022 FHIIBE00FFBEBR S K
([COVID-19%& 15 1) 1% » A S B 4C0 15
BIBENE— RYTEM RIEHITE I - AEE
YR/ ECOVID-19Z BB E - W B HE
HAEBP SRR EELBENTE - NAK
WIS MFTERET AT B - AEEWT T
AMBECOVID-19Z [EH M IS MA B EMER
DRIFE -
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Financial Summary

MBERE

(Amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) | (B4 5I5T8ASN - £ EML A ARKE)
Results ¥iE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A1BLLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT AREFTT ARETR
Revenue from contracts with customers ~ RERFA KU = 433,931 1,659,593 1,978,034 4,171,331 10,368,685
Profit before income tax BRI A A 72,683 480,951 763,338 1,023,623 1,503,803
Income tax expenses HiESyitaba (39,852) (148,993) (293,824) (381,684) (401,622)
Profit and total comprehensive income  EREF R 2 A
for the year FEES] 32,831 331,958 470,064 641,939 1,102,181
Attributable to: AT AT B -
Owners of the Company VAYNCIE 2PN 31,356 354,831 668,041 960,748 480,936
Non-controlling interests RS 1,475 (22,873) (197,977) (318,809) 621,245
32,831 331,958 470,064 641,939 1,102,181
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT  AR%®TT ARETT ARETT  AR%TR
Total assets BELE 5,266,273 9,440,757 22,892,752 46,246,196 56,028,274
Total liabilities BERTE (4,944,890) (8,739,584)  (21,239,398)  (41,759,503)  (45,750,522)
Net assets BEFE 321,383 701,173 1,653,354 4,486,693 10,277,752
Owners of the Company ADAEARA 318,271 575,490 1,243 531 3,694,014 3,841,872
Non-controling interests RS 3,112 125,683 409,823 792,679 6,435,380
Total equity e 321,383 701,173 1,653,354 4486693 10,277,752

Annual Report 2021

Ganglong China Property Group Limited






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席致辭
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理層的履歷詳情
	董事報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務摘要
	封底



